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KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
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Dear Valued Shareholders,

On behalf of New Century Group Hong Kong Limited (the
“Company”), | would like to present to you the annual results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (“New Century” or the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2021 (the “Year").

To nobody’s surprise, 2020 has been an unprecedented year
with the outbreak of COVID-19, which changed the way we
live and interact. Fortunately, following the economic
contraction last year, the global economy has started to pick
up and is expected to grow by 6% in 2021 according to the
International Monetary Fund. Hong Kong, too, was benefited
from the ongoing vaccine rollout and government stimulus —
the real gross domestic product resumed at a year-on-year
growth of 7.9% in the first quarter of 2021 owing to the

strong growth of exports of goods.

NAVIGATING OUR WAY THROUGH UNCERTAINTY

Headquartered in Hong Kong, the Group has not been
immune to the ravages of the social unrest and COVID-19.
During the Year, the Group's revenue dropped 31.0% and we
recorded a loss attributable to owners of HK$56,712,000 as
compared to a profit of HK$15,461,000 last year.

As a relatively new revenue driver, our money lending
business outperformed other segments and recorded an
increase in profit by 10.9% to HK$61,801,000, making stable
contribution to the Group amid uncertainties and pressure

arising from the external environment.
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However, ever since the COVID-19 pandemic began last year,
our cruise ship charter services business was the worst hit
among all our businesses. With governments in Singapore and
Malaysia protecting their borders through stringent measures,
our two cruise ships have been halted sailing from mid-March
2020 onward, causing no charter fee received and the
segment recorded a loss of HK$112,325,000 for the Year.
Seeing no near-term resolution, we had to make a difficult
decision to reduce our exposure to the cruise ship charter
market. Therefore, on 22 April 2021, we entered into an
agreement to dispose one of our two cruise ships, namely
“Leisure World”, at a consideration of approximately
US$3,592,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$27,909,000).
The disposal was completed on 25 May 2021 and enables us
to better allocate our resources on other business segments in

the future.

We know we are not alone fighting through challenges brought
by the social, economic and pandemic crises. We have been
stepping up our efforts to help the tenants of our Hong Kong
and Singapore properties by granting them rent concessions of
at least 10% since September 2019 and March 2020
respectively. Despite the difficult conditions of the commercial
leasing market, our occupancy rate stood strong at 99.7% this

Year.
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OUTLOOK
2020 might not be a good year, but it brought out the best of

us. Moving forward, the near-term outlook for the global
economy is closely tied to the development of the COVID-19
pandemic situation. Nevertheless, the rolling out of vaccines
worldwide gives us confidence that we will return to our
normal lives gradually. We believe the pandemic crisis today
will reshape our future for years to come, and we should
grasp this opportunity to build a diversified portfolio that
delivers sustainable growth and builds a stable earnings
stream for our shareholders. To do so, our executive team will
cautiously monitor the COVID-19 development and determine
the measures to minimize any impacts on our existing
operations while seeking new potential investment

opportunities from the evolving environment.

Finally, I would like to thank the management team and our
staff members for their efforts and hard work to sustain our
businesses through all these unprecedented challenges. |
would also like to thank our shareholders, investors, business
partners and clients for their continued confidence and

support.

Ng Wee Keat

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group's revenue amounted to HK$100,360,000 for the
Year, representing a decrease of 31.0% compared to
HK$145,364,000 last year. The decrease in the Group's
revenue was mainly attributable to (i) no charter service
income from cruise ships received during the Year (2020:
HK$64,175,000) and (ii) a decrease in rental income from
investment properties from HK$19,316,000 last year to
HK$16,268,000 for the Year despite (i) an increase in interest
income from money lending business from HK$70,636,000
last year to HK$74,303,000 for the Year and (ii) revenue of
HK$9,789,000 (2020: negative revenue of HK$8,763,000)

from securities trading for the Year.

Other Income

Other income totalled HK$4,131,000 for the Year,
representing a decrease of 65.7% compared to
HK$12,044,000 last year. This was mainly due to a decrease
in bank interest income from HK$10,919,000 last year to
HK$1,033,000 for the Year as a result of decrease in interest
rate offered by banks and a decrease in average bank balance
after acquisition of 60% equity interest in ETC Finance
Limited, a licensed money lender in Hong Kong, on 30
September 2019. During the Year, the Group received
government subsidies amounting to HK$2,191,000 (2020:
Nil) under the Employment Support Scheme launched by the

Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
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Administrative and Operating Expenses

Administrative and operating expenses were HK$75,793,000
for the Year, which increased by 49.8% compared to
HK$50,585,000 last year. The increase was mainly due to (i)
special subsidies amounting to HK$31,153,000 (2020:
HK$1,252,000) paid to the charterer for the maintenance of
the Group’s two cruise ships in a safe, hygienic and
operational conditions during the suspension of their
operations subsequent to the global outbreak of COVID-19
and (ii) an increase in advertising and promotion expenses in
money lending business from HK$4,216,000 last year to
HK$5,587,000 this Year. The increase in administrative and
operating expenses was partially netted off by (i) a decrease
in legal and professional fees from HK$2,985,000 last year to
HK$812,000 for the Year which was attributable to external
legal and financial advisory services provided on the
acquisition of 60% equity interest in ETC Finance Limited on
30 September 2019 and (ii) a decrease in employee benefit
expense (including directors’ remuneration) from
HK$22,643,000 last year to HK$21,068,000 for the Year.

Deficit on Revaluation of Cruise Ships

At the end of the reporting date, the cruise ships were
revalued at fair value with the revaluation deficit of
HK$66,713,000 (2020: HK$172,000) recognised in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss for the Year.

Fair Value Losses on Investment Properties

The Group recorded fair value losses of HK$19,486,000 for
the Year (2020: HK$24,634,000) for investment properties in
Hong Kong and Singapore.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Reversal of/(Provision for) Impairment Losses on
Loan and Interest Receivables

The reversal of impairment losses of HK$1,050,000 for the
Year (2020: provision for impairment loss of HK$1,971,000)
was attributable to the decrease in provision for impairment
losses on unsecured personal loan and interest receivables,
which was in line with the decrease in unsecured personal

loan portfolio.

Provision for Impairment Loss on Repossessed Asset

The Group recorded a provision for impairment loss of
HK$300,000 (2020: Nil) on repossessed asset for the Year.

Profit/(Loss) for the Year

The Group recorded a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$56,712,000 for the Year compared to a profit
of HK$15,461,000 last year. The turnaround from profit to
loss was principally due to that (i) there was no cruise ship
charter service income received for the Year (2020:
HK$64,175,000); (ii) special subsidies amounting to
HK$31,153,000 (2020: HK$1,252,000) were paid to the
charterer of cruise ships for the Year; and (iii) deficit of
HK$66,713,000 (2020: HK$172,000) on revaluation of cruise
ships recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the Year as a result of the suspension of cruise ship
operation of the Group's charterer following the pandemic

crisis.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Money Lending
Since early 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic has hit the global

and local economies hard. Shadowed by increasing
uncertainty, the Group strived to streamline its loan portfolio
mix and stringent credit control to reduce its exposure to high-
risk loans. However, the weak economic environment subdued
investor sentiment in property and business investments,
which led to a lower demand for our loan products. As at 31
March 2021, the Group's total gross loan and interest
receivables decreased by 4.1% to HK$661,861,000 (2020:
HK$690,433,000). The gross secured mortgage loan and
interest receivables slightly decreased by 3.1% to
HK$639,992,000 (2020: HK$660,506,000) while the gross
unsecured personal loan and interest receivables decreased
by 26.9% to HK$21,869,000 (2020: HK$29,927,000).

Despite the decrease in total gross receivables of mortgage
loan and unsecured personal loan, the Group recorded a
steady 5.2% increase in interest income to HK$74,303,000
for the Year, as compared to HK$70,636,000 last year. The
interest income from secured mortgage loans increased by
8.3% from HK$64,145,000 last year to HK$69,474,000 for
the Year, whereas interest income from unsecured personal
loans decreased by 25.6% from HK$6,491,000 last year to
HK$4,829,000 for the Year. The increase in interest income
from secured mortgage loans was principally due to the
increase in interest rate charged to borrowers in new
transactions. The decrease in interest income from unsecured
personal loans was in line with the decrease in gross

unsecured personal loan receivable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Together with the contributions from (i) the government
subsidy of HK$1,057,000 (2020: Nil) granted under the
Employment Support Scheme in Hong Kong and (ii) the
reversal of impairment losses on unsecured personal loan and
interest receivables of HK$1,050,000 (2020: provision for
impairment loss of HK$1,971,000), which were partly offset
by an increase in advertising and promotion expenses by
32.5% to HK$5,587,000 for the Year (2020: HK$4,216,000),
the segment profit increased by 10.9% to HK$61,801,000 for
the Year (2020: HK$55,714,000).

Cruise Ship Charter Services

During the Year, the global outbreak of COVID-19 continued
to severely impact the Group's cruise ship charter services of
the two cruise ships namely “Leisure World" and “Aegean
Paradise”. Border closure, travel restrictions and compulsory
quarantine measures have been imposed by the governments
of Singapore and Malaysia from mid-March 2020 onward,
resulting in continuing suspension of the cruise ship operation
of the charterer for “Leisure World” and “Aegean Paradise”.
During the suspension, an exemption for payment of charter
fees was granted by the Group to the charterer. At the same
time, special daily subsidies of S$5,000 and S$10,000 were
paid by the Group to the charterer for the maintenance of
“Leisure World" and “Aegean Paradise” respectively in safe,
hygienic and operational conditions. Special subsidies paid for
the Year amounted to HK$31,153,000 (2020: HK$1,252,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In order to comply with requirements of the classification
society, "Aegean Paradise” was arranged to go into dry dock
between June and July 2020 and capital expenditure of
HK$11,770,000 was incurred. At the end of the reporting
date, the two cruise ships were revalued by an independent
professionally qualified valuer. As at 31 March 2021, the
carrying amount of “Leisure World” and "Aegean Paradise”
were HK$27,195,000 (2020: HK$28,080,000) and
HK$120,435,000 (2020: HK$171,600,000) respectively. A
revaluation deficit in aggregate of HK$59,628,000 (2020:
HK$7,959,000) was recognised, of which deficit of
HK$66,713,000 (2020: HK$172,000) has been charged to
the profit or loss and surplus of HK$7,085,000 (2020: deficit
of HK$7,787,000) has been credited (2020: charged) to

other comprehensive income.

In view of the above mentioned factors, the cruise ship charter
services segment recorded a significant change from a profit
of HK$40,757,000 last year to a loss of HK$112,325,000 for
the Year.

As it is unclear when the cruise ship operation will be
resumed, the directors are of the view that disposal of cruise
ship will not only release the Group from incurring further
cash outflow and loss for the maintenance of cruise ship, but
also generate additional working capital for the Group. The
directors seized the opportunity of the upward price trend of
steel and strong ship scrap market by disposing one of the
cruise ships, “Leisure World", for demolition purpose only. On
22 April 2021, the Group entered into an agreement with an
independent third party to sell “Leisure World" at a
consideration of approximately US$3,592,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$27,909,000). The disposal was completed
upon the delivery of “Leisure World” to the purchaser on 25
May 2021. For details, please refer to the Company's
announcement dated 22 April 2021.
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Property Investments

Following the social incidents in Hong Kong in late half of
2019 and the global pandemic since early 2020, the retail
and catering businesses in the local economy were greatly
affected. Therefore, the Group has granted rent concession of
at least 10% of the original rents to the tenants of its Hong
Kong and Singapore investment properties since September
2019 and March 2020 respectively. As a result, the Group's
segment revenue from property investments dropped by
15.8% to HK$16,268,000 for the Year (2020:
HK$19,316,000), notwithstanding that there was additional
rental income of HK$722,000 (2020: Nil) generated from the
investment property at Katherine House in Hong Kong which
was newly leased out since mid-April 2020 following the
change of its usage from owner-occupied property to

investment property on 30 June 2019.

At the end of each of the reporting date, investment
properties were revalued at fair value. Net fair value losses on
investment properties of HK$19,486,000 were recorded for
the Year (2020: HK$24,634,000). The investment properties
in Hong Kong recorded fair value losses of HK$22,900,000
(2020: HK$32,600,000) while the investment properties in
Singapore recorded fair value gains of HK$3,414,000 (2020:
HK$7,966,000).

As a result of the aforesaid, the segment loss decreased by
35.5% to HK$5,896,000 for the Year (2020: HK$9,146,000).

For the Year, the Group's investment properties achieved an
average occupancy rate of 99.7% (2020: 96.9%) with an
average annual rental yield of 3.0% (2020: 3.4%).
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Securities Trading

Securities trading segment recorded a gain of HK$9,776,000
for the Year (2020: a loss of HK$8,746,000). The turnaround
of segment result from loss to profit was mainly due to (i) net
realized and unrealized gains on equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss of HK$8,079,000 for the Year
(2020: net realized and unrealized losses of HK$9,735,000);
(i) fair value gains of HK$391,000 on derivative financial
instruments for the Year (2020: fair value losses of
HK$391,000); and (iii) dividend income of HK$1,319,000
generated from equity investments at fair value through profit
or loss for the Year (2020: HK$1,363,000).

The Group's portfolio of securities mainly consisted of the
blue chips in the Hong Kong stock market. As at 31 March
2021, the Group's equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss amounted to HK$96,537,000 (2020:
HK$14,119,000). There were no individual equity investments
held by the Group with market value more than 5% of the net
assets value of the Group. The details of the Group's equity

investments as at 31 March 2021 were as below:
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Name of stock listed on the
stock exchange of Hong Kong
(Stock Code)
REBEIM LT 2RO EH
(R HRR)

The Hong Kong and China Gas

Company Limited
BETERRARAA
(0003)

Power Assets Holdings Limited
BREXERAA

(0006)

Henderson Land Development

Company Limited
BEKEFHEFRAA
(0012)

Hong Kong Exchanges and

Clearing Limited
ERRHREEMBRRA
(0388)

China Tower Corporation Limited
REHERDERAA
(0788)

China Construction Bank

Corporation
PEERRITRAERAR
(0939)

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

Number of
shares
held
BEkH
¥R

960,000

80,000

160,000

2,000

12,000,000

1,800,000
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Percentage of
shareholding
held

saRG
ZBDL

0.0054

0.0037

0.0033

0.0002

0.0257

0.0007

Investment
cost

RE

A
HK$'000
THET

11,444

3,302

5477

528

14,592

10,314

Market

value

M
HK$'000
TRAT

11,808

3,672

5584

915

13,800

11,772

Percentage to
net assets value
of the Group
HAKEEE
REZBDLL

0.60

0.19

0.28

0.05

0.70

0.60
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Name of stock listed on the Number of Percentage of

stock exchange of Hong Kong shares shareholding

(Stock Code) held held

REBBRFLH 2RO EH BEkH BAERH

(RBR) ¥R ZBDL

China Mobile Limited 702,800 0.0034

REBHERAA

(0941)

Ping An Insurance (Group) Company 10,000 0.0001
of China, Ltd.

PETZRER (EE)RHERAF

(2318)

Tracker Fund of Hong Kong 190,000 0.0058

BEES

(2800)

Bank of China Limited 2,300,000 0.0028

RERITIRODER A

(3988)

Total for equity investments at fair value through profit or loss
BRAFEEMABRNBRERES

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2021, the Company had outstanding
guarantees of HK$190,000,000 (2020: HK$190,000,000)
given to banks to secure general credit facility for certain
subsidiaries. No credit facility (2020: Nil) was utilized by
subsidiaries from such guarantees at the end of the reporting

period.

Percentage to

Investment Market  net assets value

cost value of the Group
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CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS
As at 31 March 2021, some of the Group's land and buildings

as well as investment properties with an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$305,773,000 (2020: HK$317,470,000), some
of the Group's trade receivables (rental) with a carrying
amount of HK$3,462,000 (2020: HK$1,560,000) and the
Group’s equity investments with a carrying amount of
HK$96,537,000 (2020: HK$14,119,000) were pledged to
banks and securities dealers for loan facilities worth
HK$231,846,000 (2020: HK$178,945,000) granted to the
Group. As at 31 March 2021, no loan facility (2020: Nil) was
utilized by the Group.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group maintained a sound financial condition. As at 31
March 2021, the Group had net current assets of
HK$1,102,889,000 (2020: HK$1,014,827,000) and equity
attributable to owners of the Company worth
HK$1,582,541,000 (2020: HK$1,617,227,000).

As at 31 March 2021, the cash and cash equivalents of the
Group were HK$454,297,000 (2020: HK$438,811,000),
which were held predominately in Hong Kong dollar,

Singapore dollar and United States dollar.

A loan advanced from a non-controlling shareholder of the
Group's subsidiary as at 31 March 2021 was approximately
HK$71,823,000 (2020: HK$71,823,000). The loan was
denominated in United States dollar, which was unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.

The Group had an amount due to an intermediate holding
company of HK$40,000,000 (2020: HK$40,000,000) as at
31 March 202 1. The balance was unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.
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At the end of the reporting date, the Group's gearing ratio,
calculated as total indebtedness divided by equity attributable
to owners of the Company, was 7.1% (2020: 6.9%). Total
indebtedness represents a loan advanced from a non-
controlling shareholder of the Group’s subsidiary, amount due

to an intermediate holding company and lease liabilities.

Stringent cost control measures have already been in place to
monitor the day-to-day operational and administrative
expenses. The management will continue to closely review the
Group's financial resources in a cautious manner and explore
opportunities in potential financial institutions financing and
equity funding. Taking into consideration the Group’s current
financial resources, the directors believe that the Group will
have adequate fund for its continual operation and

development.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditure amounted to HK$12,615,000 for the Year,
which mainly consisted of HK$11,770,000 for dry docking of
the cruise ship “Aegean Paradise” and HK$540,000 for
purchase of automated compliance management system for

money lending business.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Equity Price Risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in securities, which are listed on the stock
exchange of Hong Kong and are valued at quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period. The management
manages this exposure by monitoring the price movements
and the changes in market conditions that may affect the
value of the investments and will consider taking appropriate

actions to minimize the risk.
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Foreign Currency Risk

Most of the Group's revenue and costs were denominated in
Hong Kong dollar and Singapore dollar. The Group's cash and
cash equivalents were held predominately in Hong Kong
dollar, Singapore dollar and United States dollar. A loan
advanced from a non-controlling shareholder of the Group's
subsidiary was denominated in United States dollar. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management closely monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should that need arise.

Credit Risk

The Group mainly focuses on conducting lease and loan
transactions with high quality customers and obtaining
sufficient collaterals, if applicable, as a means of mitigating the
risk of financial loss from defaults. In order to minimize the
credit risk, the Group’s management continues to monitor the
level of risk exposure to ensure that the Group can recover
any overdue debts. The Group will consider taking legal
actions, when necessary, as a means to recover the debts in
default. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual debt, including but not limited to rental
receivables, secured mortgage loan and interest receivables
and unsecured personal loan and interest receivables at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are provided for irrecoverable amounts. In
the opinion of the directors, the credit risk is significantly

reduced.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had a total of 32 staff
(2020: 33) in Hong Kong. The employee benefit expense
(including directors’ emoluments) was HK$21,068,000
(2020: HK$22,643,000) for the Year. Remuneration packages
for employees and directors are structured according to market
terms as well as individual's and the Group's performance.
Benefits plans maintained by the Group include mandatory
provident fund scheme, medical insurance, share option
scheme and discretionary bonuses. As at 31 March 2021, the
Group had 132,800,000 (2020: 386,640,000) outstanding
share options granted to eligible directors and employees of

the Group.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Disposal of Cruise Ship — Leisure World
On 22 April 2021, the Group, through an indirect non-wholly

owned subsidiary, entered into an agreement with an
independent third party to sell the cruise ship “Leisure World",
which was sold for demolition purpose only, at a consideration
of approximately US$3,592,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$27,909,000). The disposal was completed upon the
delivery of “Leisure World" to the purchaser on 25 May 2021.
The gain on disposal before tax is expected to be
approximately US$92,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$714,000) and the Group's share of relevant aggregate
revaluation surplus of HK$4,730,000 included in the asset
revaluation reserve is expected to be transferred to retained
profits. The disposal constitutes a discloseable transaction and
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. For details of the
disposal, please refer to the Company's announcement dated
22 April 2021.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company is scheduled on
Tuesday, 28 September 2021 (the “Annual General
Meeting”). For determining the entitlement to attend and vote
at the Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Thursday, 23 September 2021
to Tuesday, 28 September 2021, both days inclusive, during
which period, no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to
be eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting,
all transfers of shares, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 21
September 2021.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) is committed
to maintaining high standards of corporate governance
practices at all times. The Board believes that good corporate
governance helps the Company to safeguard the interests of
its shareholders and to enhance the performance of the

Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the year ended 31 March
2021, save and except for the code provision E.1.2 which
stipulates that the chairman of the board should attend the

annual general meeting.

Mr. Ng Wee Keat, being the Chairman of the Board, was
unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 29 September 2020 due to the travel restrictions
under COVID-19 pandemic. In his absence, Mr. Yu Wai Man,
the executive director of the Company attended and took the
chair of the said annual general meeting and ensured the

proceedings of the meeting were conducted in order.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors of
the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all directors of
the Company, all of them confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during
the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises nine
members as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chairman)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer)
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth
Mr. Ho Yau Ming

The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
Biographical details of the directors (including the relationships
among members of the Board) are set out under the section
headed “Directors’ Biographies” on pages 67 to 72 of this
annual report. In compliance with code provision A.1.8 of the
CG Code, the Company has arranged appropriate insurance

cover in respect of potential legal actions against its directors.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in order to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed

and relevant.

During the Year, all directors have participated various external
seminars relevant to the directors’ duties and responsibilities
or the accounting issues. The Company has received from
each of the directors their individual training record for the
Year.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles

of chairman and chief executive should be separate. The
division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive should be clearly established and set out in writing.
As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 2
March 2012, Mr. Wilson Ng resigned as the Chairman of the
Company on 2 March 2012 and on the same day Mr. Ng Wee
Keat was re-designated from the Chief Executive Officer to the
Chairman of the Company. The Company is in the process of
identifying suitable candidate with appropriate experience to
be the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and will make
an announcement as soon as a suitable candidate has been
identified.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive directors has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a specific
term of three years and are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years as referred to the bye-law 87
of the Company where provides that at each annual general
meeting one-third of the directors of the Company for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3),
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation. The Company has received from each
of the independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspects of the Group's affairs and to
assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has
established three board committees, namely the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Audit Committee (collectively the "Committees”) with clearly-
defined written terms of references. The Board delegated the
authority to the Committees and provided the Committees
with sufficient resources to perform their duties. Upon
reasonable request, they are able to seek independent

professional advice at the Company’s expenses.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises five
members, including two executive directors, namely Mr. Ng
Wee Keat and Mr. Yu Wai Man and three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok, Mr. Kwan
Kai Kin, Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming. Mr. Cheung Chun

Kwok is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Company has adopted the model whereby the
Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive

directors and senior management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration

Committee are as follows:

ESEBRTHNZRES (H)
FHERS (#)
FHMEER I EEMERBENT

to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company's policy and structure for all directors’ and
senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for

developing remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management's remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals

and objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the

remuneration of non-executive directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment

conditions elsewhere in the Group;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair

and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and

appropriate; and

to ensure that no director or any of his associates is

involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued) EESBETHNZEES (#)
Remuneration Committee (continued) FMEES (E)
The following is a summary of work performed by the UATAFMEESERAFEAETTIEZE
Remuneration Committee during the Year: Cig

1. to review the remuneration package of the directors; and 1. BAEFZHFMEE K

2. to recommend to the Board on the year-end bonus of 2. EETEE @M ITEEBERELILL

executive directors.

Details of the directors’ and five highest paid employees’ EERAMNGZEHFEENS ZFBEHNYH

emoluments are set out in note 8 to the financial statements. EELIETE

Nomination Committee REZES
The Nomination Committee currently comprises five members, REZZE € BRI ABKE4K © BIER A
including two executive directors, namely Mr. Ng Wee Keat #i{72 % BE@EALLENRESELE L
and Mr. Yu Wai Man and three independent non-executive N =ZBFH1T7EE  BIREBLL - B
directors, namely Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok, Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, RIfELAENAIABLEE - ERALERIRES
Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming. Mr. Ng Wee Keat is the Z8&I/E -

chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee 2R ZE @ T EHE RBEOT :

are:

1. to review the structure, size and composition of the 1. ELEHFERNEZTSHEE - AH LA

Board at least annually and make recommendations on B - M RLER R BL S AR R A Bl R B
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the MREEESEL N ZEIRHEZE

Company's corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become board 2. YEEEHSEERAIEEESTHAL

members and select or make recommendations to the WHERIRB B A LB EEEH UL A
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for EEeREER:

directorships;

3. to assess the independence of independent non- 3. BBV IEHITESHNBIM &

executive directors; and
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or reappointment of directors and

succession planning for directors, in particular the

chairman and the chief executive.

The following is a summary of work performed by the
Nomination Committee during the Year:

1. to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

2. to assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors; and

3. to recommend to the Board on the reappointment of the

retiring directors.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in September
2013, which set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. All board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The Company has adopted a nomination policy in January
20109.

Objective

The objective of the nomination policy is to provide a
framework and set standards to assist the Nomination
Committee to select and recommend candidates for
directorship so as to ensure the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the

requirements of the Company's business.

Selection criteria

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following
criteria (as reference) in assessing the suitability of a proposed

candidate for directorships:

1. character and integrity;

2. qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the

Company's business and corporate strategy;

3. willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties
as a Board member and other directorships and

significant commitments;

4. requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with
reference to the independence guidelines set out in the

Listing Rules; and

5. board diversity policy and any measure objectives
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving

diversity on the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Selection criteria (continued)

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be

exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the

discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary
personal information in a prescribed form, together with their
written consent to be appointed as a director of the Company
and to the public disclosure of their personal data on any
documents or the relevant websites for the purpose of or in

relation to their standing for election as a director.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates to
provide additional information and documents, if considered

necessary.

Nomination procedure

1. The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a
meeting of the Nomination Committee, and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members if any,
for consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to
its meeting. The Nomination Committee may also put
forward candidates who are not nominated by Board

members.

2. For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations for the Board's
consideration and approval. For proposing candidates to
stand for election or re-election at a general meeting, the
Nomination Committee shall make nominations to the

Board for its consideration and recommendation.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Nomination procedure (continued)

3.

In order to provide information of the candidates
nominated by the Board to stand for election at a general
meeting, and to invite nominations from shareholders, a
circular will be sent to shareholders. The circular will set
out the lodgment period for shareholders to make the
nominations. The names, brief biographies (including
qualifications and relevant experience), independence,
proposed remuneration and any other information, as
required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and
regulations, of the proposed candidates will be included

in the circular to shareholders.

The shareholder of the Company may also propose a
person for election as a director, details of which are set
out in the “Procedures for Proposing a Person for Election
as a Director by Shareholders” which is also available on

the website of the Company.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand for

election or re-election at any general meeting.

Review and disclosure of the nomination policy

1.

The Board will from time to time review the Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the

Nomination Policy.

The Company shall disclose this nomination policy in its
corporate governance report in compliance with the

Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee reviewed the composition of the
Board. After assessing the suitability of the directors’ skills and
experience to the Company's business, the Nomination
Committee considered that the existing Board was
appropriately structured and no change was required. The
Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy,

as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok, Mr.
Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming. One of the
independent non-executive directors possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing
Rules. Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
its resignation or dismissal;

2. to review and monitor the external auditor’s

independence and objectivity;

3. to develop and implement policy on engaging an external

auditor to supply non-audit services;

4. to monitor the integrity of the Company's financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-year
report, and to review significant financial reporting

judgements contained in them;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

5.

to review the Company's financial controls, the risk

management and internal control systems;

to review the Group's financial and accounting policies

and practices; and

to review the external auditor's management letter and to
ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to
the issues raised in the external auditor's management

letter.

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit

Committee during the Year:

to review with the management and auditor of the
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, to discuss the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020 and to recommend

them to the Board for approval;

to review with the management and auditor of the
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, to discuss the unaudited interim financial
statements for the six months ended 30 September
2020 and to recommend them to the Board for approval;

and

to review the risk management and internal control

systems of the Company.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director at the meetings of the
Board, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the Audit Committee and the annual general

meeting during the Year is set out as below:

Directors Board
EZ Exg
Executive Directors BTEE

Mr. Ng Wee Keat BEGLE 6/6
Ms. Sio lon Kuan FHBEZL 6/6
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda BEERXL 6/6
Ms. Lilian Ng BENERT 6/6
Ms. Chen Ka Chee BRisEz T 6/6
Mr. Yu Wai Man RENKE 6/6

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok RIR KA 6/6
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth BRELE 6/6
Mr. Ho Yau Ming MRALE 6/6

EERZEEREHELE

RAFEE BREELEFEES
R € BRZEE

e
BFERGZHFECTEHIWT

7

Attendance/Number of Meetings held
HE/ BTEERH

Remuneration ~ Nomination Audit

Committee Committee ~ Committee

FWEREE REZREE EKZEE

3/3 1/1 -
3/3 1/1 =
3/3 1/1 2/2
3/3 1/1 2/2
3/3 1/1 2/2

g2 -HFMEE
& M&Hx?

Annual
General
Meeting

RREF
-

0/1
0/1
0/1
0/1
0/1



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance functions as required under the CG
Code:

1. to develop and review the Company's policies and
practices on corporate governance and make

recommendations to the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior

management;

3. to review and monitor the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

directors; and

5. to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code

and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the above corporate governance functions
have been performed and executed by the Board and the
Board has reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
During the Year under review, the remuneration paid/payable
to the Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young for audit and non-

audit services to the Group, is set out as below:

Services rendered Fee paid/payable

HK$

Audit services 1,620,000
Non-audit services

— Interim Review 420,000
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2021.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt

upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about
their responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the “Independent Auditor's Report” on pages 83 to 93 of this

annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Group's strategic objectives, and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems for the Group. The systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or

loss.

The management of the Company has established internal
audit function. Procedures have been designed for
safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensuring compliance of applicable laws, rules

and regulations.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

The Board has overseen the Company's risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems which covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls has been
conducted, and considered that the systems are effective and
adequate. The Board has also reviewed the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications, experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions and considered that they are

adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY
The company secretary of the Company, Ms. Ng Suet Vi, is

responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. During the Year, Ms. Ng has taken no less than 15

hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Convene a Special General Meeting

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Company, shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
secretary of the Company, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of
section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Send Enquiries to the Board

The Company's corporate website (http://www.ncgrp.com.hk)
provides postal address, email address, fax number and
telephone number by which shareholders of the Company may
at any time address their concerns or enquires to the Board.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Make Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

(i) The procedures for proposing a person for election as a

(i)

director of the Company at shareholders’ meetings are

set out in the “Corporate Governance” section of the

Company's corporate website.

The procedures for putting forward proposals at

shareholders’ meetings are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company may submit a
written requisition to propose resolution(s) through

requisition of a special general meeting.

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of
the voting rights or not less than 100 shareholders
of the Company may submit a written requisition to
propose resolution(s) at the next annual general

meeting.

The written requisition or notice given by the

requisitionist(s) must

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

state the resolution(s) with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the shareholders’

meeting;

be signed by the requisitionist(s);

specify the full name and address of the
requisitionist(s), as they appear in the Company's

share register of shareholders;

specify the class and number of shares which are
beneficially owned by the requisitionist(s) on the

date of such written requisition or notice; and
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Make Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings (continued)

(i) The procedures for putting forward proposals at

shareholders’ meetings are as follows: (continued)

The written requisition or notice given by the

requisitionist(s) must (continued)

(e) be deposited at the registered office of the Company
with a copy to the Company's head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit
3808, 38th Floor, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for
the attention of the board of directors of the

Company or the company secretary of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual
general meetings and other general meetings to communicate

with them and encourage their participation.

In addition, the Company also communicates to its shareholders
through interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.
All such reports, announcements and circulars can also be
accessed via the Company's website (http://www.ncgrp.com.hk)

and the website of the Stock Exchange.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) in January 2019.

Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the Company may declare
and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company,
provided that the Group records a profit after tax and that the
declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the
normal operations of the Group. In deciding whether to
propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount,
the Board shall take into account, among others, inter alia, the

following factors:

(i) the Group's financial results;

(i) the Group's actual and future operations and liquidity
position;

(iii) the Group's expected working capital requirements and

future expansion plans;

(iv) the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group; and

(v) any other factors that the Board may consider

appropriate.

The payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the laws of Bermuda, the bye-laws of

the Company and any applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to
time and there can be no assurance that a dividend will be

proposed or declared in any given period.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2021, there was no change
in the Company’s constitutional documents, and these
documents are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

HHELEEEEERLA

BB BER
EFEER -2 NF-ARMBREER
(TRBEEK) o

BREZBREBER  ARRAIMARRAFRRE
I B A B B EA AR B EFRR TR S
MASRMENRETNGHAEEZEREE
EBREATERARE HREEERZT KK
EREEREEEE BEFGEEE(EP
BE)ATHEE:

() NEENMBERE

(i) AEENEEAARLERRDHESH
R

(i) "EEEHZEESFTRERRER

I

(iv) RABRANEEENKE QR A REE
A D IRFERE R

il

v) EXeRREENTEMNEECRAE-

ARABRNRETFABTEREEN AR
Al R EAR R R AR ERER - REIKRB
THYEARIBR & o

BRERERGRETEELERN - BB TR
ERETAREHEEZZHEIREE

BEXH

BT —F=A=1+—HItEE AR
RAIZEBEENHLEEE  ZENHELHR
Bt X BT R AR A B 2 M o

A

¢

iz



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

FHLEEEEETRAA
Annual Report 2021 F3k

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report provides an update of the environmental, social
and governance ("ESG") of the Group during the period from
1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 (the "Reporting Period”) and
is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide under

Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's ESG
strategy and reporting and is responsible for identifying,
evaluating and mitigating the environmental, social and
governance related risks of the Group to enhance its
sustainability in order to maximise returns for our stakeholders
while ensuring socially and environmentally responsible
business operations. It is also responsible for ensuring that
relevant risk management and internal control systems are in
place and operate effectively. The Group’s management also
reports to the Board on the effectiveness of these systems on

a regular basis to raise awareness and drive improvement.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

We have taken the following reporting principles into account

in development of this ESG report (the “Report”).

Materiality

This Report is structured based on the materiality of
respectively sustainability issues as assessed and identified
with stakeholder engagement. The Board and the
management regularly review the sustainability issues that are
most significant to our business and operations, and consider
the issues discussed in this Report to be material to the

Group.
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RIR - HEREGRE

REPORTING PRINCIPLES (continued)
Quantitative

This Report provides information on our ESG metrics and
presents key performance indicators in quantitative terms

whenever feasible.

Balance

This Report provides an unbiased narrative explanation of our

sustainability achievements and challenges.

Consistency

This Report is prepared to be in consistent with the
methodology applied in the ESG report from 1 April 2019 to
31 March 2020.

REPORTING BOUNDARY

Unless otherwise stated, information disclosed in this Report
cover the Group's businesses including, money lending, cruise
ship charter services, property investments and securities
trading for the year ended 31 March 2021.
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ENVIRONMENTAL

Emissions

The Group is principally engaged in the business of
money lending, cruise ship charter services, property
investments and securities trading. The operations of the
Group do not involve any production process, hence

there is no obvious exhaust emissions.

The Group's air and greenhouse gas ("GHG") emissions
data during the Reporting Period and the year 2020 are

as follows:

Unit
B
Air Emissions
& R BE K
Nitrogen Oxides (NO,) kg
=R o) T
Sulphur Oxides (SO,) kg
e o) T
Particulate Matter (PM) kg
BB T
GHG Emissions
BERBHER
Scope 1: Direct emissions tCO.e
HE BRI M—StRES
Scope 2: Indirect emissions tCO.e
FE2  RE PR Wi — S E 8
Greenhouse gas intensity tCO,e
(per employee) WE SIS E
BEREBEE

Al.

RR - HEREGRE

T
23587

RAEEFERENE HHREERS
MEREARBHEEER - AEEH L
BB ™ RAMAEEBRE - Bt
3 A (E 7] B R R SR BE R

AEERBEHER_—_ZE_ZFENE
RERERB(DRERE]) HENHIE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
0.73 1.84

0.04 0.05

0.05 0.14

6.05 7.50

96.07 140.51

3.19 4.63
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Emissions (continued)

Notes:

1. Scope 1 refers to the direct emissions from vehicles that

are owned by the Group.

2. Scope 2 refers to the indirect emissions resulting from the
generation of purchased electricity consumed by the

Group.

3. The emission factors used are based on the requirements
in "How to prepare an ESG report — Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs" issued by the Stock

Exchange.

We have adopted energy saving initiatives mentioned in

the section “Use of Resources” of this Report.

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

The Group recognizes the importance of waste reduction.
Waste management measures have been introduced to
minimize the amount of waste generated and reduce
impact of our operation on the environment. The small
amount of hazardous waste generated from the
Company's office activities, such as toner cartridges, is
collected by qualified organizations for environmentally
friendly disposal. Non-hazardous waste includes waste
papers of approximately 0.55 tonnes which are collected
by specialized recycling company on a regular basis for

effective recycling.

Due to the Company's business nature, the Group was
not aware of any non-compliance of laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

waste.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Use of Resources

The Group's energy and resources consumption data

during the Reporting Period and the year 2020 are as

follows:

Direct Energy Consumption
HERRHE
Petrol
7T
Intensity (per vehicle)
HE (SHTE)

Indirect Energy Consumption

e 45 82 JROH 3%

Electricity

B
Intensity (per sq.m. of floor area)
BE(BTHABEER)

Resources Consumption
BIRH
Paper (Note)
AR (P EE)
Intensity (per employee)

BE(SEEE)

Unit
By

Litres
ﬂ_
Litres

ﬂ,

kWh
TELBF
kWh
TR

Tonnes
0]
Tonnes
M43

Note: A company which engages in money lending business

has become an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of

the Company since September 2019. Hence, the paper

consumption by the Group for advertising and promotion

increased during the Year.

A RIE ()
A2. EREH

AEERBEHER_Z_ZFENRE

RN ERBFEEIRMT

2021 2020
= =R
2,561.59 3,249.00
853.86 1,083.00
165,324.00 253,842.00
150.15 230.54
8.52 0.94

0.27 0.03
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Use of Resources (continued)
The Group is vigilant to conserve energy, water and
resources as to relieve global concern of resource
depletion. Hence, we have initiated the following

measures to promote responsible use of resources.

Electricity consumption
«  The Group advocates employees to switch off idle
lightings, computers, office equipment and air-

conditioning systems when they are not in use.

«  The Group has adopted energy saving practices in

its office building.

«  Replace the traditional fluorescent tubes by LED

tubes in the offices.

Fuel consumption
«  Regular maintenance on the Group's vehicles is
carried out to ensure a high fuel efficiency to reduce

emissions.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Use of Resources (continued)
Water consumption

«  Water saving notices were posted in pantry to

promote water conservation and usage awareness.

«  Repair timely when there is dripping, spraying and

leaky faucets.

Water consumption of the Group is entirely generated
from domestic usage in the office building. However, the
head office in Hong Kong has no water consumption
recorded as the water consumption charges are included
in the building management fee so that the water bills
will not be calculated separately. Since the main source
of waste water came from domestic use, the overall level

of water pollution was relatively low.

Paper consumption

«  The use of digital copies is promoted in the office to
save papers and to recycle envelopes that are used

for issuing internal documents and letters.

«  Encourage to make double-side printing and copying.

« Introduce electronic means of corporate
communications to shareholders. Shareholders are
encouraged to receive corporate communication
documents by using electronic means through the
Company’'s website so as to reduce the paper

consumption.

« Increase the portion of digital marketing tools and

cut down the paper advertisement.

A2.
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A3.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Use of Resources (continued)

Packing material consumption

«  The Group, as a non-consumer goods manufacturer,

does not consume any packaging materials in its

principal business.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The business activities of the Group have no direct/
significant impact on environment and natural resources.
The Group nonetheless commits to using natural
resources efficiently while we encourage the reuse and
recycling of materials during our daily operations. In
addition, the Group is committed in applying industry
best practices and complying with legislation, establishing
and reviewing safety, security, and environmental goals
and targets, effectively using energy and materials,
reducing waste and emissions, and communicating our

environmental protection policy to all employees.

Meanwhile, the Group recognizes that businesses must
take responsibility for being a role model of industry in
relation to sustainability of the environment, and we
should bear the responsibilities and fulfill the obligations

in protecting them.
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SOCIAL

. Employment

Employees are regarded as valuable assets and core
competitive advantage of the Group. Policies and
regulations principally adopted by the Group in respect of
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare have
been clearly stated in the employee handbook.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had a total number of
32 full-time employees in Hong Kong. The key
performance indicators related to the employee structure
and the employee turnover rate for the Reporting Period
and the year 2020 are as follows:

Employee structure EEXRE
By gender 3k B)
Male E2Rid
Female g
By age group RERA RS D
Under 30 308K AR
Aged 30 to 50 30B% £508%
Aged over 50 50B% A £
By category RERIE 5D
Senior Management SRERRE
Middle Management hRERE
General Staff —RET

Employee turnover rate EE Rkt =
By gender &1 Bl &l 2
Male S1
Female g
By age group RERARE S
Under 30 30B% AR
Aged 30 to 50 305% 2505%
Aged over 50 505% A &

B1.

RR - HEREGRE

e
&%

BERERAKENEEEERZ LB
FEYL - ARERHHEERE  BER
B IR R FEHRE %
TeAE ~ R IAR A B EL At 75 58 K 48 I B R
MOETEBRRAECEREFMAS
5 -

RZZBE_—F=A=+—B  rx&B%&
BEZE2RBEEAHI2A - RBEHMHE
R—Z_ZFERHRERBNERR
REENEREBIERAOT

2021 2020
—R-_—F —E-FF
Number of Number of
employees employees

EEAH BE A
14 15
18 18

1 1
17 17
14 15
6 6
14 15
12 12
1 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
1 0
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SOCIAL (continued)

. Employment (continued)

Compensation and dismissal

The Group offers competitive remuneration and benefits
to attract and retain the talents. The remuneration of
each employee will be determined with reference to a
number of factors including educational background,
experience, job duties, professional skills and technical
capabilities, as well as salary level for similar job positions
in the industry. An employee may be dismissed in case
of serious or persistent beaches of discipline or convicted

of a criminal offence.

Recruitment and promotion

The Group treats all employees equally. Their
employment, remuneration and promotion will not be
affected by their social identities such as ethnicity, race,
nationality, gender, religion, age, sexual orientation,
marital status, pregnancy, disability and political beliefs.
The level of compensation of our employees is reviewed
annually in an annual appraisal on their performance
basis, during which process each employee is given equal

opportunity for promotion.

Working hours and rest periods

The Group understands the importance of “work-life
balance” to its employees and adopts five to six days
workweek dependent on level of duty and nature of
operations involved to ensure that its employees have
adequate rest. The Group determines working hours and
rest periods for employees in line with Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong and employment contracts with
employees. In addition to statutory holidays, employees
are also entitled to other paid holidays including annual
leave, sick leave, marriage and compassionate leave,

maternity leave, paternity leave and compensation leave.
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. Employment (continued)

Diversity, equal opportunities and anti-discrimination

The Group believes in the power of diversity, as it
believes that a varied workforce is essential to business
continuity. Therefore, the Group is committed to creating
and maintaining an embracing and collaborative
workplace culture. The Group aims to provide equal
opportunities in all aspects of employment and ensure
the workplace is free from discrimination, physical or
verbal harassment against any individual based on race,
religion, colour, gender, physical or mental capability, age,
place of origin, marital status, and sexual orientation. The
Group also strives to ensure that complaints, afflictions
and concerns, including whistle-blowing, are dealt with
promptly and confidentially. The Group has zero
tolerance for sexual harassment or abuse in the

workplace in any form.

Benefits and welfare

«  Benefits plans maintained by the Group include
mandatory provident fund (“MPF") scheme, medical
insurance, group life insurance and discretionary

bonuses.

« Eligible employees are rewarded through the
Group’s share option schemes and have the
opportunity to acquire shares of the Company

through these schemes.

«  Providing free fruit at work and encouraging our

employees to make healthy food choices.

«  Festive gifts were given to the employees.

«  Birthday celebrations were held for employees from

time to time.
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SOCIAL (continued)

B1. Employment (continued)
Benefits and welfare (continued)
On top of the statutory requirement, the Group makes
voluntary contributions to the MPF to enhance retirement
protection of employees. The Company and certain
subsidiaries of the Group received the Good MPF
Employer Awards for 2019/2020 presented by the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority.

B2. Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing employees a safe,
healthy and hygienic working environment. The following
sets out the practices adopted by the Group in relation to

workplace:

«  Office employees are assigned with individual
workstations. Offices are properly lit and ventilated,
kept clean and tidy with ample space between

workstations;

«  Office furniture and fittings are well-maintained and

replaced when necessary;

+  Smoking and drinking alcohol in workplace are

strictly prohibited;

«  Cleaning of air-conditioning systems and disinfection

treatment of carpets are carried out regularly;

«  Air defender and purifiers are equipped to protect
environment with antibacterial efficacy and to

remove air-suspended dust and odour;
«  First-aid boxes are set up in the offices; and
«  Security measures are in place at the offices to

restrict entry and exit only to staff and permitted

visitors.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Health and Safety (continued)
In order to combat the outbreak of COVID-19 and

safeguard the staff's health, the Group has made work
from home arrangement with split teams for employees
to work in office or work from home on shift with
reference to the public policies announced by the Hong
Kong Government from time to time in order to minimize
the risks of our staff in being infected with COVID-19
when travelling to or from our office. The Group has also
taken the following additional precautionary measures in

the offices:

«  Our staff are required to wear face masks at all

times in the offices;

. Hand sanitizers are available at the reception areas;

. Public areas of the offices are cleaned and

disinfected every day;

« Al staff and visitors are requested to measure their
body temperature and wear face masks upon

entering the office areas;

«  Delivery workers are designated to deliver at office

entrance;

«  All staff are required to report to the Group whether

he/she has travelled outside of Hong Kong;

« In case of any suspected or confirmed cases among
the staff and/or their close contacts, the Group
would immediately put the related personnel on

compulsory quarantine; and
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B.

B2.

B3.

EiaRE

SOCIAL (continued)
Health and Safety (continued)

«  The Group supports the employees’ roles and
responsibilities to their families and strives to
maintain a family-friendly work place for our
employees. We welcome their kids to come to our
workplace in case of need such as any suspension
of classes for all secondary schools, primary schools,

kindergartens, child care centres and special schools.

During the Reporting Period, there was 1 injury case,
causing 4 working days lost and 1 unconfirmed injury
case being under investigation. Apart from these, there
has been no work-related injury or fatality in the Group

for the past three years.

Development and Training

The Group acknowledges the importance of training for
the development of the employees as well as the Group.
The Group encourages and supports employees in
personal and professional training, through seminars,
workshops as well as reimbursement for external training
courses to enhance their competencies in performing
their jobs effectively and efficiently. For the year ended
31 March 2021, 20 employees have received training,
representing 63% of the employees of the Group. A total
of 98 training hours were offered to the relevant
employees, of which 49 training hours for male and 49

hours for female.
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SOCIAL (continued) B. & (&)
Development and Training (continued) B3. BEKRIFA (&)
The percentage of employees received training by gender R E R - R RERE DB ES
and category for the Reporting Period are as follows: RlEDLAT -
Percentage of employees
received training
ZillfEEzE A
By gender e pe)
Male B 40
Female 4 60
By category R R E D
Senior Management =S TR B 30
Middle Management hREIEE 55
General Staff —RET 15
For the Reporting Period, the average training hours per RBEHR  BREEFHIIIEEA
employee was 3 and the breakdown of the average 3-MmBRERIRERNE DN EEEEST
training hours per employees based on gender and BN ARBEENT ¢

category are as follows:

Average training hours

F 15 32 3 B 2L

By gender &1 Bl &l 5
Male S 6
Female g3 4
By category RERH &S
Senior Management aREEE 4
Middle Management PARERE

General Staff —RET 2

o7
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B4.

B5.

SOCIAL (continued)
Labour Standards

The Group complies with all relevant laws and regulations
and the requirements of the governing authorities and
prohibits the employment of children and forced labour.
The Group’s human resources department will ensure
that identity documents are carefully checked in order to
verify the personal data submitted by the candidates
during the recruitment process. During the Reporting
Period, all the Group's employees are aged over 18 and
no child labour has been employed. The Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with child and
forced labour-related laws and regulations, including but
not limited to the Employment Ordinance that would

have a significant impact on the Group.

Supply Chain Management

The Group strives to develop and maintain long-term and
stable relationships with our suppliers who are committed
to high quality, environmental, health and safety
standards. In selecting the suppliers, the Group takes into
account their prices, quality, services capabilities,
credibility, environmental and social performance.
Meanwhile, the Group supports and encourages the
suppliers to promote efficient use of resources and
environmental protection and fulfill corporate social

responsibility.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Product Responsibility

The Group strives to adhere to applicable laws and
regulations with regard to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating products and
services provided in our business, and to maintain
effective communication channels for redress. As the
Group is also conducting money lending business
through holding a money lenders licence in Hong Kong,
the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163) of the laws
of Hong Kong constitutes a significant influence to the

Group’s money lending business.

During the Year, there was no non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided.

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The Group values its intangible assets as much as its
tangibles. The Group protects its business against
intellectual property theft by refusing the use of illegal
software or anything without copyright or patents. The
Group supports the use of legal and intangible assets
with trademarks while protecting itself from expose to

cybersecurity threats.
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B7.

SOCIAL (continued)
Product Responsibility (continued)
Customer Privacy Protection

We only collected personal data for operational needs
and clearly inform all customers or persons about the
intended use of the data and their rights to review and
revise their information. All collected personal data is
treated as confidential and securely kept and processed

only for the purposes of which it had been collected.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any
significant non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. We did not receive any compliant concerning
breaches of clients' privacy nor we have identified any

leak or loss of client data.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance, the principles of which serve to
uphold a high standard of ethics, transparency,
responsibility and integrity in all aspect of the Group's
affairs. The Group has a zero-tolerance policy towards
behavior in association with bribery, corruption, extortion,
fraud and money laundering in its business operations.
Employees should not offer, solicit or accept anything of
material value to or from his/her colleagues, customers,

suppliers or other business partners of the Company.

The Group encourages the reporting of suspected
business irregularities within the Group and provides
reporting channels specifically for this purpose. When
suspected wrongdoings, such as breach of duty, abuse of
power and receipts of bribes are identified, staff should
report to senior management for investigation and
verification, as well as other relevant regulators or to the

law enforcement authorities when necessary.
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Anti-corruption (continued)

To prevent and detect money laundering and terrorist
financing, the Group follows the “Guideline on
Compliance of Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-
Terrorist Financing Requirements for Licensed Money
Lenders” issued by the Companies Registry and has
incorporated policies and procedures in its operations
and credit guidelines and policies, which include
procedures for customer due diligence, enhanced due
diligence, reporting of suspicious transactions, record-
keeping and staff training. Any suspicious case of money
laundering or terrorist financing which comes to the
staff's knowledge would be reported to the money
laundering reporting officer ("MLRQO") of the Group.
Taking the relevant information into account, MLRO will
evaluate the suspicious case on a case-by-case basis and
will report to the Joint Financial Intelligence Unit of the

Hong Kong Government as soon as practicable.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and
regulations in respect of anti-corruption, and no legal
cases against the Group in respect of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering has been recorded in the

Year under review.
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EiaRE

SOCIAL (continued)
Community Investment

In face of the challenges brought by the COVID-19
pandemic, the Group believes that it is critical for the
entire community to unite and work diligently together to
overcome these challenges. During the year, the Group
made donations of HK$65,000, which included but not
limited to the purchase of 1,000 boxes (in aggregate of
50,000 pieces) of adult medical face masks to different
charitable organizations. Also, we encourage our
employees to take part in charitable activities and

community services.

Certain companies in the Group have been awarded for
decade the “Caring Company” logo by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service in recognition of its contribution
to society and serving of the community. The Group will
continue to maximize its social investments where
possible in order to create a more favourable

environment for the community.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

The directors of the Company (the "Directors”) present their
report and the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Company comprise investment
holding and securities trading. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries comprise money lending, cruise ship charter

services, property investments and securities trading.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2021 and the

Group's financial position at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 94 to 260.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any

dividends in respect of the year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on pages 261
and 262. This summary does not form part of the audited

financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share options during

the year are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

There were no movements in the Company's share capital

during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company's listed securities

during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2021, the Company's reserves available for
distribution amounted to HK$710,974,000.

Under the laws of Bermuda, the amount standing to the credit
of the share premium account of the Company of
approximately HK$354,993,000 as at 31 March 2021 may be

distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company in the amount of
approximately HK$162,587,000 as at 31 March 2021 is
distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances as

prescribed by section 54 thereof.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totalling HK$65,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the aggregate revenue attributable to
the five largest customers accounted for 16% of the Group's
total revenue, which included fair value gains on equity
investments in aggregate of HK$8,079,000 for the year. The
aggregate revenue attributable to the largest customer

accounted for 4% of the Group's total revenue for the year.

No major suppliers were identified.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company's issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five

largest customers mentioned above.

FHLEEEEETRAA
Annual Report 2021 F3k

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

RAFE - NEBEHZEEBRE 565,000

FEEFRMHER

BEFERN  REBARKEFEHLZBKRA
EREEFRNBRA (RIEREREZAT
B {E Wz A $£8,079,000/8TT) Z16% ° &K
EPEMZRBRRAGAEEFNERAZ
40/ -

I 4 3B Rl B AE (o] = B FERE o

ARREERREE AN 2BBEALIBER (B
E=ABEEARRRE BITRAS%IA L) H
BERELAAEEREASRAKEFTHREETMNE
PRAELS -

65



66

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S B EF B ER 2 A

Annual Report 2021 £3§

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chairman)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer)
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

In accordance with the Company's bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2),
Mr. Yu Wai Man, Mr. Ho Yau Ming and Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok
will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves

for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received from each of the three current
independent non-executive directors (namely Mr. Cheung
Chun Kwok, Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming)
an annual confirmation of independence and as at the date of

this report still considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

(a) Executive Directors

Mr. Ng Wee Keat Chairman of the Company and the
Nomination Committee and member of the
Remuneration Committee

Aged 44. Mr. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in January 2003 and was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company in April 2004. Mr. Ng
was re-designated from the chief executive officer to the
chairman of the Company in March 2012. Mr. Ng also
holds directorship in various members of the Group since
January 2003. Mr. Ng graduated from Indiana University
with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics. Mr. Ng is a
director of Huang Worldwide Holding Limited (“HWHL"),
the immediate holding company of New Century
Investment Pacific Limited (“NCIPL"), which is the
controlling shareholder of the Company. In addition, Mr.
Ng is a director of NCIPL. Mr. Ng is a younger brother of
Ms. Lilian Ng and an elder brother of Ms. Ng Siew Lang,
Linda. Mr. Ng is also a cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. They
are all executive directors of the Company. Mr. Ng is a
son of Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng who is the settlor
and the trustee of a discretionary trust which holds the
entire interest in Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate
holding company of the Company. Mr. Ng did not hold
any directorship in other listed public companies in the

last three years.
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Aged 54. Ms. Sio joined the Company as an executive
director in October 2002 and was appointed as the
deputy chairman of the Company in October 2004. Ms.
Sio also holds directorship in various members of the
Group since August 2000. Ms. Sio has over 26 years of
extensive management experience in various fields
including retailing, property investments, tourism and
entertainment. Ms. Sio is a director of HWHL, the
immediate holding company of NCIPL, which is the
controlling shareholder of the Company. In addition, Ms.
Sio is a director of NCIPL. Ms. Sio did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last

three years.

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda Chief Operating Officer

Aged 43. Ms. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in June 2003 and was appointed as the chief
operating officer of the Company in October 2004. Ms.
Ng also holds directorship in various members of the
Group since November 2003. Ms. Ng brings to the Group
experience in the fields of real estate management,
human resource management and retail operations. Ms.
Ng graduated with a Bachelor of Arts degree majoring in
Telecommunications and a minor in Computer Science
from Indiana University. Ms. Ng is a younger sister of Ms.
Lilian Ng and Mr. Ng Wee Keat. Ms. Ng is also a cousin
of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. They are all executive directors of
the Company. Ms. Ng is a daughter of Mr. Ng (Huang)
Cheow Leng who is the settlor and the trustee of a
discretionary trust which holds the entire interest in
Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Ms. Ng did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last

three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Lilian Ng (also known as Ms. Huang Lilian)

Aged 47. Ms. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in July 2002. Ms. Ng also holds directorship in
various members of the Group since September 2002.
Ms. Ng graduated from San Francisco State University
with a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration. Ms.
Ng has extensive experience in hotel management. Ms.
Ng is a director of NCIPL, which is the controlling
shareholder of the Company. Ms. Ng is the elder sister of
Mr. Ng Wee Keat and Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda. Ms. Ng is
also a cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. They are all executive
directors of the Company. Ms. Ng is a daughter of Mr. Ng
(Huang) Cheow Leng who is the settlor and the trustee
of a discretionary trust which holds the entire interest in
Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Ms. Ng did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last

three years.

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Aged 56. Ms. Chen joined the Company as an executive
director in May 2000. Ms. Chen also holds directorship in
various members of the Group since August 2000. Ms.
Chen holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree and is an
associate member of the Australian Society of Certified
Practising Accountants. Ms. Chen has over 33 years of
experience in the accounting field, including 4 years in
auditing. Ms. Chen is a cousin of Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms.
Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Lilian Ng. They are all
executive directors of the Company. Ms. Chen is a niece
of Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng who is the settlor and
the trustee of a discretionary trust which holds the entire
interest in Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate
holding company of the Company. Ms. Chen did not hold
any directorship in other listed public companies in the

last three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

HHELEEEEERLA

Mr. Yu Wai Man Member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee

Aged 56. Mr. Yu joined the Company in August 1997
and was appointed as an executive director of the
Company in October 2004. Mr. Yu also holds directorship
in various members of the Group since September 1997.
Mr. Yu is a fellow member of both of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over 36
years of experience in the accounting field, including 3
years in external audit and 2 years in internal audit. Mr.
Yu has over 28 years of financial experience in
companies listed in Hong Kong and London. Mr. Yu did
not hold any directorship in other listed public companies

in the last three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(b) Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok Chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee and
member of the Nomination Committee

Aged 56. Mr. Cheung joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in June 2012 and
was appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee in September 2012.
Mr. Cheung is also a member of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Cheung graduated from Edith Cowan
University of Australia and received his postgraduate
diploma of financial management from the University of
London. Since returning to Hong Kong in 1990, he has
been extending international opportunities for Chinese
large state-owned and privately-owned enterprises. Mr.
Cheung is a Practising Certified Public Accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
Certified Practising Accountant of the Australian Society of
Certified Practising Accountants and a Certified Tax
Adviser of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr.
Cheung is the director of Global CPA (HK) Limited
(Representative of Integra International) and has
extensive experience in mergers and acquisitions and the
tax aspect. Mr. Cheung oversees the day-to-day running
of the finance function and is directly responsible for
financial reporting, corporate governance, tax and
corporate finance for multi-national companies including
state-owned enterprises and listed enterprises. Mr.
Cheung also has extensive international accounting
experience and has worked in CPA firms in the US and
Australia. Mr. Cheung has served as a member of the
Small and Medium Practitioners Committee, the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Professional Service Advisory Committee of the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council and International
Committee and a Certified Business Intermediary of the
International Business Brokers Association. Currently, Mr.
Cheung is a member of the Small and Medium
Practitioners Committee of CPA Australia. Mr. Cheung did
not hold any directorship in other listed public companies
in the last three years and any other positions with the
Company or other members of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued) EEHE (&)
(b) Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)  (b) B FHITEE (&)

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth Member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee

Aged 74. Mr. Kwan joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in April 2003. Mr.
Kwan is also a member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Kwan holds a Bachelor of Applied
Science degree in Civil Engineering and a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree with Honours from the
University of Toronto and the University of Windsor
respectively. Mr. Kwan has 8 years of experience in the
accounting and tax auditing fields together with over 40
years of experience in the real estate business and
business agent. Mr. Kwan did not hold any directorship in
other listed public companies in the last three years and
any other positions with the Company or other members

of the Group.

Mr. Ho Yau Ming Member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee

Aged 70. Mr. Ho joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in April 2003. Mr. Ho is also a
member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Ho holds
a Master degree in Finance from the University of
Leicester in England. Mr. Ho had worked in the banking
industry for over 27 years in official and senior executive
positions including The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited and Dao Heng Bank Limited. Mr. Ho
did not hold any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years and any other positions

with the Company or other members of the Group.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, no Directors proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Company or its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors' fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company's board of directors with reference to Directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group. Further details can be found in note 8 to the financial

statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
During the year ended 31 March 2021, a permitted indemnity

provision as defined in the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
was in force for indemnity liabilities incurred by the directors

of the Company to a third party.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director nor a connected entity of a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company, or any of the
Company’s holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow

subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as

follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

HHELEEEEERLA

EERBETRAERKROREEH
Rz zEZERAR

R-B-_—F=ZA=1t—H ARAEEK
RETBRABRARRHEEMBEER (F
ERBLSLBEGH (EHEBEERG])
EXVER) 2Bt RARER NP EERIEEF
KB HHIEIS2ELABRBAERRFREZ
BffftAzEm AR HRBEESTHZ
REMAMGARRA MBS MRE
m

RARBEBRZIFE :

Number of ordinary shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

BFEEERHE  SORESENE

Directly Through

beneficially controlled

Directors owned corporation

s ERBERESR ZEHDHE

Mr. Ng Wee Keat - 220,192,000

HIEHELE (note 2)

(PaE2)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan 52,000,000 220,192,000

BHBELT (note 2)

(PH3E2)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda - 220,192,000

BEHEWA T (note 2)

(P 7E2)

Ms. Lilian Ng = 220,192,000

BENELZL (note 2)

(PH3E2)

Ms. Chen Ka Chee 8,400,000 -
RSt

Mr. Yu Wai Man 3,360,000 -

REXKE

Percentage of
the Company’s

Beneficiary issued share
of a trust Total capital
EARARE BT
ERZERA &t BAZE DL
3,556,133,691 3,776,325,691 65.33
(note 3)
(B3E3)
3,556,133,691 3,828,325,691 66.23
(note 3)
(P 7E3)
3,556,133,691 3,776,325,691 65.33
(note 3)
(f&E3)
3,556,133,691 3,776,325,691 65.33
(note 3)
(P 5E3)
= 8,400,000 0.15
= 3,360,000 0.06
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (continued)

Long positions in share options of the Company:

Directors

BEx

Mr. Ng Wee Keat =EELEE
Ms. Sio lon Kuan B L
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda FEHEBZ T
Ms. Lilian Ng mAER L
Ms. Chen Ka Chee PRA& R 2 £
Mr. Yu Wai Man REXRE

Notes:

1. As at 31 March 2021, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was 5,780,368,705.

2. 220,192,000 shares were held by New Century (Huang's)
Foundation Limited, a company limited by guarantee being a
charitable institution of public character of which Mr. Ng Wee
Keat, Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Lilian

Ng are members and members of its council of management.

3. 3,556,133,691 shares were held by New Century Investment
Pacific Limited which is ultimately owned by Huang Group (BVI)
Limited under a discretionary trust of which Mr. Ng Wee Keat,
Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Lilian Ng are

the discretionary beneficiaries.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had registered
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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EERBRETRAERKROREEH
Ry zEmRAR (&)

RARBIBRE TR

Number of share options
directly beneficially owned

EREZBER2BERERA

21,000,000
11,000,000
18,000,000
18,000,000
16,000,000
16,000,000

100,000,000

B &E -

. RZE-_—F=ZA=+—H ' ARQRRZBE%*
1T R 42 81 55,780,368, 7050% °

2. 220,192,000l B #Ftt4 (ER) BEHE
CHERAFEE  Z2AAERERERA
A WEA—RALBZWE  FEGKE
BMEBELL BEHEELIRENELTAZ
RAIZKEREBZEGNKE -

3. 3,556,133,6910% &k 9 ANew Century
Investment Pacific Limited¥$4 + W FiHuang
Group (BVI) Limited:& 8 & S rEmALHEH ©
ZHEEEETIZEEX=ABEEEGELE -
BENLLT =FEELIREMNELL -

BREXFBEBEEN R —F=H
=t+—HB ARFAEFRESTBRAEHE
RN B 3 E R fRI AR B A B 2 AR £ 3548 A AR
MHPREERIEESRBAEKROFEI52EEE
FEZERESKE B BIRETR ZREM
AMEARNARBMIAZEREIAR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any director of the Company, as at 31

March 2021, other than the interests of the directors of the

Company as disclosed above, the following interests of 5% or

more of the issued share capital of the Company were

recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Shareholders

&S

New Century Investment Pacific Limited

Huang Worldwide Holding Limited

Huang Group (BVI) Limited

Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng
=RBEE

Notes:

Notes

B &

2,4

2,3

3,4

1.  As at 31 March 2021, the total number of issued shares of the

Company was 5,780,368,705.

2. Huang Group (BVI) Limited is the ultimate holding company of

New Century Investment Pacific Limited. Huang Worldwide

Holding Limited is the immediate holding company of New

Century Investment Pacific Limited. Accordingly, Huang Group
(BVI) Limited and Huang Worldwide Holding Limited were

deemed to be interested in a total of 3,556,133,691 shares.

HHELEEEEERLA

FERRRHEMATRARG KA
R zEBRAR

RARREMESEAA R-FE_—F=A
=t—H BREXABEBEARREZTZ#ER
SN AE AR R E B #EITIRAS% A £ 2 T
BB IREESF LB G336/ ER
ARRRIARTFZEZB LM :

RARREBRZHFR

Zl

Number of Percentage of the
ordinary Company'’s issued
shares held share capital
HERQARE BT
FREBERYE REZBD L
3,556,133,691 61.52
3,556,133,691 61.52
3,556,133,691 61.52
4,182,369,691 72.35

B FE

. RZE-_—F=ZA=+—H AQARIZE%
1T 48 85 55,780,368, 7050% °

2. Huang Group (BVI) LimitedZNew Century
Investment Pacific LimitedZ fx 44 A% A 7] °
Huang Worldwide Holding Limited/&New
Century Investment Pacific LimitedZ B 45
B A& o Bk - Huang Group (BVI) Limited &
Huang Worldwide Holding Limited##18 A # &
& #£3,556,133,691IRIR 17 < #Es °
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

3. Huang Group (BVI) Limited is held by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow
Leng in his capacity as the settlor and the trustee of a

discretionary trust.

4.  3,556,133,691 shares were held by New Century Investment
Pacific Limited. 220,192,000 shares were held by New Century
(Huang's) Foundation Limited while 406,044,000 shares were
held by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng. Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow
Leng is one of the members of New Century (Huang's)
Foundation Limited. Accordingly, Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng
was deemed to be interested in a total of 4,182,369,691
shares. New Century (Huang's) Foundation Limited is a company
limited by guarantee being a charitable institution of public

character.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, no person
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who was recorded in the register of the Company had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would be required to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 4
September 2012, ordinary resolutions were passed for the
adoption of a share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option
Scheme”) and the termination of the share option scheme of
the Company adopted on 23 September 2002 (the “2002
Share Option Scheme”). Outstanding share options granted
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme prior to the termination
shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with
the 2002 Share Option Scheme. Further details of the 2012
Share Option Scheme and the 2002 Share Option Scheme
are disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements.
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FERRRHEMATRRG REHE
B zERR KR (H)

BEE - (48)

3. Huang Group (BVI) Limitedh & g B %t 4 LA
—EARREEEZRTAREEASTHES -

4. 3,556,133,6910% % 7 BANew Century
Investment Pacific Limitedf & -
220,192,000 Bty Tt 42 (B ) B E &
BB AR FHE - M406,044,0008% B 17 F
HRBEERE EBBLERAFHERL (B
R)IZEESBERARZEF—UKE - R
b ERMBEERBERARER S H
4,182,369,691 ik {n 2 #E s - #TtE4E (BX)
REECARRAAR—RERERLQA
ER—RAHEZHE -

BREXFEBREAN RZZE=Z—F=A
=t+—B #BERAARAECMEHE AL
(KRBESHHZEETEHABRIN RARAR
ZBRMSEERND R EREBREZS RHAEK
PIZEXVERE2 R E35 & 2 R E A M AR B4
BIZRENAE  IRBEFLHRBEKOE
3Z6IEMEARARNRBFMREECM 24
WK ©

BREsE

KRB —FNAMBRITZARGKERE
FREL TEABREBRAUKRN—BEE
IHEETE ([ ——FBRETE]) - AR
EARRRRZZE_FNAZ+T=ZBEMAZ
BREAS (ST _FERESE]) - B
BT _FERES - NRIERE=
ST FRHRREGFIREmERITEZER
EHEERRLA TIIE - BRAS—=F
BREAER ST _FRHRRESECE
RS BBERP BRI 26 o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(a) 2002 Share Option Scheme

The exercise period of the outstanding share options
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme expired on 21
January 2021.

The following table discloses the movements of the
outstanding share options granted under the 2002 Share

Option Scheme during the year:

Number of share options

BREHE
Lapsed/
At expired At
Name or category 1 April during 31 March
of participant 2020 the year 2021
R-2-%F RER R-B=-F
SEEREALER ME-B %¥/E® ZA=1-BH
Directors
Bz
Mr. Ng Wee Keat 45,000,000 (45,000,000 =
BRELE
Ms. Sio lon Kuan 45,000,000  (45,000,000) -
RERLT

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda 35,000,000  (35,000,000)
ERBuT

Ms. Lilian Ng 35,000,000 (35,000,000)
RAETT

R ESE (]

@) —EZE_FHERETE
T FEREE T EARITERR
B2IEHER B —F—A=+—
BEm -

TREBERAFE BE_ZTT_FE
PREEIRE M ARTTEZEREZE

& :

Date of Exercise Exercise

grant of period of price of

share options share options  share options*

BReE BRE BRE

it B & T fTeEE

HKS per share

BRET

21-01-2011  21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 0.2100
“F——f “F——F-f-+-HE
—A-t—H —E_-f-FZ1H

21-01-2011  21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 0.2100
“2——% _Z——%-f-+-BF
—A=1—H “E--%-A-+H

21-01-2011  21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 02100
“2——% _Z——%-H-t-H%
—RA=+—H “E_-%-A-+H

21-01-2011  21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 0.2100

“f—f ¥ —F-A-t-A%
—A=+—H “Z-—-F-H-+H
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(a) 2002 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Name or category
of participant

SREMZAFR

Directors (continued)
Ex ()

Ms. Chen Ka Chee
BBt

Mr. Yu Wai Man
REXEE

Other employees
HitES

In aggregate

A
af

Total

A
=]

i The exercise price of the share options is subject to

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

Number of share options

BREHE

Lapsed/
At expired At
1 April during 31 March
2020 the year 2021
RZEZEE RER R-B--F
mA-B %X%/E® =A=t-AH
25,000,000  (25,000,000) =
28,000,000 (28,000,000 =
213,000,000 (213,000,000 =
39,040,000  (39,040,000) =
252,040,000  (252,040,000) =

similar changes in the Company's share capital.

FHELEEFTEERLQA
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EEERE
BRERTE (F)
() —ET-FHERESE (&)
Date of Exercise Exercise
grant of period of price of
share options share options  share options*
B BRE BRE
REBH T @
HK$ per share
gRAET
21-01-2011  21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 02100
“F-% ZF-—F-A-f+-RE
—A=+-H —F_—%-H-TH
21-01-2011  21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 0.2100
%% ZF—f-A=t-BE%
—RZ+—H “Z--%-HA-+H
21-01-2011  21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021 02100
= i e A -+~ HE
g —F-—F—H-+H

BREZTEETRRBERKETO
B HAARBEAZHEMBEUZLS T

T AR -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(b) 2012 Share Option Scheme
The following table discloses the movements of the
outstanding share options granted under the 2012 Share

Option Scheme during the year:

Name or category
of participant

SREBZAER

Directors

gz
Mr. Ng Wee Keat
AEHREE

Ms. Sio lon Kuan

RERLL

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda

BREMLL

Ms. Lilian Ng
BAELL

Ms. Chen Ka Chee
BRETL

Mr. Yu Wai Man
REXEE

Number of share options

BREHA
At Lapsed At
1 April during 31 March
2020 the year 2021
R-B=-%F RER R-B=-%
A—-H %% ZR=+-H
21,000,000 - 21,000,000
11,000,000 - 11,000,000
18,000,000 = 18,000,000
18,000,000 - 18,000,000
16,000,000 = 16,000,000
16,000,000 = 16,000,000
100,000,000 - 100,000,000

HHELEEEEERLA

R ESE (]

(b) —B— = FHBRE B
TREBREFE RE-T— 58
R A 145 L T 0o 7 158 2 R A 2

EE

Date of

grant of
share options
BhiE
REAH

03-09-2013
—F-=F%

NR=H

03-09-2013
“E-=F

hAZR

03-09-2013
“E-=%
NA=H

03-09-2013
“2-=F

hAZ=AR

03-09-2013
“T—=F
NAZH

03-09-2013
“E-=%
NA=H

Exercise
period of
share options
B
T

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E-ZFNA=HZ
“E-=FNACH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E-=FNA=HAE
“E--FNACH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E-=#HA=ZHZ
“E-=FNAZH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
—Z-ZFNA=HZ
“E-ZFNACH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“ET-=FHA=HZE
—E-=FNAZH

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
“E-=FfA=HZ
“E-=FNAZH

Exercise

price of
share options*
BRE
TR

HK$ per share
BRET

0.1532

0.1532

0.1532

0.1532

0.1532

0.1532
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(b) 2012 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Number of share options

BREXE
At Lapsed At

Name or category 1 April during 31 March
of participant 2020 the year 2021

R-Z2-%F RER R-B--F
SRELZDER MA-A %% =ZA=t-H
Other employees
HitfES
In aggregate 34,600,000 (1,800,000) 32,800,000
af
Total 134,600,000 (1,800,000) 132,800,000
a4

& The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

similar changes in the Company's share capital.

As at 31 March 2021, the Company had 132,800,000 share
options outstanding under the Company’'s share option
schemes. Should they be fully exercised, the Company will
receive additional share capital of HK$332,000 and share
premium of approximately HK$25,875,000 (before issue
expenses). The fair value of these unexercised options
measured in accordance with the Group's accounting policy
(note 2.4 to the financial statements) amounted to
approximately HK$5,862,000 as at the grant date.
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B ARAE B ()
(b) —B— = FHREHE ()

Date of Exercise Exercise

grant of period of price of

share options share options  share options*

BhiE BRE B

REAH T e

HK$ per share

gRAET

03-09-2013  03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023 0.1532
—F-=% “2-Z5NAZRZE
NA=H ZEZ=FhAZH

* ERECZTEETEEMSRSBTL
B HADTRAZ EMBEUEE T
FIAAE
RZT=Z—F=A=+—8 ' BREARAE
% #E 5t & - A2 FF132,800,00017 B % &
ARITEE © B BEITEZEBRE  ~AQ
&) 15 & Uk B %8 5) 3% AX332,0007% JT & B 19 i
{B#925,875,000 7T (R MK EFITHR ) - N
REBHE  ZERRITEZEBRERERSE
BestBR (MBmRME24) 5 222F
{E{E#%75,862,0007%8 JT °
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of the
Directors or their respective spouses or minor children, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the

Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total number of issued shares were held by the

public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for its reappointment as
auditor will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Wee Keat

Chairman

Hong Kong
28 June 2021

HHELEEEEERLA

BRESE (&)

B EXHEEIN RAFEEMRMEHE £
MEFHRES A ZRBIARKEF TR E
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BILZERTER &
Ernst & Young ZXEFENE AT Tel EB5%: +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place BB Fax {8E: +852 2868 4432
979 King’'s Road HEEI79%R ey.com
EY Quarry Bay, Hong Kong Kty — FEo7ig
ik
To the shareholders of FFHLEEEEERATARKRE

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New
Century Group Hong Kong Limited (the "Company") and its
subsidiaries (the "Group") set out on pages 94 to 260, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(RERZZMELZBERLE])

=
HMEEIIEREIME260E WA &
EEEERAB(EAA]) EWERA
(ATHEIERE]) A BwRE - M
BREBER-_ZT-_—F=A=+—HHK
EMBRAREREZALFENGAER
R OHMETHBRER KREEmZBHRNK
BHRERER  URGAUBHRME &
BRIESTBEME -

BHRR ZEEAVBRRERETES
A ((BEGAMAE]) BHNCER
MBRELER)((EEMBRELEL]) EE
mesRRT EXER_FT_—F=H
=T BENEREMBERAARBEZALFE
MM BRARGARENRE YO ER
FE(RAGRID N RBEREZ SHE -
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B ERET R &

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided

in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide
the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying

consolidated financial statements.

HHELEEEEERLA

ERNER
BMEREELEEFMASHMN(EERE
RPEAD (THFEF LR ETES - A
EZEEANTAENREECEARE/EH
ERL &l #n & I B A SE R B AL B0
tEE— Ml - RIFEFEGFEAGHMH
(BXEapEETRA)ATEREITRI) -
BMBYR BES5E YERETTRPHHE
b BERERAE - HARE - RFIAESH
BIHEERRA T NEEWABMANEAER
TR ERE -

BRETEE

FRETFESREXMANERHE  RA
BAMGEAVBERENEITRR/EENS
He BLEEHEEERMBABEBEAMBR
KENEEBARETREN R TSHE
LEFREEBNER - HRUATHEESE
B B EOARERBSEENRLE

HERHEH -

BPIBITT NRE K BEN B F ot 45 B8 T
WEAENE X —BARBEENEE B
ERELEEME - At - RAWESTHE
BRATAEERMAHREMBRREAR
AR Rt B R\ B ) B £ T AR AT BV AR o BTG
B REF (EREAREBEUATEEMATHE
FIRER  RRAUERES M BRI
BB AR ER -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BB R &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FRETSEHE(H)

Key audit matters

REETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EMWEFOMEEERETER

Impairment assessment of loan and interest receiva

P& U & 3K e R SR R (B R4

bles

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s net loan and
interest receivables amounted to approximately
HK$659,260,000, which represented approximately
31% of the total assets. Provision for impairment
losses on loan and interest receivables under the
expected credit loss ("ECL") model amounted to
approximately HK$2,601,000.
RZEBEZ—F=ZA=+—H EBEXENEKRER
Ko F) BF L £9659,260,000/ 7T G R EELIZ1% °
BREAREREX ((BRHERBEXDERX  FHE
W E R &S H R E B R # 492,601,000/ 7T

The measurement of ECL is inherently subjective
which involves significant management judgements
and assumptions regarding the probability of default,
loss given default, historical delinquency ratio of loan
and interest receivables, collateral values and
economic indicators on forward-looking information.
EEHERABRAANELBEEEN HIPRBHE
WEREMEMBAOBX BOBERX FLERX
bpl - EFREE ARBALERENREEE
BHERNERE A 6 R RE -

We obtained the understanding of the Group's policy
on granting loans to its borrowers and the Group's
credit and impairment assessments including the
related credit control and loan monitoring process. We
evaluated the reasonableness of management's loss
allowance estimates on loan and interest receivables
by examining the information used by management
to form such judgements, including testing the
accuracy of the historical default data, evaluating
whether the historical loss rates are appropriately
adjusted based on current conditions and forward-
looking information and examining the actual losses
recorded during the current financial year and
assessing whether there was an indication of
management bias when recognising loss allowances.
We carried out procedures, on a sample basis, on the
settlement made by borrowers during the year and
their subsequent settlement with reference to the
repayment schedule, and tested the existence and
accuracy for the classification of stages of loan and
interest receivables applied in the ECL model as at
the end of the reporting period. We involved our
internal valuation expert to assist us in reviewing the
valuation methodology and approach adopted by
management in the ECL model. We also considered
the adequacy of disclosures in the consolidated

financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

HHELEEEEERLA

BRETEHE(H)

Key audit matters
BRESBR

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

RMNEFNMEEARETSEE

Impairment assessment of loan and interest receiva

P E MK R SR E R ()

bles (continued)

The accounting policies and disclosures are included
in notes 2.4, 3 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.
BRERRLRBEBEINGAYFEERRME24 3
K17 -

Hfs EEBERNEERABRTERUL E5E
EENBREFGENERER (BERABNEEZENRER
ERRE)RSETH BRMSBEEREEEER UL
REBABNER (BEANSELEOBIENERE
) FIAELBRAREEEREE MR KA E
EEFELEERE  URBRERAPRFEESH
ERBLR UAFGHEEEERABRARERES
FERIOTR  EMAEEEBHREEERET
BEHEBEREEGHITNaEMNE - RARMETRX 2
RERFHEEK - BERARKFE AL EERKIA
NEBHERBRATER  ARBARBEHR
ERERABANERBRAEAHREER RN S#
THEEDBAREERE - RABRMAABOMHE
EX28H GHRMAEAEEEEREREABRRRE
APAEANGETERTR - RFTEEEES
MBERRANKEESEEH -




New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FHLEEEEETRAA
Annual Report 2021 F3k

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BB R &

FRETSEHE(H)

Key audit matters

REETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EMWEFOMEEFARETSEEH

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

REVMEN D FEEMES

As at 31 March 2021, investment properties
measured at fair value amounted to approximately
HK$540,780,000, which represented approximately
25% of the total assets, with the corresponding net
fair value losses recognised in profit or loss of
approximately HK$19,486,000. The valuation process
is inherently subjective, and dependent on a number
of significant unobservable inputs, such as the market
price per square foot, market rent per square foot and
capitalisation rate. The Group engaged external
valuers to perform the valuation for the investment
properties.

RZEZ_—F=A=+—H UR2ATEEFENRKR
B W)X #1540,780,000/8 7T * HERBEEH25%
THEEEZAERLATEEEREFHELD
19,486,000/ 7L BB EAE L BEXHME - L B
BIEETEARTABRBAR  fINEFHRTS
B BFFRMESHEEEENMELEE - SEREI
BAEEMSIREYEETHE-

The accounting policies and disclosures are included

in notes 2.4, 3 and 14 to the consolidated financial

statements.
FUEHBARRERRNGA R BREMT24 3
R14 -

We considered the competence, capability and
objectivity of the valuation experts engaged by the
Group. We also obtained an understanding of the
work of the valuation experts. In addition, we
evaluated the appropriateness of the work performed
by the valuation experts. This included assessing the
relevance, completeness and accuracy of the data
used as inputs for the valuation by comparing to
market data if available, and assessing the relevance
and reasonableness of the major assumptions and
methodologies adopted in the valuation. We also
involved our internal valuation experts to assist us in
evaluating the assumptions and methodologies for
the valuation of the investment properties held by the
Group. We also considered the adequacy of
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

HMEZRE EEEMZEMNGEEZERNES K
REREBIML - RNt TRBMEEZEROIE - bLid
BT THEERMETNIERESAE &6
1535 1B BT 5 R (AT B ) 1T BT B 1E
BRAEBNRENOEBE  TEERERLE AR
AEEETAEANEIERRETERSHBRS
BoHZMTHERMATNEEERSE  HEHHAM
At EEEMFAREVENGEPZIBERA

Ao BANEEBEAMBERRANBESTEH
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

HHELEEEEERLA

BRETEHE(H)

Key audit matters
BRESBR

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

RMNEFNMEEARETSEE

Estimation of fair value of cruise ships

By D FEEMGE

As at 31 March 2021, a cruise ship measured at fair
value included in property, plant and equipment and
a cruise ship measured at fair value less costs to sell
included in non-current asset held for sale amounted
to approximately HK$120,435,000 and
HK$27,195,000, respectively with the corresponding
revaluation deficit of approximately HK$66,713,000
and revaluation surplus of HK$7,085,000 recognised
in profit or loss and other comprehensive income
respectively for the year ended 31 March 2021. The
valuation process is inherently subjective, and
dependent on a number of estimates, such as the
market price per unit, rate of newness and market
discount rate. The Group engaged an external valuer
to perform the valuation for the cruise ships.
RZEBEZ—F=ZA=+—H BEEVE BER
REEANRFEEAENEH  UAREBEEFARF
ERERBDEEN AR FEERELEKRFTEN
Wim - H ¥ H HI4120,435,0008 7T K&27,195,000
BT RBEZE_ZE-_—F=A=+—HBLFERN"
HESNEREEEME2EK G NEREMEALLD
66,713,000/ 7T I & {4 £ #~7,085,000/8 7T ° & {E18
BAREFFEXZ8U  WABRFE TR flanE
BUMBER KAXEWBTMNE S£ECE
SNES {h (B RID 6 50 dm AT (A (A o

The accounting policies and disclosures are included
in notes 2.4, 3, 12 and 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.
BHSABRRRKBEHNGE B RRWME24 3
12813 -

We considered the competence, capability and
objectivity of the valuation expert engaged by the
Group. We also obtained an understanding of the
work of the valuation expert. In addition, we evaluated
the appropriateness of the work performed by the
valuation expert. This included assessing the
relevance, completeness and accuracy of the data
used as inputs for the valuation, and assessing the
relevance and reasonableness of the major
assumptions and methodologies adopted in the
valuation by making enquiries to the valuation expert.
We also involved our internal valuation experts to
assist us in evaluating the major assumptions and
methodologies of the valuation of cruise ships held by
the Group, which included performing independent
market research. We also considered the adequacy of
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
HMEZERE ESEMZEENGEERNEN K
REREEML - BHML THRBMEEZEROIE - 1t
BAFETHEERMETOIERSAE -ER
REARAGREERELERANEAERERAED
BB AR B REEE - LR EEED
FIRANEERBZRTEZRGHAREE - K MR
ARAABNEEZR2E  BHHEMTE EF
EfBEERNEEPIIZERIRTE Hh e
BETBLTSHAE RFATEZERESMBEE
N BBEEEEH -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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EERBESEMBHRRAUMEFTTBRE
hRTTRENBERAFEEREBEREUTFE
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BN RFFRERMERNE A RELFTF
MR HI B &
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ERET R &

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing

the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.
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AIRAREER -



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt K S EEF B E R 2 7

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

« lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the directors.

Annual Report 2021 F3k

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BB R &
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ERET R &

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

«  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

BRBMBET RSN BRRAED
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to

eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor's report is Chan Ching Man.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road

Quarry Bay
Hong Kong

28 June 2021
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HHELEEEEERLA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

ZFeEEE
Year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—F=ZA=+—HIFE

REVENUE

Cost of services provided

Gross profit

Other income

Administrative and operating expenses

Foreign exchange differences, net

Deficit on revaluation of cruise ships

Fair value losses on investment
properties, net

Finance costs

Reversal of/(provision for)
impairment losses on loan and
interest receivables

Provision for impairment loss on
repossessed asset

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Basic

Diluted

Notes

B &
A 5

TR L IRBACA

£

HAgA 5
TREEERY
BN =% F8
B EHEL 12
REWEZRATEE

BB F8 14
BMEKA 7
JE U & 5 K B

REEBRR,

(B ) 17
BEEEMNRE

EERE 19

BRBATER, (B1])

(o)}

FEHER 9
EEERR (BR)
AR AL eSS

ARAEBA
RS

RARALERRE
BEAEGEER
BA,/ (EE) 11

YN

2021 2020
—E--f —TFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET
100,360 145,364
(15,668) (19,499)
84,692 125,865
4,131 12,044
(75,793) (50,585)
1,269 (2,393)
(66,713) (172)
(19,486) (24,634)
(10) (5)
1,050 (1,971)
(300) -
(71,160) 58,149
(8,775) (9,514)
(79,935) 48,635
(56,712) 15,461
(23,223) 33,174
(79,935) 48,635

HK(0.98) cents&l

HK0.27 centsi& Ll

HK(0.98) centsi&l

HK0.27 centsi Ll
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEEZEWER

Year ended 31 March 2021
BHE-_T-_—F=ZA=+—HI&FE

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/(LOSS)

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
that may be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences:
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation
of cruise ships

Surplus on revaluation of a property

Change in fair value of equity
investment designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Net other comprehensive income
that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

FEERRN(BHE)

Htt2mEWKE
(B8

LA1% B T B B T
DEEBESENEAM

2EkE S (BR)

X
R FIME B R
EAME R £

A& AR S T2 EH
DRERGZONEAM

2EE S (BR)

B EMmBH
(B Ak)

MEZER[ER

e AR A T EE A
Hin 2 AR RIE
53 0 2 F (B

BB e EH
DEEBESENEAM
R e g

FEEHMBR2ENRE
(B18) - HIBRB K

rEEEEKE
(B18) B8

AT AR :
RAFEE A
FEIR AR AR 2

Notes

B EE

2021 2020
—E-—F —_ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
(79,935) 48,635

20,338 (21,582)

7,085 (7,787)
- 8,097

1,944 (39)
9,029 271

29,367 (21,311)
(50,568) 27,324

(34,686) (979)
(15,882) 28,303
(50,568) 27,324
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HHELEEEEERLA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HFEMBIRRAER
31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Equity investment designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Prepayments and other receivables
Loan receivables

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade receivables

Loan and interest receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Non-current asset held for sale

Repossessed assets

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accruals, other payables and
deposits received

Lease liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Tax payable

Due to the intermediate
holding company

Loan advanced from a non-controlling
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary

Total current liabilities

FRBEE

ME - BER&E
REME
EEREAFEE
EAS 6

B R A

TR SRR B HL A e B R
e M &5

FREE E AR

RBEE
&Y E 5 BR 3R
FEW B SR B A B
BAZIE - BER
Ho A & U R R
REGENERBEE
BEEE
BRFEEFA
BamRERE
QIR qEIE> A

RBe R FEY

BB ERE

hREBAE

FERT IR ~ H AR
R REKIEE
HE&E
BRFEEFA
BammEeRaE
e IR

e EE AR A A
IR
REBEM B QR ZFFERKR
BRR BN Z &R

mBRERRE

¢

Notes

B EE

12
14

15
16
17

18
17

16
13
19

20

21

22
12

23

31(b)

31(d)

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
252,290 338,070
540,780 551,576
3,457 1,513
461 434
87,770 133,065
884,758 1,024,658
43,413 116,538
571,490 553,717
5,916 5,639
27,195 -
46,517 14,132
96,537 14,119
159 1,042
454,297 438,811
1,245,524 1,143,998
29,765 16,664
171 140

= 391

876 153
40,000 40,000
71,823 71,823
142,635 129,171
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
GEMBRAR(E)

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deposits received

Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Issued capital

Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Ng Wee Keat

BEG

Chairman

TE

REBEEFE

REERAE
&8E

FRBEE
Bl e
HERE
ELEFIABE

R B e
AEFE

i
ADTEEA
B {5 A 3

B BT A
EiR
ERy L L

AR HR

Notes

B EE

22

24

25
27

31 March 2021

—E-—F=ZA=+—H

2021 2020
—EBE-—F —EZTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
1,102,889 1,014,827
1,987,647 2,039,485
3,094 3,386

141 81
18,520 19,558
21,755 23,025
1,965,892 2,016,460
14,451 14,451
1,568,090 1,602,776
1,582,541 1,617,227
383,351 399,233
1,965,892 2,016,460

Sio lon Kuan
mOEE

Deputy Chairman

HIE/E
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HHELEEEEERLA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GFEEREER

Year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—F=ZA=+—HIFE

1 Aprl 2020
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income
for the year:
Exchange diferences on
translation of foreign aperations
Surplus on reveluation
of cuise ships
Change infai value of equity
investment designated
at fair velue through other
comprehiensive income

Total comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year

Trensfer of share option resenve
upon the lapse o expiy of share
options (note 26)

At 31 March 2021

=+
oL

=t
SwE Bk }dt Kdak A

et EE|L

s

=

s

SH

7

ELMENZE

REREN
1TEERY

REREANE/

REREXNAERE
SEERERR
(i)

WFz-%
SH= S

Attributable to owners of the Company

KEREARE

Share Share Psset Exchange Non-
Issied ~premium option  Contrbuted revaluation  Fairvalue  translation Merger ~ Retained controlling Total
cepital - account reserve surplus Tesenve Teserve Teserve Teserve profits Total  interests equity
Baf Rt BRE R4 EEEf  OVEE E} i 8 $ER 5
Rx RER i B4 i i i i R At B 88
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
ThL ThL ThR T#n T#1n T#1n Thn ThL ThL ThL ThL Thn
14451 354,993 23,015 162,587 5332 133 (18268)  (77640) 1152024 1617221 399233 2,016,460
- - - - - - - - BETI) (G6TI) (B3) (199%)
= o o o = @ 15,831 = = 15,831 4501 20,338
= o o o 4251 @ @ o o 4251 2,834 7,085
o = o o @ 1944 @ o o 1944 o 1944
- - - - 4251 9 1581 - (671) (4685  (1588)  (50368)
= - (s . 5 5 = N VA = = =
14451 354993 5862 162587* 9,583 2677 Q437 (776400 1,112465* 1582541 383351 1965892

¥ These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$1,568,090,000 (2020: HK$1,602,776,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

*

ERBEEEERGAVBERARFNEE
fi& #51,568,090,0008 T (=& — T4 :
1,602,776,000/87T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

GEERBER(E)
Year ended 31 March 2021
BHE-_T-_—F=ZA=+—HI&FE

Atrbutable to onners of the Company

KATEBARS
Share Share Roset Eichange Non-
Issued ~ premium opfin~ Contrbuted  revalugtion  Fairvalue ~ translation Merger  Reteined controling Total
cepial account Tesenve surplus feseve feseve feseve feseve profts To  interests equiy
2 i Bl BY  EEER  ATEE Ej &b # HER e
it HER i B B i i i 3 ait e a8

HEOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKSODD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSOOO
Thr  Ten  Tam TR TR TEn TR TEn  TEn TR TEm  TEn

At 1 Apil 2019 HWZE-NEBA-A 14451 354993 2015 162587 5146 mn (1681) 420000 17153904 2133187 090 2504117
Proft for the year REREA = - - - - - - - 154 15061 BIW 48635
Other comprehensive income/ FEREMAENE/
(lss) for the year (B8):
Eichange diferences on
translation of foreign perations = - = = = - (16,587) - - (16,587) (499%) (21582
Defict on eveluation BhEh
of ruise ships B - - - - (467) - - - - we) @Iy (18]
Surplus on reveluation VEVEL
of a propery % - - - - 4858 - - - - 4858 3239 8097
Change I fai value of equy FEBRATRE
nvesiment designted FARRZENEY
atfarvalue thiough other RighEn
comprehensive income 2TEERY - = - - - (39) - - - (39) - (%9)
Total comprehensive income/ TERREYE/
(o) for ey (B8 - - - - 186 (69 (16580 - B () 835
Finel 2019 dvidend dedlared BERZZE-NE
RERE - - - - - - - - (73 (1734 - (73
Adjusted for common contol SRR
acquisiton* ER - - o - - 5 - (497640) - (497640) - (497640)
At31 March 2020 HIE2%E
ZA=t+-A 14451 354993 3,015 162,587 5332 733 (18268)  (77640) 115204 161727 399233 2016460

*  The adjustment for common control acquisition represented the — * 75 B8 2k [F1 12 I Uk B8 ) 38 28 /5 7N 52 [ U B Y /2B

consideration paid by the Group to acquire a subsidiary when REFAZAERE KRR KRB BB R A
the Company and the subsidiary are both under common control RUEERIR 2 BT R 2 1B R RN E B R EER
of the ultimate holding company of the Group before and after AAFEREHWARES AN RN

acquisition and had been accounted for based on the principle

of merger accounting.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

%%iﬁﬁ} ||.§§
Year ended 31 March 2021
BE-_ZT-_—F=ZA=+—HIFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Bank interest income
Dividend income from equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss
Dividend income from equity investment
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Depreciation
Fair value losses/(gains) on equity
investments at fair value through
profit or loss
Fair value losses/(gains) on financial
assets/liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss
Fair value losses on investment
properties, net
Deficit on revaluation of cruise ships
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment losses
on loan and interest receivables
Provision for impairment loss on
repossessed asset

Decrease in loan and interest receivables
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables
Increase in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables
Decrease/(increase) in equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss
Decrease in an amount due to a
related company
Increase/(decrease) in accruals, other payables
and deposits received
Increase in repossessed assets

KeZHehehE
BBATEM (BR)
BRI REH 2 HE -
BE AR
RITHE WA
BRAVEEFABRREN
BB ZBREBA
HERERFEEA
Hit 2 E W 1
REZBRBBRA
e
BRTFEERFABRN
BERE 2N TEE
B/ ()
BRFEER AR
SREE/ABEZAT
EEER/ (Ka)
REMEZAFER
B FE
Bz EffEA
JE U B R R A B R
BRE/ (BE)
BEBERMA
BERE

BB E 2>
BRE SER 2R/ ()
BRI BEREMER
B2 m
BRAVEESARZORE
REZRD /()
BB RRRAL

2

FERH TR - BN RN
BlERe M,/ OfL)
BEBEEM

2021 2020

—g-— ZECEF

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k= TER TET
(71,160) 58,149

10 5
(1,033) (10,919)
5 (1,319) (1,363)
- (710)

12 23,048 26,901
5 (8,079) 9,735
5,23 (391) 391
14 19,486 24,634
12 66,713 172
17 (1,050) 1,971
19 300 -
26,525 108,966

28,572 134,402
73,606 (58,729)
32(a)(ii) (299) (363)
(74,339) 4130
- 4
10,718 (1,472)

(35,886) =
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Cash generated from operations

Net proceeds from sale of
repossessed asset

Interest received

Interest paid

Hong Kong tax paid

Overseas tax paid

Dividends received from equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Net cash flows from operating
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant
and equipment
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits
Dividends received from equity investment
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Acquisition of a subsidiary

Net cash flows used in investing
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of a loan advanced from
a non-controlling shareholder of

the Group's subsidiary

Principal portion of lease payments

Dividends paid

Decrease in an amount due to the
immediate holding company

Decrease in an amount due to a
related company

Decrease in an amount due to the
intermediate holding company

Net cash flows used in financing
activities

REXBHREIRE
HERBEEEMN
PBFERE

B YA 8

ERHE

EftEERE
EfEINMEA
ERREERFEETA
BREmBEREZRE

BE2ERPMEL
ReRnEFR

REZHZHETRE
BENE BE
h&REER
RITERZAD /()
BEYIRERERTFER
ATARM 2 E RS
BERE 2 BE
W B 2 A

RERDAAZ
ReneFR

RMEZH2HERE
EEASENBRRL
FEBRBRR

B ZER
HENTENAE D
EftE
ENERERARF
RBRZBD

FE S BARE 12 ]
R D

T EER AR
TR D

BERDRAZ
ReneFR

GRS RERE)
Year ended 31 March 2021
BHE-_T-_—F=ZA=+—HI&FE

2021 2020

—E-— “E-TF

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 TEx TERT
28,897 186,930

3,201 =

1,033 10,919
(10) ©)
(8,103) (10,953)
(113) (57)

1,319 1,363

26,224 188,197

12, 32(a)(i), (i) (12,339) (9,108)
(68,949) 248913

= 710

= (497,640)

(81,288) (257,125)

32(b) - (60,000)
32(b) (185) (107)
= (17,341)

32(b) - (40,000)
32(b) - (20,000)
32(b) - (100,000)

(185) (237,448)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

GZEREREFR(E)
Year ended 31 March 2021
HE_Z_—F=ZA=+—HLFE

NET DECREASE IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity
of less than three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of cash flows

Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity
of more than three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position

HHELEEEEERLA

RERBEZEN2
HOBE

RENZRLRREEED

NEEEXRHIHE

RERZBEER
RESEY

ReRBESENL
R

Re RBITETF
BAKRERE®ART
—EAZEERERER

HERERERAMALN
RekAwEEY

BAKRTEmARER
—HAZEEREREFR

e IR R AR A
Re kR e EEY

21

2021 2020
—g-— ZECEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
(55,249) (306,376)
438,811 747344
1,786 (2,157)
385,348 438,811
257,305 161,698
128,043 277,113
385,348 438,811
68,949 -
454,297 438,811




New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt K S EEF B E R 2 7

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The principal activities of the Company comprise
investment holding and securities trading. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries comprise money lending,
cruise ship charter services, property investments and

securities trading.

The Company is a subsidiary of New Century Investment
Pacific Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. New Century Investment Pacific Limited is
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Huang Group
(BVI) Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. In the opinion of the directors, Huang
Group (BVI) Limited, which is beneficially and wholly
owned by a discretionary trust, is the ultimate holding

company of the Company.

Annual Report 2021 F3k

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

REAIREEESR

Nt EEERERAFSEBRES
MRz BRAR - KRGz ME
iz i ’¥Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda ©

ARRZEIEEBERREERNES
BEE - HMBRARZEIEEBBEEN
B BHREERY VWERELESFE

=
=

A7) ANew Century Investment Pacific
Limited (R R B R Z B S EMA L2 2
) 2K B 2AA - New Century
Investment Pacific Limited/5Huang
Group (BVI) Limited (R & B Z B S5+
Mz znaE) cEEEERBAR -
EERA B EXEGHRERLEEE
# ZHuang Group (BVI) Limited 7378

NCTPd - 33 3 ONCTI
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5 R R aE

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEIREEBER (E)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries MR RHNER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as KA EEMBRABIZHFBWT :
follows:
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Issued equity attributable Principal
Name operations share capital to the Group activities
EMEYL/ AREEL
8 geny BRABA REZEDL IERE
2021 2020
“R--F -T-%F
ETC Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$700,000,000 60 60 Money
FRAMBAERDA &% 700,000,000 lending
&
Kingston Maritime Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 60 60 Cruise ship
("BVI")/ 1% charter service
International water BaHER%
RERNAES
(ZBERES])/
YN
Queenston Maritime Limited BVI/ US$10,000 60 60 Cruise ship
International water 10,000% 7T charter service
ERRAES/ BmhER%
N
Gaintech Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Property
MEREERRF BA 287 investment
NERE
New Century Group HK Singapore S81 100 100 Property
Investment Pte. Ltd. A 1%t investment
MERE
New Century Properties Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Property
Investments Limited BB 28T investment
MEENEREBRRF NERE
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

Place of

incorporation/

Name operations
HERRYL/

4 LeEny
Senic Investment Limited Hong Kong
BHAREBRAR 5
Wise Century Investments Limited Hong Kong
ENREERAF )
Century Rich Investments Limited BVI/
Hong Kong

RKERLES/

)

All of the above principal subsidiaries are indirectly held

by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

Annual Report 2021 F3k
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

1. RAREEHESR (&)

B D = B E R ()
AATFEMBAAZFBENT : ()

Percentage of

Issued equity attributable Principal
share capital to the Group activities
REEER
BRIBA BEZAIL IRER

2021 2020

“E--§ —TCEf

HK$2 100 100 Property
28T investment
MERE

HK$1 100 100 Property
BT investment
MERE

Us$1 60 60 Securities
E trading

i~
EHEE

IAERBTENERRHHEARRRE
KA

ERFIIZARARIMBERARNESTRA
HARBAFEXEAEATEIEAR
SEFEETZHD - EZAR - W5
HEMHBARZHE RESHBRT
= o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5 R R aE

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for cruise ships,
investment properties, equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss, equity investment designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when

otherwise indicated.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1 IRBEXE

AHBRRDBEEEGAMAE (&
ABEFMAG]) BH2EBHBERSE
B ([FEEHBRSEL] (BEME
BEMBREREA FASHEN(E
BEEAD kRE)  BELERMN
ST RARBFE(RBGI) 2 KE
REMBH - KEH REVE BA
FEEFABRDNRERE - HER/E
NP EEFARMEEEENRERE
Rz FEEFABGNERAEBETR
RNFEEFEN KNP HERRIIRESL
RAERRE - BRIERINFHA - AH7
WERABT(THBT]) FIER - FAB SR
NEREONTIT-
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2021. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability

to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee,

including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote

holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the

date that such control ceases.

Annual Report 2021 F3k

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

2.1 RBLE X (F)

REEE

REMBRREBARARENB LR
(BRI AEE)BE_T_—F=
A=t - BLFENMBER -WEA
AEAATEEREEEFNHEE (8
REBILER) EXAKEAB2EY
& & 75 6 AR RS B A HE AT Bl $R e A
e FAAERE R WHAENERY
WIRETWEN (BIREAEEBATA
EENTERRETNHEBADNREE
M) FEZEFDRE - BESZEHE -

EARAREEXEERER I RERET
REBORRLBOUEN  EFHER
CHREAHERETNENE  ~AEEE
ZEAMEMEBIEMBR - B

(@) EWEETHMIREFTHEANS
A %

(b)) HitERZHEENEN &

(0 AEERRRENBERRE -

8 BB R BN B) 2 A ok B
SHEAR - WRB B E T BRR
i o B8 A 5] HO AR B A SR B SR
BZARRERE YEREFAKBLAF
EERRAL -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R R aE

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 RELE A ()

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as

an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's
share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of

the related assets or liabilities.

RaEE (%)
BEakEME2EEENSEARLY SE
%W$$@# A AR IFER R
BB B I S AR AR
@°$EIW%XAEZ%X%EEW
PEEENRAE #m WA FAXK
ReRnENGRERERZEUENE -

WMREERERBET EXFESIH=
BrEfd—BIZBEEE AAEEE
BEHAEERTMAEGEIRET o i
—HNB ARz EAEES LR EEHM
WG AR LERE  RIBEBAZHIE
RIEZZ S °

MRAREEKET EHMH B QR AE
EOBRIEERONBAREE (1
BE)MEE ()M IEERERNER
Ej’:%ﬁ P RGDFFAEZH RFTIREE
Iﬁu®W‘ﬁFmQ$ BE : (i)
Efﬂ% HERNRAFEE: A RG)E
B EREUEE 2 BRIE4L - K
EEAFERHEMEEREBERITS
EEEMEFR D EAER - JREB &
A HEMAWEASBEEZELEAHEE
EXBERZEEMRR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 ENEBRREE
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for AEBELERAFENTBRRAETR
Financial Reporting 2018 and the following revised RRAHBEHRELERL(ZE—-NF)
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year's financial AR T EIERTM BB BRE LR o
statements.
Amendments to Definition of a Business ERVBHmEER HHHNTE
HKFRS 3 E35ZERT
Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark ERUBMERER FEEENE
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 Reform ok - BB G
and HKFRS 7 R ZE395E K
BERTB®RE
ERNETHR 2185
Amendment to Covid-19-Related Rent BEAMBHRELER 20198 M A ERK
HKFRS 16 Concessions (early adopted) F165% 2185 HEH T ER
(RATEA)
Amendments to Definition of Material BB EF R EAHTE
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 kEEEER

85T 2 1ER]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5 R R aE

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework

for Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are

described below:

(a) Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018

(the “Conceptual Framework”) sets out a
comprehensive set of concepts for financial
reporting and standard setting, and provides
guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and
assistance to all parties to understand and interpret
the standards. The Conceptual Framework includes
new chapters on measurement and reporting
financial performance, new guidance on the
derecognition of assets and liabilities, and updated
definitions and recognition criteria for assets and
liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of stewardship,
prudence and measurement uncertainty in financial
reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not a
standard, and none of the concepts contained
therein override the concepts or requirements in any
standard. The Conceptual Framework did not have
any significant impact on the financial position and

performance of the Group.

22 EREFNBERIKE ()

HBEREESEE (ZF—NF) AR
T EBE B E AR I E R
ST L

(@) HEHREHZER(—F—NF)

(MESER]D) BB S R ER
BEZIH—E2EOBE - RMB
WRAmBLE AT — BB BRIR
sl URRED THRERELE
AR B) - BESERE A BENE
ERBEMBRANFES - 5
RUIEBREERBBENIES - A
REERBBENKEEFNER LER
R RBEBMBHREPERE
BEERFETEIENAS - BT
TEZRILIE—IHAER] - MEFFTEHE
BB MR B AR RS
ER - BIOERYAREE KM B
AERRRIBELEFREAZE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide

22 EREFBERKE (H)

(b) BAEMBREERNEIR ZETH

additional guidance on the definition of a business.
The amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business
can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The
amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the
business and continue to produce outputs. Instead,
the focus is on whether acquired inputs and
acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of
outputs to focus on goods or services provided to
customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired
process is substantive and introduce an optional fair
value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. The Group has applied
the amendments prospectively to transactions or
other events that occurred on or after 1 April 2020.
The amendments did not have any impact on the

financial position and performance of the Group.

EBERET T RBUIRHEEIMNE
5l o REBFRBETWREBMAE
% —HEANEBMEENAE
LEE-ERAM-EEGEMNS
B MEANARBEREANES
HEVREN ° XFB A AT EBATA Al
EELMFENEANBRE - ZIEFT
M THEMS2EERTAENE
B XU LIS B E £ E LRI o
i - B3 BT FTEUS R R A PR
MENELGHBEESE ARBEER
ERIEELREES - ZETWET
ELHNEREE  SHEINME
FERENE MRS - REWE X
HAth B BEEHHA o Bboh - ZIEFT
SRERFEARGNBAERTRE
HHEBREEHETES  ASIATH
BHAFEESETENR  AFEH
PG —RABMEERS T
REBETHILTG AEEDE
BAFEREBETRAR T =
ZEMNA-HINBRBENR S
HMEIR - (& 5] $ A 5K B & B 5k
ARFRATEELTRATE -

<
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BAF5 R R aE

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

HHELEEEEERLA

DISCLOSURES (continued)
(c) Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

address issues affecting financial reporting in the
period before the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate
("RFR"). The amendments provide temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during
the period of uncertainty before the introduction of
the alternative RFR. In addition, the amendments
require companies to provide additional information
to investors about their hedging relationships which
are directly affected by these uncertainties. The
amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group as
the Group does not have any interest rate hedging

relationships.

22 EREFNBERIKE ()

©

FEEMBHRELNESR BEE
At ERFEINEREEM B REE
AISE75R 18T At T 7 & A i 1
BRMEIAIRA R REE 2 FTH
HiE PEMBRENER - #£3)
EE RN REE[ N EERER -
BT RERSHFERMBREM TR
B o ILHN - BRI BER AR AR
BERHBANERIZS T EEN
TENERRERNBEIMER - BHR
AEBEYEEMNEERER  F
It B RTH AN SR B R B AR B R
BYEBELEMNZE -



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions arising
as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic.
The practical expedient applies only to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
the pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease
payments results in revised consideration for the
lease that is substantially the same as, or less than,
the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change; (i) any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 20271; and (iii) there is no
substantive change to other terms and conditions of
the lease. The amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with
earlier application permitted and shall be applied
retrospectively. The amendment did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group as the Group did not receive rent

concessions as a result of the covid-19 pandemic.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. The amendments clarify
that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information, or both. The amendments
did not have any significant impact on the financial

position and performance of the Group.

FHLEEEEETRAA
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31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

22 EREFBERKE (H)

(d)

(e)

BEAMBREERE 165 2EFT
REBARB—EERAITERS
ELVEE T 520198 M im SR &E
BREERRIEEZHSERRE
RAEEBIT e RE - ZERAT
HEHLZBERREBEZEERR
FEAzMeESR BEZEOHEE
HREHEF 7 HELBTRER
EREHPH o HERBEABERK
BREBARE: (VAENKZE
MRIEEYERIARA-_T=—
FRA=T A ZRRNE K(iii)
MEZ EMmEREGGH T REEE
B ZBIR_E=_TFA—AH
&R FEBMBER Wi
HIREER HABYER - AR
ANEEW £ F2019FMBEERE
BEmEEEMESES Bl &
FTHASBOMEMRRKRE L E
EEREATE-

TR ERE IR LREEGAE
RIS 2 BRI REAMERME T
MESE - FEREL WRAUSE
A RH ERKEBMEEEER
E-RAZHBEHRRNIBER
FOERZEYHBHRRAELAR
B AZEERBEKXNNE - ZIER]
BB EAMEEORNERMMEE
HAREH SR E - BRI H AN KRB
MBEARARRBALBELAEFMEKR

S/ 48
-
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BAF5 R R aE

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,

in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendment to HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2078-2020

Reference to the Conceptual Framework®

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
~ Phase 2!

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 20217

Insurance Contracts*

Insurance Contracts*’

Disclosure of Accounting Policies*

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current*

Definition of Accounting Estimates*

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabiltties arising from a Single
Transaction*

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract®

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

& 2R

23 BMEMKERZERBYR

AREE AR A BEHRIEKA TS %
8L 18 R A RO 3 Il BT AR B RT I BB

M HmEER -

ERNHREERER
]
FRMHREERFR
BAGHERZI9% -
ERMBHRERNETR

BRHBHEERFRR

BRMBRELERE16%
]
ERMBRELFI0RR
BAGHERIR 205
(ZB——F) &7
BRHBHEEAF 6% 2

al

ERNBASEUEITH
BRMBHEENEITH
L]
FRETENFIR 2B
BRESEAZ N2

ERGHERFSR BT
FRETENF12R 2B

ERGHERF 168 BH]

FR G EHRITRET

BRI BHEEAFE
H#(—E-)1£F
ZE-F#F)

Bl fox 2 U

FIEEENE
E-BR

REZHRBER TS
BERAZEHEE
HELTES

BE_E_—4FnH
=1 A#2019F 4
AERGEHLEE

wES

REELT

AR RE
HEENTE

E iy h
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EENBEREY
EEHF

WE BEREE:
EHBEA A
REFY 5
BEAY -
VAN
AU EEER
E1%  BBYBRE
AN - BAME
REEAE 165 REH
Vnfl R BB S
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available
for adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in
October 2020 to align the corresponding wording with no
change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued
in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS
39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023

FHLEEEEETRAA
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QICRMEEMKRERZERUK
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described

below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a
reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to
HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine
what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that
would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int
21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed
in a business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3
should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively
instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify
for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 April
2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to
business combinations for which the acquisition date is
on or after the date of first application, the Group will not
be affected by these amendments on the date of

transition.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the
previous amendments which affect financial reporting
when an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with
an alternative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments provide a
practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to
be updated without adjusting the carrying amount when
accounting for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if
the change is a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and the new basis for determining the
contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis immediately preceding the change. In
addition, the amendments permit changes required by
the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge
designations and hedge documentation without the
hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains or
losses that could arise on transition are dealt with
through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure
and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having to
meet the separately identifiable requirement when an
RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief allows
an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume that
the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to
become separately identifiable within the next 24
months. Furthermore, the amendments require an entity
to disclose additional information to enable users of
financial statements to understand the effect of interest
rate benchmark reform on an entity’'s financial
instruments and risk management strategy. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2021 and shall be applied
retrospectively, but entities are not required to restate the
comparative information. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's

financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address

an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10
and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that associate
or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was
removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments

are available for adoption now.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting
period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of
the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations
that are considered a settlement of a liability. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment any proceeds from selling items produced
while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises
the proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of
those items, in profit or loss. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to
items of property, plant and equipment made available
for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period
presented in the financial statements in which the entity
first applies the amendments. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial

statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management
and supervision costs). General and administrative costs
do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded
unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and
shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has not
yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which it first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments
shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application without restating
the comparative information. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's

financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the

Group are as follows:

«  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that
an entity includes when assessing whether the terms
of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those paid
or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other's behalf. An entity
applies the amendment to financial liabilities that
are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which the entity
first applies the amendment. The amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant

impact on the Group's financial statements.

«  HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold
improvements in Illustrative Example 13
accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease

incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative
financial instruments, cruise ships and equity investments
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic

best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of

unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either

directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each

reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment properties
and non-current asset classified as held for sale), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the

asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the

relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

0 has control or joint control of the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

0) the entity and the Group are members of the

Same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of

the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or

fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of

the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity

and the other entity is an associate of the

third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan

for the benefit of employees of either the

Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by

a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of

which it is a part, provides key management

personnel services to the Group or to the

parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale, it is not
depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy for
“Non-current assets held for sale”. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of
property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with

specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the values
of property, plant and equipment are dealt with as
movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an
individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to the profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus
is credited to the profit or loss to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset, the
relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised
in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained

profits as a movement in reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AFTESHBEME (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation NE- -BERRBRFTE (&B)
(continued)
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis, with EME - MELREBEB 2ITERES
the exception of motor vehicles which are calculated on AAERFHANEREAMEEXNAEZR
the reducing-balance basis, to write off the cost of each RIsrBESHE (MR ERABARBRRE
item of property, plant and equipment to its residual STER) cPARAZEFEFEMT :

value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 23 to 44 years BF —t=Em+HE
Leasehold improvements 33'/.% THE%% 35 33'/.%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment  10% to 15% L HEREE 10%E15%

Motor vehicles 20% RE 20%

Cruise ships 6% to 20% B i 6%Z20%
Drydocking costs represent major inspection and overhaul TS AR ERRE RGEKRAE - I
costs and are included in cruise ships and depreciated to SR ARG & T AITE R B®ERF
reflect the consumption of benefits, which are to be wH o HE—"REME=ZFUZMIEEHR
replaced or restored by the subsequent drydocking FIEE -

generally every two to three years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment EM¥E . HBELREBEEBEZZREHAER
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that TNRIZAERFH  ZBE ZHRAS A
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts BERBEEZEENRETEHD ME
and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values, HoesFinE - FHREE AIEAF
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, HETER 2RI RSV REELE
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year Bigs MAZE (MEA) -

end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any M- BERZEBE (BEVBER
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon B E I B2 KB 53) 7 HH & S s TR AP Elfé
disposal or when no future economic benefits are ﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁlﬁﬁ RSB R E e
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on IR IEHER c RRITEREECFE
disposal or retirement recognised in the profit or loss in WT;ETE 5 PSR B SRR 2 (R s
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference HEE  IRHEMEREFHEERAEE
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount EROSHEZER -

of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting

period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the profit or loss in

the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the profit or loss in

the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property, the Group accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” for owned property
and/or accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy under “Right-of-use assets” for property held as a
right-of-use asset up to the date of change in use, and
any difference at that date between the carrying amount
and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a
revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under

"Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a
sales transaction rather than through continuing use. For
this to be the case, the asset must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for the sale of such

assets and its sale must be highly probable.

Non-current assets (other than investment properties and
financial assets) classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less
costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment classified as

held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets

representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued) HE (&)
AEFEREABANA (&)
(a) HAEEZE

24 TEETBEME ()

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:
Leasehold land 23 to 44 years
Buildings 2 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful

life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the

event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in
the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying

asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHHERBE (B)

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued) HE (&)

Group as a lessee (continued) KEEFEZEATANA (E)

(c) Short-term leases (c) WHIHE
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition AEEBEBHERRBEERAR
exemption to its short-term leases of car parking EHBEUEBAEREHNEHAE
spaces and office equipment (that is those leases (BEHEBMFAKAE HEBA
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from TZEARERAEANEE - BT
the commencement date and do not contain a BEREEERE)

purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised RHEENHEENFEEEENA
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease RRERIERSER -

term.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of

its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. When a contract
contains lease and non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the
profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised

as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the

lessee are accounted for as finance leases.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value

through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the

policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective

of the business model.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and

measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,

modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an

instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in the profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from
such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in
other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive

income are not subject to impairment assessment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the profit or

loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised as revenue in the profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be

measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if the
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of
a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at
fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs
if there is either a change in the terms of the contract
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial

asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

HHELEEEEERLA

24 TEETBEME ()

RERHEMETHEE (H)
Higit 2 (&)

BN FIEEFA DT MEE
BAFEEFABENEREELENHK
RARNAFEEFE MEQFEE
HE)FRAERSE AR

ZHPIBETETRAARKREEL ET
AHEEES BAR A FEEFAR
2P SR RERE - R THE
AN - LA SARRA Y AS B B 25 1R AT BE
‘)ﬁ)\ﬁ’iﬂﬂﬁ%m%%ﬁ ER] SEMIET &

5o 0 BER/EAFEEFABRSNER
BENBRBREZRETEREAER
WA TR o

EMAZEREHN(BaeRABERIFE
TRMEAHN) PTETANKEERR
MEREETEOTNETHEE  BRALT
ETARAHRGROERTANTANT
ATANESZ  AZERANITEERA
FEEARSR  RATETARE
BRDFREEREBITETARE - &
APTETANRFEERE BERYF
BEEZFHAABR - AAEANGRL

REg BEAREMTENRESRENK
B A FEEFABGENEREESH
DR TTETERME -



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt K S EEF B E R 2 7

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or

loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

«  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired; or

«  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of

the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has

retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could

be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are

integral to the contractual terms.

HHELEEEEERLA

24 TEETBEME ()

RIEBAZeRMEE (H)

EASEEEANNZBELEEMSR
MEZENNEETIENTHE - 2T
E EERBEZEEMRNRRE

ARERBEE - & H W EEENRE

§E§FZ%K% R\ B K Bl 5 - B
BEZZEEEZEHE AEEER
FTAEERESANEEEERIACDE
BEE -EZBAT  AEETERE
HaE EENEERERAEGERRE
AEBRBOENMBBOEESE o

il

,tﬂil%

MRBE2ETAHEZNEERHEE
FROFERTAMETFORESE : BE
B R R T < B M AN 6% B ] DA B R(EE
MRENZRAKESHE -

THMEEZRE

AEE L PTA YL I A FEEF ARRE
ZEENEBTAERBEHEMEX
(MEHEREBKX]D BE - BHREREBEX
EAREEREEOEBENEHEAESR
EERBHONRERMNRITENEDR
WEBHNMERERECHNEZERE
# - BHREEREFBEHERFER
mESHNRERE  URBREHEK
AXRBOMEMERERMEENES

I =
JLE °



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt K S EEF B E R 2 7

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for
credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over
the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the

timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical

and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.
A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash

flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Financial

assets at amortised cost are subject to

impairment under the general approach and they are

classified within the following stages for measurement of

ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the

simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 —

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured

at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount

equal to lifetime ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic

environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in

calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,

as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,

net of directly attributable transaction costs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)
The Group’s financial liabilities include other payables
and accruals, deposits received, lease liabilities, an
amount due to the intermediate holding company and a
loan advanced from a non-controlling shareholder of the

Group's subsidiary.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair

value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
the profit or loss does not include any interest charged

on these financial liabilities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS
9 are satisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the
profit or loss, except for the gains or losses arising from
the Group's own credit risk which are presented in other
comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the profit or loss. The net fair value gain
or loss recognised in the profit or loss does not include

any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and

borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rate amortisation

process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance

costs in the profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation

under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective

carrying amounts is recognised in the profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle

the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
The derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the
fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value
is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in
fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the profit or

loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part

of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,

which are not restricted as to use.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower
of their fair values less costs to sell and the amortised
costs of the related outstanding loans on the date of
repossession, and the related loans and advances
together with the related impairment allowances are
derecognised from the consolidated statement of
financial position. Subsequently, the repossessed assets

are measured at costs less impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in

the profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in

which the Group operates.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

«  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

« in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences

can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at

the end of each reporting period and reduced to the

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable

profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred

tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets

are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and

are recognised to the extent that it has become probable

that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all

or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or

assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the
periods that the costs, for which it is intended to

compensate, are expensed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for

those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is

subsequently resolved.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more than
one year, revenue recognised under the contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the

practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis

over the lease terms.

Cruise ship charter service income is recognised over the
scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the

benefits provided by the Group.

Realised fair value gains or losses on securities trading
are recognised on a trade date basis, whilst unrealised
fair value gains or losses are recognised on changes in

fair value at the end of the reporting period.

Dividend income from equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and

the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Fair value gains or losses on derivative financial
instruments are recognised on changes in fair value at

the end of the reporting period.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest rate method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying

amount of the financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using

the binomial model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to the profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense

recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also

service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are

satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the

employee as measured at the date of modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the

previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings

per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme, except for the Group's employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF

Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the

financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company's functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the profit

or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or

receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange

rates for the year.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in the profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars

at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the

assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term
not constituting a major part of the economic life of the
commercial property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially
all the fair value of the commercial property, that it
retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are
leased out and accounts for the contracts as operating

leases.

Income tax

The Group is engaged in the cruise ship charter service
business and accordingly may be subject to income taxes
in different jurisdictions depending on the routes of the
cruise ships and the operations of the relevant
companies. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes worldwide, if
any. The Group does not recognise any liability for
income tax based on management's judgement that the
Group is not subject to income taxes of any of the
jurisdictions outside Hong Kong based on the existing
routes of the cruise ships and the operations of the
relevant companies. In addition, the Group has obtained
indemnity letters from charterer to confirm that all
relevant tax exposures of the Group's cruise ships would

be borne by the charterer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described

below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
and cruise ships

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market of similar leases and other contracts. In the
absence of such information, the Group determines the
amount within a range of reasonable fair value estimates.
In making its judgement, the Group considers information
from fair market value by reference to independent
valuations. This conclusion is supported by independent
professional appraisers who were engaged by the Group
during the year to perform valuations on the Group's
investment properties and cruise ships. As at 31 March
2021, the fair values of investment properties, a cruise
ship included in property, plant and equipment and a
cruise ship included in non-current asset held for sale
amounted to approximately HK$540,780,000 (2020:
HK$551,576,000), approximately HK$120,435,000 and
approximately HK$27,195,000 (2020: cruise ships
included in property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$199,680,000), respectively, which
were obtained by reference to quoted second-hand

market prices.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The gross deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 March 2021
HK$8,105,000 (2020: HK$8,374,000). The amount of

was

unrecognised tax losses at 31 March 2021 was
HK$231,224,000 (2020: HK$226,509,000). Further
details are contained in note 24 to the financial

statements.

Provision for impairment losses on loan and
interest receivables

The Group uses judgement in making assumptions and
selecting the inputs to its ECL calculation, based on the
Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting

period.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customers' actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's
loan and interest receivables is disclosed in note 17 to

the financial statements.
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4,

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their businesses and services

and has four reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the money lending segment engages in the provision
of secured mortgage loans and unsecured personal

loans;

(b) the cruise ship charter services segment engages in

the provision of chartering services of cruise ships;

(c) the property investments segment invests in prime
office space and commercial shops for their rental

income potential; and

(d) the securities trading segment engages in the trading
of marketable securities for short-term investment

purposes.

<«&<./'\1‘£B§*4

ERERBAZ TEERREBHEEB KRR
TR BN - A AR RS KL
EoEAT

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

MEDBRERIREERBEZEE
REEERLAER

BRAERF D MBUEERIZHE R
HE R

MEREDHMBRENEBE N H KA
SWAZEERREEMLREER
iz &

H

¢

EEEERSBRENEEEBES
276 EST BRI S A -



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of
adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss
before tax is measured consistently with the Group's
profit/loss before tax except that interest income,
dividend income from equity investment designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income,
corporate income as well as corporate expenses are

excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents, tax
recoverable, deferred tax assets and other unallocated
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group

basis.

Segment liabilities exclude a loan advanced from a non-
controlling shareholder of the Group's subsidiary, an
amount due to the intermediate holding company, tax
payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a

group basis.

Intersegment sales are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the

then prevailing market prices.
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EEBEHRERE CBREBA -
WA AR BERAX -

ﬁ%ﬁFT FReERREEEY 7
WEHE - BEEHEEE  UAREME
PEHEXEE BAAZRSEENRER

B EIE o

>ﬁ1t

DHMBETERERASENB AR ZIFE

B RB A 2 B - A REEER A
IR AT BEERBARE AR
HEMADECXAE ARZEAED
REBEEER

DEEAEES  2RAEBE=ZSHEMK
AREE RRERBRITAMSGERE
1IR5 e
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BAF5 R R aE

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4.

Segment revenue:
Revenue from extenal

customers
Intersegment sales
Other income

Reconaliation:
Elimination of
intersegment sales

Total revenue and
other income

Segment results

Reconciliaton:

Bank interest income
Dividend income fiom
equiy investment
Qesignated at fai
vlue through other

comprehensive income
Corporate and other

undllocated income
Corporate and other

unallocated expenses

Profit/ loss) before tax

YAREH
WAEE

ikt |

¥
RiTHAMA
EEAR
MYEEHA
E2EE
EREL
REKA
LRRER
AAERA
LRRAL
KNERR

RHaEN/ (58)

HHELEEEEERLA

gEsHEN (&)
Money Cruise ship Property Securities
lending charter services investments trading Total
BRERRE UESE 2588 ait
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZB--f CTCRE ZRI-F CRCRF ZRI-F CECTF IRC-E 0 C3RE 0 ZBI-F %%
HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOO  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKSG00  HKSOO  HKS0OD  HKSOOO
Tén TR Thn ThT Thr Tin T TEn ThT TEL
14303 70,636 = 04175 16,268 19316 9,789 (8763) 100,360 145,364
= ° = S 3071 307 = S 307 30m
1,078 317 = S 875 62 1 36 1954 415
75,381 70,953 = 04175 20,214 22449 9,790 (8727) 105,385 148,850
Gomy (o)
102314 145779
61801 55714 (1123) 477 (5896)  (OM6)  976  (8746)  (664) 85T
1,033 10919
- 710
1,144 S
(6693)  (32059)
(1L160) 58149




4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets AEE
Reconcliation: HE:
Elimination of
intersegment receivables 2
Corporate and other m%&ﬁﬁi
unallocated asses AEE
Total ases EEEg
Segment iabilties ~ FHEE
Reconcliation: HE:
Eiminafion of e
inersegent peyables  Ef3R
Coporteandoher 2 EREH
wndlocated libilfes ~ FAREE
Total liabiles aBeE
Other segment EfA%
information: g4
Depection &
Fairlelosseson—— 1ANE7
invesment poperties,  ATEEEA
net i
Defidt on reveluation of B2 Ef
qruie ships, net Bl 38

Fai value loses/(gains) on A TEE AR

equiy investments E’JF £ &QZL‘”
at fair velue through BFE
proft or logs, net 3??5

Fai value loses/(gains) on AT BE AR

finandial assets/liabilies  #4BAE/BE
at fair detogh  ZAFEE
fit or loss BE/(5)

Prowsm for/(reversal of)  EREZR

mpaiment osseson~—~ FEAHE
loan and inerest BERRE/
receivables (@)
Provison for impiment A4
loss onrepossessed —— FEEE
assel B
Coptel expendire® ~ BAF ¥

4 Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant

and equipment.

(3s)

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

Money
lending
it

2021 2020
CEC-E C5CEE
HKS000  HKS000
Tin TR
709274 705,068
8717 1678
142 =
(1,00) 1971
300 =
567 =

Cruise ship

charter services

BREERE
2021 2020

“§--F  CE-%

HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn T
147,630 210,134
17513 11,147
15,668 19499
59,628 7,959
11,770 6,981

FHELEEFTEERLQA

Annual Report 2021 F3k

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4, R&
Property
investments
VELY
2021 2020
“§--f 3%
HK§'000 HK$'000
Tin Thn
546,588 554357
5292 5392
19,486 24,634

o BAXHEENE  BEER

BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

DEHEHR (&)
Securties
trading Total
252 i
2021 2020 2021 2020
CE--F C5CFF CBC-F ZECF
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
Tin Thn T#n TiEn
136,365 118349 1539857 1,587,908
(180) (180)
590,605 580928
2130280 2,168,656
- 391 31522 18,808
(180) (180)
133,048 133568
164,390 152,19
= = 15810 19499
- = 19,486 24634
= = 59,628 7959
(8079) 9735 (8079) 9735

(391)

] (391) 1)

- (s 1

= 300 =
= 12,331 6981

BHYRE °
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AR5 R R EE
31 March 2021

— = —

=

4,

—#=A=+—*H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. & 5 ZE R ()

Geographical information i & & #
(a) Revenue from external customers and other (a) SMREP.Z WA KA MMHA
income
2021 2020
—E-—F —_EFTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Hong Kong 5 100,280 79,708
Southeast Asia except Hong Kong REE(TEEES) 2,034 66,071
102,314 145,779

(b)

b A B R AR P R B [ 38 A A

The revenue information above is based on the

locations of the customers. fift o

Non-current assets (b) #REBEE
2021 2020
—E=-—F —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET F&T
Hong Kong B 610,586 685,289
Southeast Asia except Hong Kong REE(TEEEE) 270,715 337,856
881,301 1,023,145

AR EEERNAEEMEE
BARER WIABREERRAT
EBEFAREMEZEKDNRERE -

The non-current asset information above is based on
the locations of the assets and excludes equity
investment designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Information about a major customer

Revenue from a customer of the corresponding year
amounting to over 10% of the total revenue of the

Group is as follows:

Customer A! R

! Revenue from the provision of cruise ship charter services

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue represents interest income from secured
mortgage loans and unsecured personal loans, cruise
ship charter service income, gross rental income from
investment properties, fair value gains/losses on equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss, fair value
gains/losses on financial assets/liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and dividend income from equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss during the

year.

Annual Report 2021 F3k

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

KreEIER (F)
FTEEZFER
REEBEFEAN  HEAREEZKA10%
NERRER ZWMALT
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT TFHET

= 64,175

T RHEREEREEKRA

WA R E YA
WARAEREEERRBEER R EEKR
FLAE R B WA - B 1H & AR 75 UL
A REVEZHSWABLE - BRF
BEFABRSNEEREZATFEERK
&/ EE RAVEEFARSENESR
BE/ABEZATEEKS EE A
KA FEEFABRSOBREREZR
BHA -
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BAF5 R R aE

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued)

An analysis of revenue and other income is as follows:

Revenue

Interest income from secured mortgage
loans and unsecured personal loans

Cruise ship charter service income

Gross rental income from
investment properties

Fair value gains/(losses) on equity
investments at fair value through
profit or loss

Fair value gains/(losses) on financial
assets/liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Dividend income from equity
investments at fair value through
profit or loss

Other income

Bank interest income

Government subsidies (Note)

Dividend income from equity
investment designated at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

Others

5, WARHEMUYA (&)
BAREABAZ AT :

2021 2020
—E_—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FHT
WA
EEREBERREEA
FLABRHF B A 74,303 70,636
om0 & AR S U A - 64,175
REMEZH S
WA B8 16,268 19,316
RAFEBEFABE
RARERE 2
R EEKZ (BB) 8,079 (9,735)
BRATEERABR
NemEE/BEZ
REEEKZE (B18) 391 (391)
BRATEERAEBR
AR ERE 2
ISV ON 1,319 1,363
100,360 145,364
Hig A
RITH BUA 1,033 10,919
B e (B sE) 2,191 =
EEABEAFEETA
H M 2 W 2w 1 AR
®EZBRBEMWA
= 710
EAh 907 415

4,131 12,044
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REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued)

Note:

Being wage subsidies provided by the Government of Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region under the Employment
Support Scheme during the year. Subsidies from the government
are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the subsidies will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions. Government subsidies
relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs that

they are intended to compensate.

Annual Report 2021 F3k

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

5. WMAREMYA (&)
B i

AEBFRITREBTRE MR X8R0
REFRUOTEHY - BT REARE
B A= AT W B B AN S 5 S 58 18 TS 4 B P A Y
MZ AR IR E QFEE T AR - BERA
A 78 A0 T 478 B RE R B - 3 2 B AR 4 15 Y
MERARETER 2 AR AEBRRPRER
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BAF5 R R aE

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 6. BRBIAIER, (EE)
The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after AEBEOBRBAEN, (BE) EHKR,/
charging/(crediting): (Gt A) -
2021 2020
—E-—%F —E-TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5E FERT FHET
Depreciation e 12 23,048 26,901
Auditor's remuneration 22 Gl kA 1,620 1,620
Employee benefit expense & 818 MR 52
(including directors’ (BEKF8 2
remuneration in note 8): EFM2) :
Salaries and allowances & MOER 20,112 21,676
Pension scheme contributions RIKE ET B 956 967
Total staff costs BT 21,068 22,643
Lease payments not included TEFEERE
in the measurement of BfEFTER
lease liabilities HENKEE 12(c) 275 181
Foreign exchange differences, MEH A%
net pEik: (1,269) 2,393
Direct operating expenses MR EMEZ
(including repairs and HEemELD
maintenance) arising from BEELERX
rental-earning investment (BRE#E
properties MRE) 2,758 2,670
Fair value losses on REMEZ AFEE
investment properties, net = e 14 19,486 24,634
Provision for/(reversal of) ERERERFEH
impairment losses on loan BEEERE
and interest receivables (#m) 17 (1,050) 1,971
Provision for impairment loss BEEENRE

on repossessed asset EiEEE 19 300 -~
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FINANCE COSTS 7.

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

Interest on lease liabilities HEBENF B

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8.

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Fees W

Other emoluments: EME
Salaries and allowances & MoERA
Discretionary bonuses Y15 TEAL
Pension scheme contributions BRIREFT SRR

BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

& B A
MEKARATAT
2021 2020
—E-—F —_ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FART
10 5

EERIVBESHEEMHE

a) E=M<
RIBEABE XS EMR AR ([H
REDEFEHLEMAA (T LR
Al)) - BB EERAD) E383(1)
@) * (b) * () RMIENARLAT] (H
BESMRER) RO E2E HE

WAFEEEHMEOT
2021 2020
—EB-—F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
414 414
8,116 8,812
789 1,125
447 497
9,352 10,434

9,766 10,848
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BAF5 R R aE

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8. EERAUBSHEEMNS (H)
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (a) EEM< (E)
(i) Independent non-executive directors () BUFHTEF
The fees paid to independent non-executive RAFEXZN T EZIENT
directors during the year were as follows: B2l
2021 2020
=== —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok SRR B O A 138 138
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth R LA 138 138
Mr. Ho Yau Ming AR E & 138 138
414 414
There were no other emoluments payable to RAFE - WEEMNBILIEHR
the independent non-executive directors during TEFEZEMHE (2 =F

the year (2020: Nil). FoE) -
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BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8. EENTUBSHEEME (&)
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (a) E=M < (&)
(i) Executive directors (i) BiTEF
Pension
Salaries and Discretionary scheme Total
allowances bonuses contributions remuneration
Bk

FeRkEE  WERA SEfX  We4E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRET TAT TRT THT

2021 —EC--f

Executive directors: HOEE:

Mr. Ng Wee Keat BRALE 1,711 142 93 1,946

Ms. Sio lon Kuan ERELL 1,758 155 9% 2,009

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda BERBELL 1,063 100 59 1,222

Ms. Lilian Ng BEMERL 952 70 51 1,073

Ms. Chen Ka Chee BRi& B T 797 80 44 921

Mr. Yu Wai Man REXRE 1,835 242 104 2,181
8,116 789 447 9,352

2020 —T-EF

Executive directors: HOEE:

Mr. Ng Wee Keat HERTE 1,869 214 104 2,187

Ms. Sio lon Kuan FEELL 1917 234 108 2,259

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda BERMRT 1,156 146 65 1,367

Ms. Lilian Ng BHELL 1,044 113 58 1215

Ms. Chen Ka Chee BRI m 2zt 857 13 49 1,019

Mr. Yu Wai Man REXRE 1,969 305 13 2,387

8,812 1,125 497 10,434
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BAF5 R R aE

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued)
(i) Executive directors (continued)
As the Group was affected by outbreak of
COVID-19, all executive directors of the Company
voluntarily agreed to waive their basic monthly
salary by 25% temporarily with effect from
1 November 2020 until further notice. Save as
disclosed above, there was no other arrangement
under which any director waived or agreed to

waive any remuneration during the year.

(b) Five highest paid employees’ emoluments
The five highest paid employees during the year
included five (2020: five) executive directors, details
of whose remuneration are disclosed in note 8(a)

above.

8. EERAUBSHEEMNS (H)

() EEM= (&)
(i) BiTEFE (&)

MR AL EZF20198 ik &
SREZNTE Bk A2
AERTEFHERRAREY
R HE AR AHR25% &
—E-_THE+-F-HE&
MEEZBTEM B EXE
BEEIN  RAFE WEF
MEZRELREXRERE
EaI B & 2 H A& 5k

(b) ERBSHFESHS
REFE  ERSEHESSER
R(ZE-F%: BE)RGTEE
H B S 2 #1EE R L XM s
W -
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INCOME TAX 9.
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of
the Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime. The first HK$2,000,000
(2020: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of this
subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2020: 8.25%) and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2020:
16.5%). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the

jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Current — Hong Kong BVER— &%
Charge for the year REEEM
Underprovision in prior years BEFEREEDR
Current — Elsewhere BVER — H fth 3t [
Charge for the year REEER
Underprovision/(overprovision) BAFEREBTR/
in prior years (HBFER )
Deferred (note 24) FIEFIE (M 5E24)

Total tax charge for the year REEMRBAERERE

BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

Frig %

RAFE BEENSHIREEEESL
2 B ET R TR M 3216.500 .2 T & &
o ERBERNEHRRS - NEE—XK
MEBARIRAERER ZMBARE
2,000,000/ 7T (== =Z 4 : 2,000,000
B TT) B FE SR B A K 1k8.25% (Z T =
T : 8.250%) OB K BB - M A &R IE
RRHEF BE16.5% (Z T T F ¢
16.5% ) B B R AN - B fhith (= 2 B ER
ot s A B¢ 18 T AR 38 72N &= B £ 7S PR AE RDA
EERBRITHEANE -

2021 2020
—EBEC-—F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
9,636 9,015

46 13

130 160

1 (19)

(1,038) 345
8,775 9,514
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BAF5 R R aE

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

9. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/
(loss) before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions
in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries
are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates,

and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the

9. FiiE® ()

RARNRBRERNBOHE R R E
ZRAREER ZAER RSB Z R A
WA (BR) R HARXEIZE
BRI KR E MBS 2 - ARE
ARE (AEERR) BERBRE 28

statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as R
follows:
2021
—E-—F
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
EE Hitrih @ L
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TR TR TET

Profit/(loss) before tax BB AEF,/ (E8) 10,803 (81,963) (71,160)
Tax at the statutory tax rate REEREFE WA 1,782 165 (13,934) 170 (12,152) 17.1
Lower tax rates enacted AR ET /9

by local authority REH % (165) (1.5) (99) 0.1 (264) 0.4
Adjustments in respect of HBREHRZ

current tax of previous S E

periods )78 2 46 0.4 1 - 47 (0.1)
Income not subject to tax BERT 2 WA (3,051) (282 (580) 0.7  (3,631) 5.1
Expenses not deductible for tax A 1% 2 FI % 10,324 955 14,792 (18.1) 25,116 (35.3)
Tax losses utilised BEBAHBES (686) (6.4) - - (686) 1.0
Tax losses not recognised AERTBER 1,291 12.0 - - 1,291 (1.8)
Others HAot (897) (8.3) (49) 0.1 (946) 13
Tax charge at the Group's BAGEERFIX

effective rate AECHEER 8,644 80.0 131 (02) 8775 (12.3)
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INCOME TAX (continued)

2020
—E-FF

Profit before tax

Tax at the statutory tax rate
Lower tax rates enacted
by local authority
Adjustments in respect of
current tax of previous
periods
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax
Tax losses utilised
Tax losses not recognised
Others

Tax charge at the Group's

effective rate

B Bt A A

BEEREFT R ZHR
A BART L A9
RERE
HBAMEZ
SRR
IR
BRERBZBA
TR 2 X
EBRHBER
AERBEER
it

BRAGEERKX
AHECHEER

FHLEEEEETRAA
Annual Report 2021 F3k
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BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

9. FiiE® ()

Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
B H & &t
HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
TR THET THET
5,493 52,656 58,149
906 16.5 8,952 17.0 9,858 17.0
(165) (3.0) (99) (0.2) (264) (0.5)
13 0.2 (19) - (6) -
(2,314)  (42.1)  (8695)  (165) (11,009)  (189)
6,500 118.3 2 = 6,502 11.2
(384) (7.0) - - (384) 0.7)
303 5.5 = = 303 0.5
4514 82.2 = = 4514 7.8
9,373 170.6 141 03 9514 16.4
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BAF5 R R aE

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

10. DIVIDENDS

11.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share
amounts is based on the profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company,
and the number of ordinary shares of 5,780,368,705
(2020: 5,780,368,705) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings/
(loss) per share amounts presented for the years ended
31 March 2021 and 2020 in respect of a dilution as the
impact of the share options outstanding had an anti-
dilutive effect on the basic earnings/(loss) per share

amounts presented.

HHELEEEEERLA

10. B2

11.

ESTRARBNE_F-—F= ]
St-RLEEEEAEARS (25
TE M) -

ERREBRREREAENL
SREF,(&E8)
FREARRMN (BB eBHREA
RAIEBERBREREABEREER
M,/ (BE) RRAFEEEHTEAR
# B5,780,368,705 (ZE = F :
5,780,368,705/%) 5t & -

BE_ZE_ " FRKR_Z_ZFF=H
=ST—RLEFE UEREEHIIRN
BREREF,(BE) e EIELHE
RERSRITE 2 BRELT RO T
EXRRAN/ (BB eBEELETRESE
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BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

11. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 11. AA R EERRERZE AL
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY EREF(EE) (&)
(continued)

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share is EREAREF, (BE) IR TEE
based on: FTE
2021 2020
—BC--F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Earnings/(loss) 2R, (BE)
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary ATESREARAT
equity holders of the Company, (BR)RERAZARRF]
used in the basic earnings/(loss) TR AREREE A
per share calculation FE(Ea T, (&18) (56,712) 15,461
2021 2020
—EB-—F —TFH
Shares igni)
Number of ordinary shares in MRAFEEFAETR
issue during the year, used in EXRAEA,(F8)
the basic earnings/(loss) REE A 2 B 81T

per share calculation TEAREE 5,780,368,705  5,780,368,705
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BAF5 R R aE

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 12.V% BEERREBEURBEES R

LIABILITIES
Right-of-use assets Owned assets
ERE4E kRbEE
Fumiture,
Leasehold Leasehold ~fixtures and Motor Cruise
[and Buildings Total Buidings  improvements  equipment vehicles ships Total Total
HENE AR BE
HELH 5 ait g £ kit & L] &it ait
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAn Thn TEn Thn TAn Thn Thn TET TAn Thn
31 March 2021 T5--E2R=t-R
At3IMach 2020and M-E-FEZR
1 Aprl 2020: ST-BR-3-%f
mA-R:
Cost or valution RAgfEE 138,343 8 138671 10875 6,557 3633 215 199,680 M8 361,541
Accumulated depreciation 27T E (14443) (108) (14551) 2317) (2954) (2,760) (894) - (8,920) @347)
Net carying amount FEEE 123,900 00 124120 8,563 3,603 873 131 199,680 213,950 338,070

AT Apil 2020, netof  RZFZFEMA-R-
acoumulated depreciaion  RZEHELFE 123,900 0 124120 8,563 3603 873 1231 199,680 213950 338070

Addtions 7E - 276 276 - - 569 - 11,770 12339 12615
Deficton revaluatin ~~ Eff B4 = - - - - - - (59,628) (59,628) (59,628)
Deprecition provided ~ NAEEZ

during the year TERE (4645) (187) (483) (335) (1,687) (280) (246) (15,668) (18216) (23,049)
Tansfer to non-curent~ BARERER

asset held for sale FREEE

(nate 13) (R3k13) - - - - - - - (2719) (27,195) (27,19)
Exchange recligment B - - - - - - - 11,476 11,476 11,476

At 31 March 2021, netof  H=F=—
acumulated deprecaton = - - IR 2R
fE258 119,255 309 119,564 8,228 1916 1,162 985 120435 132,726 252290

At 31 March 2021 R-E--£=§

=t-R:
Cost o vluaion AEE 138,343 % 138808 10875 5443 4200 2B 1045 143060 281688
Accumueted depecietion 278478 (19088) (156)  (19244) 73 57 R 117 (1,140) - (038 (295%)

Net canying amount it 119,255 309 119,564 8,228 1916 1,162 985 120435 132,726 252,290
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BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 12.V% BEERREBEURBEER

LIABILITIES (continued) (&)
Right-of-use assets Ouned assefs
fRELE fRmEE
Fumiture,
Leasehold Leaschold ~ fiures and Mator (ruise
[ond Buidings Total Buldngs  improvements  equipment vehices ships Total Total
BEME AN RE
BETH £ aif g7 £ Rikfe HE 5 aif aif

HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HKSOOO  HKSOOD  HKKOOD  HKSOOO  HKSOD  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSOMO
Thn Tin TR TR Thn Tin T Thn Tin TiEn

31 March 2020 “5EEZRSE-H

A1 Apil 2019: RIZ-NEBA-R:
Costor vluztion ARSI EE 160,270 140 160410 15497 1497 3056 2125 23300 255395 415805
Accumulated depreciation  27E17E (14084) - (14.084) (2880) (1497) (2.467) (587) - (143) (21515)
Netcamyingamownt 58 146,186 140 146,326 12617 - 589 1538 23300 24794 394290

A1 Apl 2019, netof  RZZ-AEMA-B-

accumulged depreciation IR BN EZ 58 146,186 140 146326 12617 - 589 1538 23300 247,964 394290
Addiions E - 188 188 - 5060 577 - 6981 12618 12,806
Tansler toinvestment—~ EARENE

propertes (note 14) (g 14) (17429) - (17429) (3674) - - - - (3674) (21,103)
Defict on revaluaton ~~ EfRE#H: - - - - - (7959) (7959) (7959)
Deprecition provided AR Z

during the year TERE (4857) (108) (4965) (380) (1457) (293) Gon (9499 (19%)  (6901)
Bxchange redignment B R = - - - - - - (13063) (13,063) (13,063)

At 31 March 2020, netof R-Z-F£=R
accumulted depreciaton = +-F IR

fE258 13,900 pu|] 124120 8,563 3,603 873 1231 199,680 213950 338070
At 31 March 2020: RZF-EE=F
=i
Cost or valuation HAgE 138,343 8 138671 10875 6,557 3633 215 199,680 870 361,541
Accumulated depreciation  ZiETE (14443) (108) (14551) 312) (2,954) (2,760) (894) - (8,920) @341

Net carying amount REFE 123900 00 124120 8563 3,603 873 1231 199,680 213950 338,070
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31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 12.V% BEERREBEURBEES R

LIABILITIES (continued)

Notes:

(i) The Group's right of use of leasehold land represent
prepaid lease payments. The leasehold land together with
the owned buildings, are held for own use. The leasehold
land are held on medium-term leases expiring between
May 2037 and December 2055.

(i) The Group leases an office unit and a car parking space
used in its operations. Leases for these assets are
negotiated for terms ranging from two to three years with
no extension or termination options and all the lease

payments are fixed.

In March 2021, one of the cruise ships with carrying
amount of HK$27,195,000 was reclassified as non-
current asset held for sale in the consolidated statement
of financial position. Further details are included in note

13 to the financial statements.

The Group's cruise ships included in non-current asset
held for sale and property, plant and equipment were
revalued on 31 March 2021 by Avista Valuation Advisory
Limited (2020: Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited),
an independent professionally qualified valuer, on an
open market basis. A revaluation deficit of
HK$59,628,000 (2020: HK$7,959,000) was resulted
from the above valuations, of which deficit of
HK$66,713,000 (2020: HK$172,000) has been charged
to the profit or loss and surplus of HK$7,085,000 (2020:
deficit of HK$7,787,000) has been credited (2020:

charged) to other comprehensive income.

(&)
f s -

() AEEHELHNEARSRENES
NRE-HELHWBEREENEFT R
BHIEER  -HELIRTHEESRSE
ERN-_Z=+FHAE_ZHRF
T AZREER -

() XEBBEA-—HPLEEMLL—EA
BEUAERLEPHER ZEEERLE
HENHENAME=F TEEH
RRIEEERE MEHENKREAR
&l 5E -

RZZBE-_—F=ZRA HP—MEEESHE
#327,195,0007% 7T &) 0 4 7E 47 & B 751K
ARNEFDEAFAEFENIERDE
EoAlE— S HBEENMERKRM T
13 ©

FEEBEAERENRENERBDEEMN
k¥ BERKENBHRR T =—
F=A=+t-—BEBIEXESERMEE
MY ESATIEFZRABERAA(ZEZF
F-ERFTEETHEBERAE) R
BARME#ETEMR - LlEEEEZ
B B4 559,628,000 L (Z T =%
% :7,959,0008 L) - E A E A
66,713,000/ 7L (ZF =F 4 : 172,000
BL)EMBEEZ  URHEFPREHK
7,085,000 T (ZE =T F : AL
7,787,000 7T) It A (ZEZF
mne) 2 mikes -
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s cruise ships:

Recurring fair value

measurement for:

2021
Cruise ship included in
property, plant and

equipment

2020

Cruise ships

(%)

BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

12. 9% BERRKEBUREERRE

AT EEER
TRERAREBS AT HENEE

Yo o
IN -

Fair value measurement as at 31 March using

R=ZBA=+-BAFEBEHERH

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
B BRT BART
miEHRE BEBAE BRBAE
(B—-EBX) (B=EX) (B=EX) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FHET FHET
BEMDF
BlEHE -
—B--f
BEENE
LSS
B & - - 120,435 120,435
—E-FF
By - - 199,680 199,680
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31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s cruise ships: (continued)

12.Y% BERSBEUAREEER
(%)
NP EEREX (EH)
TREATAEEBHOA T EAENEE

R (88)

Fair value measurement using

AFEEERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
B BARTH BARHA
miEHRE BEBAE BRBAE
(B-EBR) (B=EX) (B=ZEN) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT FET FHET
Non-recurring fair value ~ FEHEH AT
measurement for: BlE:E
2021 —g--F
Cruise ship included in ~ BEEHERHEN
non-current asset held ~ JEREIEER
for sale B - - 27,195 27,195

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil).

RAFE BEBEEE-BRARE_EX
CHEBHMRBETEE=EAEAREL
AFEBEFE(ZE_ZF &) -
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised

within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Carrying amount at beginning of year
Addition
Depreciation provided during the year
Deficit on revaluation
Transfer to non-current asset

held for sale (note 13)

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount as at 31 March

FHELEEFTEERLQA

Annual Report 2021 F3k

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R EE

31 March 2021

—E-—F=ZA=+—H

12. 9% BERRKEBUREERRE

(&)
NFEEEX(E)
DPERATFEEBRAANE=ZEBROAT
BEFENHER:
Cruise ships
b )
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
RFEDERE R 199,680 233,220
NE 11,770 6,981
RAFEZ2TERE (15,668) (19,499)
EEEAL (59,628) (7,959)
BARBHEN
FEREBEE (ME13) (27,195) =
M X 11,476 (13,063)
R=A=+t—HNERESHE 120,435 199,680
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31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 12
LIABILITIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used

and the key inputs to the valuation of cruise ships:

Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable inputs
b BB i EXTAHERAE
Cruise ships Market data or comparative Market price per unit
Bin sales approach BEMMRER
TS EER AR
HEE
Cost approach Remaining useful life
A% Fere AEH
Rate of newness
e
Market discount rate
[ EiEiES

The market data or comparative sales approach considers
prices recently paid for similar assets, with adjustments
made to the indicated market prices to reflect the
condition and utility of the appraised assets relative to
the market comparative. Assets for which there is an
established second-hand market comparable are best

appraised by this approach.

The key input was the market price per unit, which a
significant increase/decrease in the market price would
result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value

of the cruise ships.

HE-BEERRBURBERE

(#&)

AT EEER (H)

BATR % 9t 6 % 165 FAT 5 PR A0 £ 1 B I
TEHAENHRE

Range

#E
2021 2020
—E--§ —TZEF

US$17,310,000 to  US$22,413,000 to
US$21,730,000 US$29,498,000
17,310,000%TE 22,413,000% L%
21,730,000% ¢ 29,498,000 T

4 to 15 years 5to 16 years
E+HE BETARF
4% to 8% 6% to 9%
4%Z% 8% 6%Z9%
30% 20%

30% 20%

T 453 B8 o8 T b B 05 0 R AL
VA B FT S A 0 (A 3 4T MO T 5B
AR R - LARBRS AT 8 2
5 AT (E BB R - AR
AL B2 = 5 450 B DA R A

RERE-

TRHAERBEMTISER - MHE
RAIEIE N, B & B N FEE
RIEHE N, o
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The cost approach considers the cost to reproduce or
replace in new condition the assets appraised in
accordance with current market prices for similar assets,
with allowance for accrued depreciation arising from
condition, utility, age, wear and tear, or obsolescence
present, taking into consideration past and present

maintenance policy and rebuilding history.

The key inputs were the rate of newness and the market
discount rate, which a significant increase/decrease in the
rate of newness in isolation would result in a significant
increase/decrease in the fair value of the cruise ships
and a significant increase/decrease in the market
discount rate in isolation would result in a significant

decrease/increase in the fair value of the cruise ships.

Had the cruise ships been carried at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, their
carrying amount would have been approximately
HK$137,891,000 (2020: HK$165,942,000).

At 31 March 2021, the land and buildings in Hong Kong
with a net carrying value of HK$122,773,000 (2020:
HK$127,470,000) were pledged to secure a banking
facility granted to the Group (note 29).

Annual Report 2021 F3k
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BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

12. % BERRKBUREERR

(%)

[P EEEBX (R
RAEDRBEUEENRITNISE
1% HBREGHOR - B iRH - FERE
FHENBEMSIBMWRFINE  LEE
BBENMBENREBERBERLE -
AEGEEEENEMANBELEEN
XA

EE A B AR ERTHIE 5
FEEBABEN A RERBHA
FEEABED WD - B FIMEE
WA, BB HE R AT EE
KIERD,/ 0

it 52 5 B dm R E S A AN R A& T & O
BEERIE BAESF2HRESELN
137,891,000 T (ZE =& &
165,942,000/ 7T) °

R-ZE-_—F=ZfA=+—8  ~5£EK
I EEA122,773,0008 T (ZE =%
& : 127,470,000 7T) 2 B E T R E
FEMEERF  ABRGAEEERZRIT
& (f:E29) °
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AR5 R R EE
31 March 2021

— = —

=

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE

—#=A=+—*H

12. 9% -BERRKBUREERR

LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land
and buildings used in its operations. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire the leasehold land with
lease periods of 23 to 44 years, and no ongoing
payments will be made under the terms of these land

leases.

Leases of an office unit and a car parking space generally
have lease terms between two and three years.

Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and

(&)

AEBEREBEA
AEELSELETERANTE LI RE
FHERI THEAN - RRBHEEL
o AREEXN—BEFR AHRE
ERR_tT==20+0F REZFL
HWHERRR - BERENK -

—ERAEEM R —EAELNHEES
—RRPME=F - —RMN5  ~XKE
ERASENSNEENDHBEEET
[EE

subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use

() EREEE

RAFE  NEBEEBEEENK

assets and the movements during the year are as HeELMEBEHHUT -
follows:
Leasehold
land Buildings Total
HELH BF &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FHET
As at 1 April 2019 RZZE-NAFHA—A 146,186 140 146,326
Additions =l - 188 188
Transfer to investment  ## A% &
properties LES (17,429) - (17,429)
Depreciation charge WEEHR (4,857) (108) (4,965)
As at 31 March 2020 RZ-ZE_ZTF=A
and 1 April 2020 =+t—BEK
—E-ZFMYA—H 123,900 220 124,120
Additions 3 hn - 276 276
Depreciation charge mEEA (4,645) (187) (4,832)
As at 31 March 2021 R_ZB_—F=H1
=r—1E 119,255 309 119,564
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

FHELEEFTEERLQA

Annual Report 2021 F3k
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B F5 R R EE

AND LEASE

The carrying amounts of the lease liabilities and the

movements during the year are as foll

Carrying amount at
beginning of year

New leases

Accretion of interest recognised
during the year

Payments

Carrying amount at 31 March

Analysed into:
Current portion

Non-current portion

Oows:

R
RS
A

WA R
JEE D
e

R=A=+—"HWHEE&%

DA
mENEP D

FERBE D

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed

in note 36 to the financial statements.

31 March 2021

—E-—F=ZA=+—H

12. 9% BERRKEBUREERRE

REBEEREBEAN (B
(b) HE&EE
RAFE
BRAZEHMT

HERENERESER

Lease liabilities

HEEsE
2021 2020
—EBEC-—F —EZEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHT
221 140
276 188
10 5
(195) (112)
312 221
171 140
141 81
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31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation

to leases are as follows:

Interest on lease liabilities

Depreciation charge of
right-of-use assets

Expense relating to short-term
leases (included in
administrative and

operating expenses)

Total amount recognised in

profit or loss

HERENHNE
EHEEERN
FEER
HEMEERHA
M X (BHEE
TRREE
X A)

EHERANERN
HE

HHELEEEEERLA

12.Y% BERSBEUAREEER
(%)
rEBEEREBA ()
© HBBEBXENEIRNSEMT :

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T THET

10 5

4,832 4,965

275 181

5117 5,151
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continued)
The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14)
consisting of five commercial properties in Hong Kong
and one commercial property in Singapore under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases
generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the
then prevailing market conditions. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year was
HK$16,268,000 (2020: HK$19,316,000) (note 5).

The Group also leases its property, plant and equipment
consisting of two cruise ships under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require
the charterer to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions. No charter service income was
recognised by the Group during the year (2020:
HK$64,175,000) (note 5).

At 31 March 2021 and 2020, the undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants

and a charterer are as follows:

Within one year —F R
After one year but within two years

After two years but within three years

—FREMER
MEFRE=FA

FHLEEEEETRAA
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31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

N.9¥% -BEERREUARBEEAE
(&)
AEEEREHEA
AEERBLCEHERHBEREME
(ME14) (RENRESHRAEREY
EUARMRIIMEH —BEEEYE) B
H-HERRXR—RERKBPIMNRE
© - WHRTEAREERABITTIHARR
THRAERS RAFE  AEBE®ER
S KA K16,2680008 T (ZF =
T4 1 19,316,000/870) (M 3E5) °

AEBITRBEEHELHFBEME
R R (R EmEER) BHE -8
BR—RERKBAAZIMNRES - LR
EARBEREBITT SRR ERAE
e RAFE AERWERIEM
HFERBERA(ZZEZZ F
64,175,000/ 7T) (M 5E5) °

MR_BEZ—FRZZF_TF=A=1+—
B A"EEREBEEEBPS REA AL
B 7 B 45 8 4 4 R B R R SR A R IR R A
AFHRBERREOT :

2021 2020
—B-—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
14,978 17,898
5,284 11,863

180 2,918

20,442 32,679
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BAF5 R R aE

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

13.

14.

NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE

In March 2021, a potential cruise ship buyer approached
the Group for purchasing the cruise ship “Leisure World"
and the board of directors were then committed to a
plan to sell the cruise ship. As of the end of the reporting
period, the board of directors considered that the
disposal transaction is highly probable and will complete
within one year. The cruise ship under the cruise ship
charter services operating segment has been classified as
non-current asset held for sale in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021.

On 22 April 2021, the Group, through an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of
the cruise ship for a cash consideration of approximately
US$3,592,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$27,909,000) (the “Cruise Ship Disposal”). The
transaction was completed on 25 May 2021. Further
details of the Cruise Ship Disposal were included in the
Company's announcement dated 22 April 2021.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 31 March 2021, the Group's investment properties
consist of five (2020: five) commercial properties in Hong
Kong and one (2020: one) commercial property in
Singapore. The Group’s investment properties were
revalued on 31 March 2021 by Knight Frank Petty Limited
and PREMAS Valuers & Property Consultants Pte. Ltd.,
independent professionally qualified valuers, at an aggregate
balance of HK$540,780,000 (2020: HK$551,576,000). Each
year, the Group's executive directors decide to appoint
which external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group's properties. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained. The
Group's executive directors have discussions with the
valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation results
twice a year when the valuation is performed for interim
and annual financial reporting.

HHELEEEEERLA

13.

14.

BFEGENERBEE
RZEZ—F=H B REEHERE
FEBAEE S E B Leisure
World] » EE 2R ERBETEEZME
HEHpMard - RNBERR EF2R
B HEXSHAREERK  THEER
—ERER R_TB-_—F=ZA=+—
BHEGEMBRRET  BEHBESR
BRESHBANBHEEHIERAFAR
FENERBEE -

RZEZ—FMOA=Z+=H ' A&EE
BEEEEEWNB AR BB E =T
VEEWE  SREBRLEE B@AR
£ KRB 43,592,000 T (HERH
27,909,000 7T) ([ B EEE]) -
ERAXSER _E-_—FHA-+HAB
TR EEBRLESEMNE —SFHE
BERARRBEBHA-_T-_—FMA
Zt+ZHZRAER-

REYE
MR-_ZBE-—E=ZF=+—H A&£EH
BREMERERAE(ZZE=-2F : 1)
URBEBZEEMER—H(ZEZE
Fro—H)MNRFTMEZEHEDE - R
—E-—F=ZA=+—H8 ' AEEMK
BEYXERBILBESERGERMES A
ER/17THR A 5 PREMAS Valuers & Property
Consultants Pte. Ltd. 2 {4 #2{E540,780,000
B (ZZT == :551,576,000/87C) °
BF  AKERTEFTATEAB —R
SNEGEMBEASEYENINISGE
B - #EEBEMSNE BE B
VHREGHEFEREKE - REEHT
EFHGEEMEFRPHREFHBR
FHETHERIRGEERIRGEER
MR ©
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further details of which are
included in note 12 to the financial statements.

Certain of the Group's investment properties located in
Hong Kong with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$183,000,000 (2020: HK$190,000,000) at 31 March
2021 have been pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group as further detailed in note 29 to
the financial statements. Further details of the Group's
investment properties are included on pages 263 and
264.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's investment properties:

BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

14. REY % (&)

RELEHE REVEDHVETE=
T ARE-FHFBERMBRRME
12 ¢

R-ZE-Z—F=ZA=+—8  ~5EHE
M #818183,000,000& L (ZE =T F -
190,000,000/ 7T) 2 i R BB B & T
BEMECHEER  UREREBER
ZRITRE - E—TFBRMEmKRM
H20 - AREREMEZE—FFHEH
R EE263 2648 °

AT EERR
TRERASERENFENO A FEES

REX:

Fair value measurement as at 31 March using

R=A=t-BAFREHERRA

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
IR BEXRT BART
T HE HE@AE B
(B—ER) (B=ER) (B=EX) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET AT FTAET FHET
Recurring fair value FEUAT
measurement for: BEE:
2021 —¥--F
Commercial properties EEX/ES - - 540,780 540,780
2020 —ZT-TF
Commercial properties BEME - - 551,576 551,576
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14.
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the vyear, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised

within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

REWME &)
DFEEEBER (R

WAERE  BmES - EARE-ER
ZEER R EEE = EREASE
AFEEHE(CF-FF M) -

DERATFEERRIRAE=ZEXOAF

BEAENHEK:

Commercial properties

2021 2020

—2-—F —E_TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Carrying amount at beginning of year REVNEREE SR 551,576 555,760

Losses from fair value adjustments, net A FEEFAEBZEIE  F58 (19,486) (24,634)
Transfer from right-of-use assets EEREAREEE

(note 12) (FF3E12) = 17,429
Transfer from an owner-occupied EAHEABR

property (note 12) 2 (FiEE12) = 3,674

Surplus on revaluation of a property e A ey - 8,097

Exchange realignment HE H A& 8,690 (8,750)

Carrying amount at 31 March R=EZA=+—HNEEE® 540,780 551,576
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REYZ (F)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) ANFEEEEX(E)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used NTRRREMREEFMRANGER
and the key inputs to the valuation of investment MEkEEHAEBNOHE :
properties:
Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable inputs Range
B ERTAUEHERAE gE
2021 2020
—E=— “E-EF
Commercial Direct comparison Market price per square foot HK$15,000 to HK$18,000 to
properties approach method BYARTHER HK$36,000 HK$33,000
BENE HERLEA 15,0007 7t £ 18,000/ TE
36,0007 7T 33,000 7T

Income capitalisation

approach method FEFRMEES
WAB K% Capitalisation rate
BAbH %

The direct comparison approach method provides the
market value of an expropriated property by comparing it
to values obtained in the open market of similar
properties. It follows three basic steps in arriving at the
value of the properties, including identifying the highest
and best use of the property; identifying similar
properties that have been previously sold (the
“comparable sales”); and adjusting the value of the

comparable sales.

The key input was the market price per square foot,
which a significant increase/decrease in the market price
would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair

value of the investment property.

Market rent per square foot

HK$210 to HK$320

HK$180 to HK$440

2108 T ZE320% T 180/ T 24408 7T
2.75% to 3.00% 2.75% to 3.00%
2.75%%3.00% 2.75%%3.00%

BERLBABBLREAHAMSIREE
U EEEMREELKM ENTISE
B -HEBEDEBERKBE=AZX
T BRERAVENSZARRERS
BRBREMEHENBUDE ([FTHLE
HED  REALREENBERELSH

B o
=

TEHAERBFEIRMGER - TH
ERAREN R EEBREMEDR
FEEXEEM R -
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The fair value determined by the income capitalisation
approach method is the sum of the term value and the
reversionary value by discounting the contracted annual
rent at the capitalisation rate over the existing lease
period; and the sum of the average unit market rent at

the capitalisation rate after the existing lease period.

The key inputs were the market rent per square foot and
the capitalisation rate, which a significant increase/
decrease in the market rent in isolation would result in a
significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the
investment properties and a significant increase/decrease
in the capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a
significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the
investment properties.

15. EQUITY INVESTMENT DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

Equity investment designated EEREAFEETA
at fair value through other Hit 2 E KB
comprehensive income RERE

Unlisted equity investment, BRAFEERN
at fair value FEFTRERE

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as the
Group considers this investment to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group did
not receive any dividend (2020: HK$710,000) from its
unlisted equity investment (note 5).

HHELEEEEERLA

14. REY E ()
AP EEER (F)
A B AR M E A BB R A E
M RBENEFHEBBARAEEN
FRONMEEREREERNAN &2
RARERHGROTHEMNTBRSKE
AL R M A -

TEHAEABFTRMSEAERER
L - TI5H S BB AEE MR
SEBUREME R FEEKREE M,
D AR E AL R B IE AR 0,
PEBRREMELATEBERNERLD
ij]

il

@&

7

o

Rk
=

15. EERBRAFEEFAREMEE

HRZHRERE
2021 2020
—E-—F —_EFTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
3,457 1,513

b RO R B R B IR R AR A
FEEH AR L2 ERS - REAKE
B3R 7 1 o R R -

BE—_ZE-_—F=A=1+—HItFE -
REBNEAEEIE ETHARAE IR B WRER(E
AR (ZE=ZF : 710,000% L) (Kt
F£5)
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16. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

Prepayments TE T R IE

Deposits and other receivables

o SERBE D

Less: Non-current portion

Current portion &

ok

B>

Deposits and other receivables mainly represented rental
deposits, building management fee deposits and
professional fees paid on behalf of borrowers. Where
applicable, an impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date by applying a loss rate approach with
reference to the historical loss record of the Group. The
loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and

forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default and past due amounts. As at 31 March 2021 and

2020, the loss allowances were assessed to be minimal.

B o HAl AR K
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16. BIAFIE - ZREREMEWERER

2021 2020

:g:—ﬂi — 7 — E'E

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT TET

1,578 2,150

4,799 3,923

6,377 6,073

(461) (434)

5916 5,639
ReREMBEKERFERBEKRSE

AEEREREURRERAINOHE

XER - -WER AEERIHRERH

SEAEENELBRCHEERABLAE
EETREIN - BRESELAE
VA BR E B AR 0 B R SR AR 7 A 5L BRI (4

AJ-‘-)O

HE

thEnANmBEEnNeREEDNBBE
AT HA N S 4 R SRR N 8 A SR IR RO R O B
WK - R-_TE_—FR-_FT_TF=
A=1+—B BEEGBRFHEATK-
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17. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

Loan and interest receivables JEUE R R A
Less: Provision for impairment W REWER K
losses on loan and interest M BB R E
receivables BB
Loan and interest receivables, JEWE R MFIE
net of provision BB
Less: Non-current portion o IEREE D
Current portion mENE D

The Group's loan and interest receivables, which arise
from the money lending business of providing secured
mortgage loans and unsecured personal loans in Hong

Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Except for loan and interest receivables of
HK$21,869,000 (2020: HK$29,927,000) as at 31 March
2021, which are unsecured, bear interest and are
repayable with fixed terms agreed with customers, all
loan and interest receivables are secured by collateral
provided by customers, bear interest and are repayable
with fixed terms agreed with the customers. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at each of the reporting
dates is the carrying value of the loan and interest

receivables mentioned above.

17. BRER KRB

2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FRET
661,861 690,433
(2,601) (3,651)
659,260 686,782
(87,770) (133,065)
571,490 553,717

AEBNERERENMETERETEL
EHEEH (REAERRBERLE
HFELAER) MEL  WABTRE

o =1=1

HEAL -

R—_ZE-_—F=ZA=+—H" KB
21,869,000 T (ZF = F F -
29,927,000/ 7T ) B E U E K K F 8 7D
EIER - SR RIREE P TR IEE S
BMAEREIN  FTAERKE R KR S H
EFRHMNERRIEER T ERIRHE
EEHMEMETCHMANESR E5RE
HEMEERRSGSRR A LLERE
REFMEHEEE -
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17. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the provision for impairment losses

on loan and interest receivables are as follows:

At beginning of year R E ]

Provision for/(reversal of) JE U B 2N R B Y
impairment losses on loan and MEEERE
interest receivables (note 6) (BE) (fzke)

At the end of year R 4%

As at 31 March 2021, loan and interest receivables of
HK$6,360,000 (2020: HK$8,131,000) were past due.
Except for overdue personal loan and interest receivables
of HK$1,105,000 (2020: HK$503,000) with no
collateral, the remaining overdue balances of
HK$5,255,000 (2020: HK$7,628,000) were secured
mortgage loans and were related to a number of third-
party customers. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that these overdue mortgage loans were fully
secured by the collateral, accordingly, these balances are

still considered to be fully recoverable and not impaired.
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17. BRER KA E (&)

JRE W & 3R B ) 2 0 Rk 1 S 4 £ S B 4
T~

2021 2020
—EBEC-—F ZEEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
3,651 1,680
(1,050) 1,971
2,601 3,651

R-_E-_—F=A=+—H B@E#x
JE W & 5k & FI| B /6,360,000 T (= F
—Z 4 :8,131,000/87T) o brd Hl & &
H A @ ) P FL A B X & F121,105,000
BIL(ZZEZFF : 503,000/ 7T) 5 -
H 48 HA 45 £45,255,0008 L (Z T =%
% : 7,628,000 L) R AR RIZBE X
RETHRZZE=FEFEEMM - KNAT
EZRRUZTaNRBEREHAERR
2HEIEMT - ALt - WEER DR ER
2 HU Bl R R (E -
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17. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment

losses on loan and interest receivables are as follows:

As at 1 April 2019

Loan recovered or repaid
during the year

Transfer to lifetime expected

credit losses not credit-impaired

(Stage 2)

Transfer to lifetime expected
credit losses credit-impaired
(Stage 3)

Total transferred between stages

Impact on year ended expected

credit loss of exposures transferred

between stages during the year
Movements due to changes

in credit risk
New loan originated

As at 31 March 2020 and
1 April 2020

Loan recovered or repaid
during the year

Transfer to 12-month expected
credit losses not credit-impaired
(Stage 1)

Transfer to lifetime expected
credit losses not credit-impaired
(Stage 2)

Transfer to lifetime expected
credit losses credit-impaired
(Stage 3)

Total transferred between stages

Impact on year ended expected

credit loss of exposures transferred

between stages during the year
Movements due to changes

in credit risk
New loan originated

As at 31 March 2021

R-_ZE-hEMA—H

FRE R E K
BEBHER

EREEEAFESHESY
ERBX(REARE)
(F-ERK)

EEREERETENES
ERBRX(BERARE)
(B=FE)

PEER 2 R A

4 19 [ B i 1 B R 2 R
ERNFRESRER
BROTE

A= E Rk
BHKEH

RETER

RZZFZZTF=A=+—H°
;=T -_ZFMA—H
FRE U
BEEENER
ERET _EAEH
ERABX(RERARE)
(BE—FEER)
EBREBRAGTEDESR
ERBX(RERRE)
(BZFEER)
EREEETESEY
EREX(EERRE)
(B=FEER)

PEER 2 R B
FERERE OS2 B
BREFRBEHER

BROTE
A ER k&
BEYMEY
RENER

R-_ZE-_—%=A=+—H

HHELEEEEERLA

17. BRER KA E (#)
ARG [ R U B R R B RO BB R 1R R

Z2HHmT

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E-KR ERR B &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FHET
1,622 58 S 1,680
717) (45) - (762)
(80) 80 = =
(49) (6) 55 -
(129) 74 55 -
S 661 892 1,553

378 137 . 515
502 = 163 665
1,656 885 1,110 3,651
(880) (492) (438) (1,810)
249 (249) = =
1) 111 = =
Q) - 7 -
131 (138) 7 =
(187) 87 147 47
(1) (34) 47 12
324 377 = 701
1,043 685 873 2,601
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17. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued)

For loan and interest receivables that are not credit-
impaired and without a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition (“Stage 1"), ECL is measured at
an amount equal to the portion of the lifetime ECL that
results from default events possible within the next 12
months. If a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition is identified (“Stage 2") but not yet deemed
to be credit-impaired, the ECL is measured based on
lifetime ECL. In general, when loan receivables or their
related instalments are overdue by 30 days, there is a
significant increase in credit risk. As at 31 March 2021, a
total provision of HK$1,728,000 (2020: HK$2,541,000)
was made under Stage 1 and Stage 2 based on

assessment from the ECL model.

In general, loan and interest receivables are considered in
default when the loan and interest receivables or its
related instalments are overdue by 90 days. As at 31
March 2021, loan and interest receivables with an
aggregate amount of HK$54,381,000 (2020:
HK$100,633,000) were in default under Stage 3 lifetime
ECL and a provision of HK$873,000 (2020:
HK$1,110,000) was made.
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17. BRER KA E (&)

HEERR B NBERERARBREE MR
TREARENERERRMNE (5
—BERmE  BEERBXRNEEES
REBEFERERERERTBEA
FARZE 4 {8 A R 3R B9 K0 14 #9 &6
DHEEE - MEBMANIEERR S
MNinEREEBmEEM(TE BRI -
BEREEECERRE  HEBRERE
KR EEFERABEREBERAE -
—MmE EEKERIEBEBANDH
NR@BH=1+H " RlEERREBEEEY
m RN-—_ZT-_—F=ZA=+—8  RBE
BHERBREXTE EF—BERRK
£ R ERIEHBHE S $£1,728,000% 7T
(ZZ=—FF : 2,541,000 7T) °

—MBmE  BRERRMESEHEED
SDHEFEHNTA  BREFREFE
AlewBEREN R_TE=-_—F=A
=+—H #%%/54381,000/8 T
—Z —ZF 4 100,633,000 L) 2 fE
WERERFEBELEAMBAE =B
BREFEHAEHRERER  WIEHEE
873,000 7L (ZE =T 4 : 1,110,000

YEIE s
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17. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. EWE R RS (&)

A maturity profile of the loan and interest receivables as B & BRI W S 0 % ) SR 15 B HP
at the end of each reporting period, based on the B (EMERE®) 2 B HH[ENT

maturity date, net of provision, is as follows:

2021 2020
—B=-—F —ETFTF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FHET

Current Rl HA 571,490 553,717
Over 1 year and within 5 years —FUERAF A 44,507 84,036
Over 5 years AFMUE 43,263 49,029

659,260 686,782
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables & W E 5 BRK

The Group's billing terms with customers are mainly on
credit. Invoices are normally payable within 30 days of
issuance. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by
senior management. The main type of collateral held by
the Group as security is deposits received from tenants
and a charterer with an aggregate value of
HK$14,436,000 (2020: HK$16,309,000). Except for
trade receivables of HK$39,828,000 (2020:
HK$104,230,000) due from security dealers which bear
interest at floating rates and trade receivables of
HK$3,585,000 (2020: HK$1,854,000) due from tenants
which bear interest at fixed rates on overdue amount, the

trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:
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18. ERE ZRX

2021 2020
—E-—F —EZTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FHET
43,413 116,538

$%lﬂ%ﬁﬁ2%fﬁﬁ£%u%§
FRET BHEBEARNELE=TAH
m%moﬂ—%ﬁ;ﬁﬁétmo$$l
IESISRE R B R 2 R BR RN DA BR 72 42
fl e mAREEAESTHEERA IR
B AREREERERZEMAREE
MR AMBEEFLEARAAKREEBRAS X
14,436,000/ 7T (ZF ZF4F : 16,309,000
BIT) 2% ° $r39,828,0008 T (=T =
T4 1 104,230,000/ 7T) B FEUFE 522 5)
R E 5 R IRF BN 5 B R EYAE
F 8 58R53,5850008 T (ZE=Z4F :
1,854,000/ 7T ) )78 HA & BB 12 [ & FI) R &t
BN BB BERFKTITET B o

BREZZAH RNREHREEREES
FRICETTHRREBE DTN T -

Within 1 month —(EAR

1 to 2 months —ZmEA
2 to 3 months ME=1EH
Over 3 months ={E A AL

2021 2020
—B-—F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
40,242 105,958
349 4,238

349 6,276

2,473 66

43,413

116,538
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. EWWE B RF (&)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are
written off if past due for more than one year and are not

subject to enforcement activity.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9 which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for
all trade receivables. The expected credit loss rate for the
Group's trade receivables is minimal for all the above

bands of trade receivables.

As at 31 March 2021, certain subsidiaries have pledged
trade receivables with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$3,462,000 (2020: HK$1,560,000) to secure banking
facilities granted (note 29).

REREAH  AEBERBBEEMEG
EFRHEREBEXL  ETRED T - 18
REEBUNTREPDHGETH
B BEXASENERE RS ER-
B ERBRB R MEERANNRE
RHRISEBEEN AR AR
KEERRNBANEEBBEKRENG
Beo—RmME  BEEZRFMNAHE
B—F R EETEMRFRITES -
S M o

AEBRBEEMBHREEREISRD
BT A RBRERBRERE  EA
AEMARKE SR REREETEDR
EHBREE -l DA SARNEKE
SEFME  AEBERKE SRR
HERBLAETR -

R-_E-_—F=ZA=+—H HTHE
AR EREE A #53,462,000%
T (ZEZZFF : 1,560,000 70) 1) fE
B 5 RIERERIRITRE A (KT
5£29) o

0
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19. REPOSSESSED ASSETS

The Group obtained assets by taking possession of
collateral held as security. The nature and carrying value
of these assets held as at 31 March are summarised as

follows:

Repossessed properties REEE
— commercial property —BEME
— residential properties —EEYE

They are properties in respect of which the Group has
acquired access or control through court proceedings for
release in full or in part of the obligation of borrowers of
mortgage loans. The estimated market value of the
repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31 March
2021 was HK$50,820,000 (2020: HK$16,000,000)
based on valuation carried out by Knight Frank Petty
Limited, an independent professionally qualified valuer,
using market comparable approach that reflects recent
transaction prices for similar properties, adjusted for
differences in nature, location and conditions of the
properties under review. Each year, the Group's executive
directors decide to appoint which external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuation of the Group's
repossessed asset. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group's
executive directors have discussions with the valuers on
the valuation assumptions and valuation results twice a
year when the valuation is performed for interim and

annual financial reporting.
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19. H\EEE

AEERGHERRRNEELE - %
SER=A=T-ERENEENEER
BRE AL T

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH&xT FET
14,132 14,132
32,385 -
46,517 14,132

HAREEZREERFIGEARE
HENYE  ERBHREBERERA
ek BoEE R_E=_—F=A
=+—H BREEBUZESERGE
EMAE SR ERIIT AR A RIFKA TS LR
ERBEUMESINORZER I
REBAMENME NERURIHER
EHAR) ETTHEE  NEBFAEA
WEBEENRKTMBSEER
50,820,000 L (Z T =& & :
16,000,000/ 7T) « B - REB BT
EEAREZEW—KINEEEHEER
SEEGEEENIIEGE - FHEEAE
EmSME B2 BUMRREH#HE
HEKE - AEERTEFTHELBEME
FHPMAREFHBEREEITHER
A EREREELERAKR
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19. REPOSSESSED ASSETS (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s repossessed assets

and the movements during the year are as follows:

As at 1 April 2019, RZZE—-—NFMNA—AH -
31 March 2020 —EZEF=R=+—
and 1 April 2020 K_Z_ZTFHPH—H

Possession of properties WMEMEEBE

Sale of repossessed asset HEREEE

Provision for impairment loss  JF{E B 18 B &

As at 31 March 2021 N-—EBE_-_—F=H=+—H

During the year ended 31 March 2021, a total provision
of HK$300,000 (2020: Nil) was made for one of the
residential properties which the amortised cost of the
related outstanding loan exceeded the market value of

the property.

19. BEEE (&)

RAFE AKBERRAENEEEH
KREEHMT

Commercial Residential

property  properties Total
[GEZZES FEWHE &5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET

14,132 - 14,132
- 35,886 35,886
- (3,201) (3,201)
- (300) (300)
14,132 32,385 46,517

HE-_ZT-_—FZA=+T—HLFE "
REPF-—HEEWERELEES H
3000008 T (ZE_EF &) - HE
B ARERERNEEKARBBRZYE
IR EE -
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19. REPOSSESSED ASSETS (continued)

Details of the Group's repossessed properties and

information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 March
2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Recurring fair value
measurement for:

2021
Commercial property
Residential properties

2020
Commercial property

FEUERT

BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

19. KEEE (&)
RZBZ—FRZIZFZTF=HA="4—
H BRARAEEEEEENFBEARA
FEEEXESNT

Fair value measurement as at 31 March using

R=ZR=+-HBAFEEFHERH

Quoted prices

BEE

—E-—&
mEME
EEME

—E-%F

[CE3/ES

Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
B BAH BARH
miEHRE HEBAE HEQ AR
(E—-BRX) (B=BR) (B=ER) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET
- - 15,700 15,700
- - 35,120 35,120
- - 50,820 50,820
- - 16,000 16,000

During the vyear, there were no transfers of fair value

measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil).

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and

the key input to the valuation of repossessed assets:

Commercial and
residential properties

EEREETYWHE

Valuation technique

fEE M

Direct comparison
approach method

BEERLEX

RAFE  BRES—BARE-ER
2 R R A B S B RW AR
AFBEHE(CT-FF 8) -

AT AEEEEREMRANGBER
MEkEEHAEBNHRE :

Significant unobservable input

EXRTABERAE

Market price per square foot
X HREHER
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31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

20. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Listed equity investments, BRAFEERN
at fair value FHRERE

The above equity investments were classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as they were

held for trading.

At 31 March 2021, the Group’s equity investments
amounting to HK$96,537,000 (2020: HK$14,119,000)
were pledged to secure banking facilities and securities

margin account facilities granted to the Group (note 29).

Assuming the portfolio of the Group's equity investments
remained unchanged, the market value of the Group's
equity investments at the date of approval of these

financial statements was approximately HK$94,160,000.

20 BAFEEFABENRERE

2021 2020
—E-—F —EFTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
96,537 14,119

MR ERRERAE R EEE - A5
EAERATEBIABRNCMER -

R-ZE-_—F=ZA=+—8 A&£EEAE
96,537,000 L (Z T =T F :
14,119,000 7T) 2 Ki#EHKR BB EE
A UBRERTAEEZRITHERE
HFRFBEEPHAE (MT5E29) ©

BEAEBNRESEHEETTE
AEBNBRERERNATERRIEZ
H T {E 4794,160,0008 T °
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21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances B RIETEF
Time deposits EHER

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and twelve
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and time
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no

recent history of default.

FHELEEFTEERLQA

Annual Report 2021 F3k

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA 5 3R R P 5E
31 March 2021

—E-—F=ZA=+—H

2. RERBREEEY

2021 2020
—E_—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FAIT
257,305 161,698
196,992 277,113
454,297 438,811

RITFERDRES B RITF RN R2F
B EREFE - RHRERFERZEFRER
NF-—HE+_EAATE RFLAKHE
ZERREHEME @ WS EHE D
TFRMEGR - RITHEEREHRERT
TF RS2 R o B I &3 4 R R L

8% 2 R1T o
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31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

22. ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS

RECEIVED

Accruals

Other payables and deposits received

Portion classified as

non-current liabilities

Current portion

22 BEFIR - HtENRRRE W

®e
2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
FE&TFRIE 1,933 2,280
HEMEMAERRERIES 30,926 17,770
32,859 20,050

DIERIERE

BENE D (3,094) (3,386)
B ER 29,765 16,664
HEMNERAETTER—RERNLT

The other payables are non-interest-bearing and are

normally settled on 90-day terms.

(=
=0
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31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

23. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 23 B AR EBENS AEXZNLRAR
PROFIT OR LOSS

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Assets Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
BE =R BE af&

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TERT TAET TAET

Equity option accumulator REHEZRTE

contracts RIBHES LD — — = 391
The equity option accumulator contracts were a series of BEMEZRERBHESNALTEER
forward contracts for the Group to accumulate specific BENEBEAXZBEEEERRER
units of certain securities listed on the Stock Exchange BEBIAM ETOE TESNBEFEEN
according to the contracts at predetermined prices on M— Ry EHEY MBRBEIELAES
every trading day. The equity option accumulator AR AEFERR S BT ESR
contracts would be terminated automatically if the closing R EEKREE  AIREHERER
prices of the underlying securities on any specified EHESHEEBRIE-

trading day during the contract periods are at or above

the predetermined knock-out prices.

w

FANR/TESRITA RBEEHK

These contracts were derivative financial instruments and

were measured at fair value at the end of the reporting BEATFEEFE- EA_$:—¢ =A
period. As at 31 March 2021, all equity option =t—H FERZHEZERELE
accumulator contracts expired and fair value gains of BRPYELEH YERBE_T=—
HK$391,000 in respect of these contracts were FmA=T—"HULEFEANRZEENE

recognised in the profit or loss for the year ended 31 BmAERAFEEBERZE391,0008
March 2021. As at 31 March 2020, the fair values of the T -R_E_TF=A=+—H " 1BE
equity option accumulator contracts for the Group were BUBXEEBRMGEEMETHNRE K
stated at a credit balance of HK$391,000, based on the CEERENEIZERERESNNAF
valuation performed by an independent professionally BEAEH 53910008 T ERK
qualified valuer, and fair value losses of HK$391,000 in HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HLFERX
respect of these contracts were recognised in the profit MZEEHNEERENERALEEESE

or loss for the year ended 31 March 2020.

W
O
IS
o)
e
o
S
&
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31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

24. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 24,

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

during the year are as follows:

EEHRBEEE &F
BERIBEEREERAFE 2EZH
T

Deferred tax liabilities EZEHEEE
2021
—E——F
Accelerated tax
depreciation on
property, plant
and equipment
ME BERSE
B IR B AL T B
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2020 RZZE_ZTFMA—H 28,392
Deferred tax credited to the RAFEEEBZNFTA
profit or loss during the year (note 9) ZIEERIIE (BT 7E9) (1,481)
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZEBE-_—F=ZR=+—H
at 31 March 2021 ZIEERIBE ERTE 26,911
Deferred tax assets EERESE
2021
—EC--F
Provision for Decelerated Losses

impairment
losses on loan
and interest

tax depreciation available for
on property, for offsetting
plantand  against future
equipment  taxable profits Total
nE HER A5 8
RENHE ARERB

BEFE wHZER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TR TR
(1) (8374) (8,834)

4 269 443

receivables

EUERR

FSHRE

BRER

HK$'000

TR

At 1 April 2020 RZZ-ZFMA-A (419)
Deferred tax charged to RAFEEREA
the profit or loss during Nk EERE

the year (note 9) (W39) 133

Gross deferred tax assets RZB-Z-£=A=1-H
at 31 March 2021 LERHEARERR (286)

- (8,105) (8,391)
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The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

during the year are as follows: (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 April 2019

Deferred tax charged to the
profit or loss during the year (note 9)

Gross deferred tax liabilities

at 31 March 2020

Deferred tax assets

At 1 April 2019

Deferred tax credited to
the profit or loss during
the year (note 9)

Gross deferred tax assets
at 31 March 2020

BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

24 BEERBEE B E (F)

EXHBRABREERNANFREZESHNM

T ()
BEEHRIEEE
2020
—E_TF
Accelerated tax
depreciation on
property, plant
and equipment
M - BERERE
IR ST E
HK$'000
FET
R-ZZE—NAFHEHA—H 23,882
RARFE R B AR
ZEFETIE (M 3E9) 4,510
R_E_ZEF=A=+—H
2B IA B E R 28,392
FEEHIREE
2020
—BFE
Provision for Decelerated Losses
impairment  tax depreciation available for
losses on loan on property, for offsetting
and interest plant and against future
receivables equipment  taxable profits Total
RUESR 9% BER A
MEHRE REBARE ARERH
BiEER HBHE B ER aat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TR TET TEL
RZZ2-nEMA—H (277) (29) (4,363) (4,669)
RAFEEREA
STAZERERE
(Htzr9) (142) (12) (4,011) (4,165)
RZBZZE=A=1-H
LERREEELES (419) (41 (8,374) (8,834)
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31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

24. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued) 24,

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial
position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax

balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised ~ R 4R 4 B R &K
in the consolidated statement of R ZELERIE
financial position BEFH

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$280,347,000 (2020: HK$277,259,000). The tax
losses in Hong Kong are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets of
HK$38,152,000 (2020: HK$37,374,000) have not been
recognised in respect of tax losses because these tax
losses have arisen in companies that have been loss-
making for some time and it is uncertain that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilised.

At 31 March 2021, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2020: Nil) for tax that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group's
subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to additional tax

should such amounts be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

EEBREE BB (H)
HIMME - MBRRERAE FEER
FAERABED TES - A THIIEH
BREMRZAEBETRALHZSH
7

2021 2020
—E-—F —EFTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHET
18,520 19,558

AREBREBELEB BB B
280,347,000 L (Z & =T & :
277,259,000 ) - REBEEZ T
BEEBAERAREREESERZD
Bl 2 RRERT R F o A& B IR Z
EREBEEBRRECHEEE
38,152,000 T (ZF = F F :
37,374,000/ 7w) - Az SR IEE BT
REEBE—BREEZRF mMATE
ERRREE L RERT A MIA K HZFBR
HEE -

R-ZE-_—F=A=+—B AEEHZ
B EY EEARERBNMAXNZ
MEHBTMERRERELHARE
“ETF B ANREREARE
o REELEBIFIHEAE -

A B [A) A% ERTR A5 A% B 3 4 4 BT A
FiiSfHER -
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31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. kA&
Shares gy
2021 2020
—B2-—F —E_THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Authorised: ETE
40,000,000,000 ordinary shares 40,000,000,000/% & I E &
of HK$0.0025 each 0.0025/8 7L 2 LBk 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EBITRER :
5,780,368,705 ordinary shares 5,780,368,705% & X H &
of HK$0.0025 each 0.00258 Lz LBk 14,451 14,451
Share options i8R R
Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the KRG BT B A RIBEZ ST
share options granted under the schemes are included in B B AR 2 S B R B IS R M A

note 26 to the financial statements. 26 °
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 26. BRETE
—:inﬂmaﬁ”zmﬂﬂ%
REFRKE F TEAEZRDBBUK

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 4 n=

September 2012, ordinary resolutions were passed for

the adoption of a share option scheme (the "2012 Share
Option Scheme”) and the termination of the share option
scheme of the Company adopted on 23 September
2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”). Outstanding
share options granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme prior to the termination shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the 2002 Share

Option Scheme.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme and the 2002 Share
Option Scheme (collectively referred to as the
“Schemes”) are operated by the Company for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's

operations.

Details of the Schemes are as follows:

(a) Participants
Participants are any directors (including executive
directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors) of the Company and
employees of the Group and any advisors
(professional or otherwise), consultants, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners, joint venture business partners, promoters,
service providers of any member of the Group who
the board of directors of the Company (the “Board")
considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed or

will contribute to the Group.

M—IE\E%%%%%U (2 -—FBK
A8 YRIEARAR_TT_F
NAZ+=ZBHRMzBERES (1=
TR _FEREFE)) RE_TT-
FREREASE RERLEARE_FTFT—
F R IR AT I3 T 1 R 1T (8 2 RS A
T HEE AL TITE -

*%

*énﬁiﬁ—:iﬁﬁﬁﬂié‘ﬁ% k=
ZT_FERESE (RKBRTZ itr%‘Jr
%\JJ) CREFHEZENDMARNERE
BRINELERM A ERBBEL TR
) R [B % e

ZEREZHBOT

() 2HE
SRERARNBEFNES (BHEH
TES FRTEFRBEILIENTT
EF)RAKEZREERARAE
Fe((E5g) REBHNER
REEEBERAAREEELERZ
EHEHFEJ(Eaﬁ% TEX) WKW

DB AER HER K
BA BP XBEH GEEB
Bt BEARAEEEAKER
Bl lRAGHLIER -

k=l
nH\
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Details of the Schemes are as follows: (continued)

(b) Subscription price

©

The subscription price shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion but in any event

shall not be less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares of HK$0.0025
each of the Company (the “Shares”) as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant of an
option (the “Date of Grant") which must be a

business day;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the five business days

immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Schemes and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not, in the absence
of shareholders’ approval, in aggregate exceed 10%
in nominal amount of the aggregate of Shares in
issue on the adoption date of the Schemes (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit"). Options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Schemes and (as
the case may be) such other share option schemes
of the Company will not be counted for the purpose

of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.

Annual Report 2021 F3k
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26.

BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

BRESE (&)
ZEFEZFHBOT - (B)

(b) REBEE
REEMNRESSREABHNEE
o EEROAAFERT E‘JXIE
FHRSE

() ARAEKEEO.0025% T
Z B ([R5 1) 12 i iR 7 &%
HEMB(EEBEH) (KLER
EHEH) MK TE (LABRA
HIEKRMEERE) :

() BOEEERLBMATAE
EEAMFHKRTIE (Lﬂﬁx
FREMERMEERE)

(i) Bt mEE -

(c) B LR
RS R AL &R - AT P A RIRZ
5t B R AN B fa] H At B AR 4
SR BB R T AT R 31T Y
B ER - St NSEBBARZET
ZIRMBBE BHTORDEELR
10% ([5H 28I X EREE]) - =T &t
SRR - RBEZEAE R (R
BR1ERTE) AR A A MM
MRS BB B R BB IR IE T
FTEE -
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Details of the Schemes are as follows: (continued)

(d)

(e

®

Maximum number of options granted to
each participant

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
grantee under the Schemes (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not (when aggregated with any Shares
subject to options granted during such period under
any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
other than those options granted pursuant to specific
approval by the shareholders in a general meeting)
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue for the time being
(the “Individual Limit").

Period of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in a period notified by
the Board to each grantee at the time of making an
offer, which shall not expire later than 10 years from

the Date of Grant.

Remaining life of the Schemes

The 2002 Share Option Scheme terminated on 4
September 2012. No further options shall thereafter
be offered under the 2002 Share Option Scheme
but the options which had been granted during its
life shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with their terms of issue and in all other
respects the provisions of the 2002 Share Option

Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years commencing on its
adoption date, unless otherwise cancelled or

amended.

HHELEEEEERLA

26.

BRESTE (&)

pys
=

(d)

(e

®

ArEIZEEBET

(&)

ESHRERBRBREZLR

BAEREAEEN+ @A RREZ

FirEERNBRE (BEETE
&*ﬂﬁﬁ'\]ﬁﬁﬁx%) T AT (R B P
BT RAGEITORG LR - T (R
A A HA R A AR R AN 2 Bl el Ho At
BRETTEIREHOERER BT
R & TEERBERRER
RAG FHRMAEMRKENZERE
M) BB E R B BEITIRG 1%
([MAABREED -

FBIRRE 21T
BREATREEHRBEERES

BHEZARAZBEAITRE - E
AREHEHES T FRER -

ZE ot 8l 2 1H B8R A M
—TECSBBRENENERA-T
——FAAMBKL - HETS
BE—TT R AR mﬁ

HEMmRERE - BRGEBERER
Rz BRERBERTHRIAE
BEMNEATIE M_TFT_F
BRI IR ER AR M E
MAEE T BRI RAER -

—E-FBEEREFERREAR
HIRF T FARABR  BRA1TEHRK
RIEFTRI % E Blam
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Details of the Schemes are as follows: (continued)

(g) Acceptance of options
The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 28 and 30 days for the 2012 Share
Option Scheme and the 2002 Share Option
Scheme, respectively, from the Date of Grant, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the Grantee.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

5,600,000 and 248,240,000 share options were lapsed
and expired, respectively during the year ended 31 March
2021 (2020: Nil). An aggregate amount of
HK$17,153,000 (2020: Nil) was transferred from the
share option reserve to retained profits upon lapse or
expiry of the share options.

The following share options were outstanding under the

Schemes during the year:

BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

26. B RERT & (&)

ZEFBZHBOT  (B)

(g BEZER#E
BEELBSS AT =Z+N\B (=
T-—FERERE) R=TRH(Z
TTE_FHERESE) RN AEA
BRAYNEHRIBTZREARE
A AR E TREREZEL -

BERRTERETHESE ABDIRERE XK
EBRRARGREZERN -

HE_T-_—F=-A=+—HLEFE"
5,600,0001% }248,240,00017 i i% # 5
kB RER(ZE_TF: &)  #5
#17,153,0008 L (ZE_FF : #)E
IR R sk B M R IR e
AR F o

RAFEE  BREZFHEMERTERZ
BRESBOT

2021 2020
—E-—-F —T_FF

Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price  share options  exercise price  share options

g 15
TEE BREHE 1T6e(E BREHA
HK$ per share ‘000  HK$ per share '000
BRETRT T BRET ¥
At beginning of year READ 0.1902 386,640 0.1902 386,640
Lapsed during the year — RZAFE K3 0.1917 (5,600) - -
Expired during the year RAEEEH 0.2100 (248,240) - -

At 31 March R=H=t—H 0.1532

132,800 0.1902

386,640
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

HHELEEEEERLA

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share

options outstanding as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

2021
—_E_—F

Number of share options

BRERE
'000
:F

132,800

2020
—E-FF
Number of share options
EES A
‘000
:F

252,040

134,600

Exercise price*
TEE"

HK$ per share
BRET

0.1532

Exercise price*
TTEEE*

HK$ per share
BRET

0.2100

0.1532

There is no vesting period for the outstanding share

options granted to employees and directors.

& The exercise price of the share options is subject to

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

similar changes in the Company's share capital.

26. IBRERT & (&)

RBERR - WARITEZBEREZITE
EBRITERET

Exercise period

171850

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
—E-=%hA=HZ
—E-=FhA=H

Exercise period

171858

21-01-2011 to 20-01-2021
—F——%-A=t—HB=%
—F-—%—HA=+H
03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
—E-=FNAA=RHZE
—E-=FNhA=H

BETREREZEMHEARTEZBEREL
EEBEH -

O OMRAHRRKARET HEARA
BAZEEHMBUES  BRENT
EEFRETHAE -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
132,800,000 share options outstanding under the
Schemes. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 132,800,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$332,000 and share premium of
approximately HK$25,875,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 132,800,000 share options outstanding
under the Schemes, which represented approximately

2.3% of the Company's shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity on pages 98 and 99 of the financial statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group arose from:

(i) the Group's reorganisation on 13 June 1990,
representing the excess of the nominal value of the
Company's shares issued under the Group's
reorganisation, and the nominal value of the shares
and share premium of the former holding company

acquired by the Group; and

(i) a transfer from the share premium account pursuant

to the capital restructuring on 2 June 1999.

FHLEEEEETRAA
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27.

BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

B RESTE ()

RBER REZZE - ARFAE
132,800,00017 i I # i AR 1T ° £ K
REIBRAERAEBT  BEITEREARIT
EZEREBEHETEINERDA
132,800,000/% & i % - A R EEIMNR K
332,000/ 7T & B% 17 4 (B 925,875,000
BT (RN EITRZ) ©

Rt ERTBRE 2B RIEZESR
2| - A7) E132,800,00017 B B% # &
RITE WA RBEBEEEHTRMHD
2.30 °

&

AEBEZ FERABMRAFEMBESF
B2 REEEHN T RRFISKRIIA
ZIRERBEHHRRET -

AEBEZEZRHBEKE :

() AEER-ANZEFAAT=HE
T8l RARABRBEAEERE
AT mERBAEEMIK
8 2 AR R IR EE AR 0
BREMZELD + &

(i) RE-NAANFRA-BETZR
AEEAMBERMEBERPEL -
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27.

28.

29.

30.

RESERVES (continued)
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as

amended), the contributed surplus of the Group is
distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances

prescribed by section 54 thereof.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-based
payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related options are exercised, or be
transferred to retained profits should the related options

expire or be forfeited.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
outstanding guarantees of HK$190,000,000 (2020:
HK$190,000,000) given to banks to secure general credit

facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Group.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group's banking facilities and securities
margin account facilities, which are secured by the assets
of the Group, are included in notes 12, 14, 18 and 20 to

the financial statements.

COMMITMENTS
At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not

have any significant commitments.

HHELEEEEERLA

27.

28.

29.

30.

f#E (&)
BRIEBRECQIBIFERRLE)KIBET) -
TEZEBESAMEFT 2 & THERAT - &
SECEHMRBTDIRTRE -

BEEFRBEACREYEFTREZE
Bz 2 FEE FBERYBRERME
240D R EBRE MK Z €5 BURE
—HRE - EARBRIERITERE 8
eSS eERERMEER WA
A e B JE T SOR W - R RE 2 R
ERERRRM -

RREE

RBEHR - RARB TFRITZRER
ERE/A190,000,0008 T (ZEZFF -
190,000,000/ 7T) * fE R A& B & T M
BRAAIMER —REEME 2EM -

EEER
EAASBERITRERIFRISEP
ME(BUAREBEEER) 2 FEH
REFTEIRTRMEE12 14~ 18120 °

A5
RBEMR » AEE W B EEREGE -
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following material

transactions with related parties during the year:

(a) Related party transactions in connection with the

Group's operations:

Management fee paid to SRR NG
a related company ERE

Salary paid to Mr. Ng (Huang) SN EMBEiLEZ
Cheow Leng e

Salary paid to Mr. Wilson Ng XINEERKEELZD

Notes:

(i) The management fee was charged based on an
agreement entered into between the Group and a
related company, Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
("Huang & Co"), for administrative services provided
at a monthly rate of approximately HK$8,535 (2020:
HK$8,535).

(i)  The salary was paid to Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng,
who is the settlor and the trustee of a discretionary
trust which holds the entire interest in Huang Group
(BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding company of the

Company.

(i) The salary was paid to Mr. Wilson Ng, who is one of
the discretionary beneficiaries of a discretionary trust
which holds the entire interest in Huang Group (BVI)
Limited, the ultimate holding company of the

Company.
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31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

IN.EBEAERS
BRAMBEHREREMEDSHEEEIN B
AEE AEEHBABR T Z2EAX S0
B

() EAKEZEER BH IS

2021 2020

—EBE-—F —EZTF

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

B 5 FHET FHET

0) 102 102

(i) 128 122

=z (1)) 970 991

B &E -

() ERERASEE ARG
Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
([Huang & Col) FtFTiR #t7T AR
BRIWH®E WG AERE
#18,5358 T (ZE T4 : 8,535
BIT) °

(i) FeDINTEBELE HR
—(EA2EEEZR T ARETEA
Mm% ERERTAARRRRE
& A &]Huang Group (BVI) Limited
Z RS

(i) HFeDINTEEREE  HR
—EArRERzERT U2 ER
sAN MZEEERFAELARF
B AYERE A "]Huang Group (BVI)
Limitedz 2 Zp#E 2 -
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Due to the intermediate holding company

©

The Group had an outstanding balance due to the
intermediate holding company of HK$40,000,000
(2020: HK$40,000,000) as at the end of the
reporting period. This balance is unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

Commitments with related parties

On 1 April 2013, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into a service agreement with three-month
termination notice with Huang & Co, a related
company of the Company for the provision of
administrative services to the Group. The
management fee paid to Huang & Co for the year is
disclosed in note 31(a)(i) to the financial
statements. As at 31 March 2021, the Group had a
total future minimum management fee payable to
Huang & Co amounting to approximately HK$26,000
(2020: HK$24,000).

HHELEEEEERLA

I.EBAERS (&)
(b) FEN R RS AR A 7218

©

RS BR - RSB R EER
RARBZRENER R
40,000,000 L (Z T ZF % :
40,000,000/ 7T) ° A B8 & &1 ) &
B RERARERER -

B R Bt 7 ) AR
RZE—=FWMA—B A&5E—
L ENEIEE YNNG Rl S NG|
Huang & Cor] Y RIS % - WEH
ARASBEREITHRY  AEK
IFEMBMA=EA - RAFE XN
FHuang & CotV E IR B M
ME31@OAKE R = —
F=Z=A=+—H FXEBEHN
Huang & CoMy R R X EE R B
#26,000B T (ZE-_FF:
24,000 7T) °
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

(e

Loan advanced from a non-controlling shareholder

of the Group's subsidiary:

Loan advanced from a non-controlling 2S5 EIfff & 2 7] 2 FE AR

5
=N

shareholder of the Group's subsidiary ~ BRERE (S 2
Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement entered into
between the Group and New Century Cruise Line
International Limited (“New Century Cruise Line"), a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, the
shareholder shall not demand repayment of this
loan unless a resolution in writing signed by all
shareholders of the subsidiary for the demand of
repayment has been duly passed at a general
meeting. The loan is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. New Century Cruise Line is a

fellow subsidiary of the Company.

The compensation of key management personnel of
the Company has been disclosed in note 8(a) to the

financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a) to

(d) above also constitute connected transactions or

continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

31.

BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

RELXS (&)

(d)

Fiti(@)E(d)B 2T XX 5 B £

REE M B QR 2 FFEBRBIR A
ZER:

2021 2020
—EBEC-—F ZEEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
71,823 71,823

ng TN L gt [ S N e 2
B% & BNew Century Cruise Line
International Limited ([ New Century
Cruise Linel) 5] 2 RE % - B
FZMBARNEEBRREZENX
BRZEEBRZRERNRERG L
FREB BURRITIGEREER
ZEER - ZERR/EER 28
NBEZKER - New Century
Cruise LineRARRARIZRZEHER
=

Al

ARRIEZEEAB ZFHME N
BRRMF8()WE -

MARMETOAZEMRE 2BEZXH N
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32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions
(i) During the year, the Group had non-cash 0)
additions to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of HK$276,000 (2020: HK$188,000)
and HK$276,000 (2020: HK$188,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements

for an office unit and a car parking space.

(i) During the prior year, the Group had non-cash (i)
additions to property, plant and equipment of
HK$3,510,000, which utilised the prepayments
paid during the year ended 31 March 2019.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

3. ZEREREBRHE

(@ TEHFREXRF

RAEE  NEBGR—HRA
EEUR—FERABMNEE
THMERFERELEERTE
EEE R EBEFRRSEM
276,000 T (Z T _FF -
188,0007% 7t ) %&276,0007% 7T
ZE T 188,000 L) °

REFE  AEBENYE - W
FER&ZHEEIIFRSEM
3,510,000 7T - HARBZE
—AWE=ZA=+—A 1
FEAZNOBERNKIE -

(b) AREEHELENRELS

activities
2021
—_E_-_—£F
Lease liabilities
HEAE
HK$'000
FERT
At 31 March 2020 and R-FE-FF=A=1t—HK
1 April 2020 —ZEEFMA—A 221
Changes from financing cash flows MEREREELNES (185)
New leases MEE 276
Interest expense BRI X 10
Interest paid classified as XNAFE(DER
operating cash flows KrEBHenE) (10)
At 31 March 2021 N

=== BE = 312
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32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

32. ZERERBRITE (B])

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

(b) AREEFHELENRELS

activities (continued) (%)

2020
—E-FF

Loan advanced

from a non-
controlling Due to the Due to the
shareholder of immediate  intermediate Due to
lease  the Group's holding holding related
liabilities subsidiary company company companies Total
A5HE
HERAZ ENER JEfIh Ef
FERRE NG NG /N
HERE BRZER B B HE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NEMA—A 140 131,823 40,000 140,000 20,004 331,967
Changes from financing HERSRE
cash flows EEHEY (107) (60,000) (40,000)  (100,000) (20000 (220,107)
New leases Mg 188 - - - - 188
Interest expense MERR 5 - - - - 5
Interest paid dassified as ~ ZRFIE (A
operating cash flows BEReRE) (5) - - - - (5)
Decrease in an amount ERBERAR
due to a related FEZRD
company dlassified as (p8E
operating cash flows BERAERE) = = 5 - ©) (4)
At 31 March 2020 R_F_%F
=A==t 21 11,823 = 40,000 = 112,044
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33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material

non-controlling interests are set out as below:

HHELEEEEERLA

3. AREAKEREENHOE
B E QA
BERFEBRESNASEKNBREN
HEEIET

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
Percentage of equity interest held by FEREREFEN
non-controlling interests: RAEEZBT DL :
ETC Finance Limited SRAIBERRA A 40 40
Queenston Maritime Limited 40 40
Kingston Maritime Limited 40 40
New Century Maritime Limited 40 40
Century Rich Investments Limited 40 40
2021 2020
—E-—F ZTETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to PETFHFERERZD
non-controlling interests: TEERR(BB)
ETC Finance Limited SIEFT B HR A A 19,697 17,649
Queenston Maritime Limited (8,038) 4,960
Kingston Maritime Limited (37,396) 12,311
New Century Maritime Limited 531 (669)
Century Rich Investments Limited 1,983 (1,077)
Accumulated balances of non-controlling R B #FEER
interests at the reporting dates: EEENRTERR
ETC Finance Limited SRR EHERA A 360,644 340,947
Queenston Maritime Limited 11,764 16,047
Kingston Maritime Limited (9,550) 26,764
New Century Maritime Limited 4,685 1,649
Century Rich Investments Limited 15,808 13,826
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33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial

information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts are

disclosed before any inter-company eliminations:

2021
—EC-—F

Revenue and other income

Total expenses

Profit/(loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liability

Net cash flows from/(used in)
operating activities

Net cash flows used in
investing activities

Net cash flows used in
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease)
in cash and cash
equivalents

WAREHA
gt
AEERH/ (B]R)
AEERERE/
(BR) %

RYEE
FRBEAE
RBAE
FRDEE

BERBMG/ (R)
LEEREFE
RERDHA
ZBEREFE
BARDMA
LREREFR

ReRReEEN
ZEm/ (B)
ik

BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

33. AREARFERERZNIAD
BHE AR (&)
TRERLEMBRAANAEHEER
B FTREE & AR EED RARE A

ME R
ETC  Queenston Kingston ~ New Century ~ Century Rich
Finance Maritime Maritime Maritime  Investments
Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited
SRRHE
BRAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR T T TR
71574 - - 7,600 4971
(26,732) (20,094) (93,490) an (1)
50,842 (20,094) (93,490) 7,589 4,957
50,842 (10,708) (90,787) 7,589 4,957
899,593 34,786 13 198,821 90,029
108,416 - 120,435 78 -
(109,613) (5375)  (144,323)  (187,111) (50,507)
(136) - - - -
57,225 5 11,777 (25,050) (4,176)
(50,567) - (11,770) - -
(705) - - - -
5,953 5 7 (25,050) (4,176)
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33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial

information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts are

HHELEEEEERLA

3. AREARFERERZNIRD HE
BH B QR (&)
TRERLEMBRAANAEHEER
B FTREE & AR @2 RAREHA

disclosed before any inter-company eliminations: MerE: (8)
(continued)
2020
—E_EF
ETC  Queenston Kingston ~ New Century  Century Rich
Finance Maritime Maritime Maritime ~ Investments
Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited
PRANIH
ARAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER THL FHIL FER
Revenue and other income KAREAMBA 73,291 19,995 44,180 738 (2,674)
Total expenses % 1858 (26,020) (7,595) (13,401) (8,776) (19)
Profit/(loss) for the year rERRF/ (BB) 4771 12,400 30,779 (8,038) (2,693)
Total comprehensive income/ AEBZENE/

(loss) for the year (BB B8 47271 9,682 19,592 (8,038) (2,693)
Current assets nBEE 795,012 15417 7,282 195,887 85,267
Non-current assets FRDEE 155,189 28,080 171,600 78 -
Current liabiliies ik J) =N (102,647) (3378) (1119700 (191,766) (50,702)
Non-current liability FRBAE (136) - . . -
Net cash flows from/(used in) BEEHHNE/ (FA)

operating activities ZEERERE 182,037 6,977 (174) 139,413 (118,159)
Net cash flows used in REEEMA

investing activities ZAERERE - (6,981) - - -
Net cash flows used in REEEHA

financing activities LEERETE (100,678) - - (150,000) -
Net increase/(decrease) RBeRALEEY

in cash and cash 2Em/ (B)

equivalents et 81,359 (4 (174) (10,587) (118,159)
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 3. REFE S 2EMT A
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEHR SEeRTAEZERSR
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period mr

are as follows:

2021
—E-—F
Financial assets

THMEE

Financial asset

Financial Financial at fair value
assets at fair assetsat  through other
value through amortised  comprehensive
profit or loss cost income Total
RAYEE DEB#RA BRAFEETA
FAREN STEN Htt2EkE
tREE EREE WeEMERE G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TART TERT TERT
Equity investment designated ~ 1EE AR R FEEA
at fair value through other Hit 2 EYERM
comprehensive income RERE - = 3,457 3,457
Loan and interest receivables ~ EWEF LIS - 659,260 - 659,260
Trade receivables BB 5 KR - 43,413 - 43,413
Deposits and other receivables &4 & £ {th fe B 3
(note 16) (Fi3E16) - 4,799 - 4,799
Equity investments at fair value & A FBEFA
through profit or loss BarRERE 96,537 = = 96,537
Cash and cash equivalents e RREEED - 454,297 - 454,297

96,537 1,161,769 3,457 1,261,763
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

34 REHE sz I A (E)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEPRR SEERITAZERESHE

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period W (&)

are as follows: (continued)

2021

B —F
Financial liabilities
=R

Accruals

Other payables and deposits received (note 22)

Amount due to the intermediate
holding company

Loan advanced from a non-controlling
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary

Lease liabilities

Financial

liabilities at

amortised

cost

LA 85 5 A<

STEK

cRmeE

HK$'000

FTERT

FE &t FRIE 1,831

Hip AR R B MR & (f5E22) 30,926

JE 1~ R R 4 R

/NGIF/SE 40,000
REEME QR 2 FERBRE

B 2B 71,823

HEAE 312

144,892
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34. RERE S 2RI A (&)
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEPRR SEERITAZERESHE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period W ()

are as follows: (continued)

2020
—E-FTF

Financial assets
SHEE

Financial asset

Financial Financial at fair value
assets at fair assets at through other
value through amortised  comprehensive
profit or loss cost income Total
BATER DEHEKA  BATFEETA
STAERN it EH Hin 2 Ek &
TREE cREE HemEE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET FET THET
Equity investment designated RERERFERBA
at fair value through other Hih 2 EMREH
comprehensive income iR E - - 3113 1513
Loan and interest receivables ~ FEMWEFRFIE - 686,782 - 686,782
Trade receivables B E 5 ER = 116,538 = 116,538
Deposits and other receivables & & K H {th R X
(note 16) (Fi3E16) - 3,923 - 3,923
Equity investments at fair value &2 FEEA
through profit or loss BRNRERE 14,119 - = 145019
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBESEY = 438,811 = 438,811

14,119 1,246,054 1513 1,261,686
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows: (continued)

2020
—E-FF

Financial liabilities

ERAR

Accruals

Other payables and

deposits received (note 22)

Financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss

Amount due to the intermediate

holding company

Loan advanced from a

non-controlling shareholder of

the Group's subsidiary

Lease liabilities

JEst 3R

H it AR
YRS (Mi22)

BRAFEEA
BRMERARE

T RERAR
HE

AEEHELRAZ
JERBARR
BRZER

HHELEEEEERLA

34 REHE sz I A (E)

REEHR SHERTAZEESE
wmr (&)

Financial Financial
liabilities at fair liabilities at
value through amortised

profit or loss cost Total
ERTERE IAE KA
STABREN FEM

tRAR RAR Bt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHEL FHET

= 2,054 2,054

- 17,770 17,770

391 . 391

= 40,000 40,000

= 71,823 71,823

- 221 221

391 131,868 132,259
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's
financial instruments, other than those with carrying

amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are

BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

EHMITANDFEERLFE
EEX
BEASHEARATHEEABEEESN -
AEESRTANKRESERATEE
M

as follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
REHEH AREE
2021 2020 2021 2020
“E--fF —T-THF ZBZ-F CZIT_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET TET FET
Financial assets TRMEE
Equity investments at fair value &2 FEE A
through profit or loss EERERE 96,537 14,119 96,537 14,119
Equity investment designated  $5E AR AFEETA
at fair value through other Hofth 22 T W as 19
comprehensive income PRI & 3,457 1,513 3,457 1,513
Loan and interest receivables U E K &7 8 659,260 686,782 659,501 685,549
759,254 702,414 759,495 701,181
Financial liabilities ERARE
Financial liabilities at fair value & AP BE A
through profit or loss btk =R - 391 - 391

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, trade receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, an amount due to the intermediate holding
company, a loan advanced from a non-controlling
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary, lease liabilities and
the non-current deposits received approximate to their
carrying amounts and accordingly no disclosure of the fair

values of these items is presented.

BEEECKNE RehkReFEY -
EWE SRR  BRERNKE Ze
MEMEEEINEREE  BRER
ENERA L ERENSRAE &
e EER AR IR - AEE KB QA
ZHEBRBRERRNZER HEAGBMN
MIERBERIZEN A FEERH LE
HfEmemAE B #\5®mzF8E
BEVRFEERKE -
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 5. 2R ITENLATEBERAEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BEE R (&)

The Group's management is responsible for determining AEEEEEEEETEMIARTE
the policies and procedures for the fair value B BZHERREF -REREEH
measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting rEBEEEEONSRIABEZE
date, the Group’s management analyses the movements PBUWECHEMRAZETERABE -BY
in the values of financial instruments and determines the EXGHEMTESEEER2EME &
major inputs applied in the valuation. Independent ERAEEEREEENRIE - HEBR
professional valuers are engaged for the valuation as BRERSGBEMARTRARFEZNB
appropriate. The valuation is reviewed and approved by WERAEZEZESHR -

the Group's management. The valuation process and
results are discussed with the audit committee twice a

year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are SREENABBENATEERRELERE
included at the amount at which the instrument could be RGAZERNENRGHPRIBTANS
exchanged in a current transaction between willing BEMARRAFFREE - TIHEK
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The BRI AAEE A FEE :

following methods and assumptions were used to

estimate the fair values:
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices. The fair values of equity option
accumulator contracts are measured using a valuation
technique based on assumptions that are supported by
observable market prices or rates. The fair value of the
unlisted equity investment designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income, has been
estimated using a market-based valuation technique
based on assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates. The valuation requires
the directors to determine comparable public companies
(peers) based on industry, size, leverage and strategy,
and to calculate an appropriate price multiple, such as
enterprise value to earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation (“EV/EBITDA") multiple, for
each comparable company identified. The multiple is
calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the
comparable company by an earnings measure. The
trading multiple is then discounted for considerations
such as liquidity and size differences between the
comparable companies based on company-specific facts
and circumstances. The discounted multiple is applied to
the corresponding earnings measure of the unlisted
equity investment to measure the fair value. The directors
believe that the estimated fair values resulting from the
valuation technique, which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair values, which are recorded in
other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that
they were the most appropriate values at the end of the
reporting period. For the fair value of the unlisted equity
investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, management has estimated the
potential effect of using reasonably possible alternatives

as inputs to the valuation model.
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EREHEmMAN]) E8 - EZ%%(?ZEFHE
B A H) b X EERR A — &R KE
B -RARBELATDABNEEREBN
ZEALBRARZERBARRBRED
ERFNZHURZEBUFHLITE - I:&
BREEANIELMEERENHERR
MUFTEATFEE -EFHE FHER
MELNBH R FEER(ESLHERE
EMBARRARA) MEBARFEEE
(HRgxtsgnrEmraban) B
MESRBEHRRZNEZEE - FH
BERBRAFEEF ARLMEE KIS
FLEMEREENAFEE EEER
RIEAFTAGEAEMNBENRRE AEGE
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 35.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair value of the loan and interest receivables are
estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for loans with similar terms,

credit risk and remaining maturities.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to

the valuation of financial instruments together with a

SMIANATEERATE
R ()
EREFREMENDFEEAGRBAR
RIRemEEM B BRI AR EUESK
SERR LG TIHENERON R
EENIAC

ATEIM T —FR_T_ZTF=
A=t—BEARAEMTABEMNERT

quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 March 2021 and AERGAEBEANTEGRENN
2020:
Valuation Significant
technique unobservable input Range Sensitivity of fair value to the input
EER EXTAREBAR gE ATEEHBAENSRE
Unlisted equity Valuation Median of EV/EBITDA 2021: 5% increase/decrease in multiple would
investment multiples multiple of peers 191 t0 16.86 result in increase/decrease in fair value
FETRERE HEBH REECEBEURANE . Z—T-—-F: by HK$163,000 (2020: HK$56,000)
PR TEREHA 191£16.86 HEEN,/ RSN ERATEE
Rl Golisive -4 2020: #m,/ 1630008 (Z2=2F:
2.111060.17 56,000 )
—B_FF:
2.11%60.17
Discount for lack of 2021: 30% 5% increase/decrease in discount would
marketability —E- % result in decrease/increase in fair value
Bz s A 30% by HK$248,000 (2020: HK$109,000)
2020: 30% fmgm/ mosneBHATFER
S S WD,/ H248,00087T (Z2=FF:
300 109,000 7T)

The discount for lack of marketability represents the
amounts of premiums and discounts determined by the
Group that market participants would take into account

when pricing the investments.

nﬁ?&iﬁ%iﬁt&%ﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁgﬁﬁ#féﬁ
BLHEEEARETERTEENEE
EfrEesE -



35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

FHLEEEEETRAA
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5. eMITAENATFTEERATE
BEERX (&)
AEEEER
TREMEEcRTANAFEAER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 March 2021

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Equity investment designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

As at 31 March 2020

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Equity investment designated
at fair value through other

comprehensive income

R-B--%=ZA=1+-H

BATEBRA
BamRERE

REARRATEEA
Hth2EREN
RERE

BER

BRFEEFSENEE -

Fair value measurement using

ATLEEFERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
B EAT E )
THERE BEBRAE BEAAE
(5-BR) (5=ER) (B=ER) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TEX TER TER
96,537 - - 96,537
- - 3,457 3,457
96,537 = 3,457 99,994
14,119 = = 14,119
= = 1,513 1,513
14,119 - 1513 15,632
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 35.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The movements in fair value measurement within Level 3

during the year are as follows:

Equity investment at fair value through &R FEEF A

other comprehensive income: H th % TH 2 2 A AR A
At beginning of year RE ]
Total fair value gains/(losses) T H A 2 T 25 R R R
recognised in other WRAFEBERE
comprehensive income (B8R)#HE

At 31 March R=A=+—H

ETMIEANDFEERATE
EER (&)

DNFEERERX (K

RAFE  EZBRAXTFEEFEN
BT

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T THET
"E
1,513 1,552
1,944 (39)
3,457 1,513
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

EMIENAFEERATE
EER (&)

DNFEEER(E)
BAFEEFENERE -

Fair value measurement using

AFEEHBRR

Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
B EXT EART
TmEHRE BEBAE BEBAE
(B5-BR) (E=EBR) (BZENR CH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT FHT FET
As at 31 March 2021 R-B--f£=ZA=t-H
Financial liabilities at fair value &R AFBET A
through profit or loss BaNeras = = - -
As at 31 March 2020 RZZE-ZF=A=+—H
Financial liabilities at fair value XA FBETA
through profit or loss beEt0k = =R - 391 - 391

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets
and financial liabilities (2020: Nil).

RAEE  eREENERBEIRE
EE—RBRARE_EBRZEEHRRTE
EE=ZERBASEHAFEEFE (=
E_TF M) o

= —=<
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 5. 2MITAENAFEERATEE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BEER (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEERBX(E)
Assets for which fair values are disclosed: RELNFEENEE

Fair value measurement using
DAY EEERA

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
g EAT Eb i)
TEHRE EZBAR B DN
(B-BER) (BZER) (BZER Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET THER THER
As at 31 March 2021 R-B--f=A=t-H
Loan and interest receivables EWE R HE - - 659,501 659,501
As at 31 March 2020 WZT-TF=A=+—H

Loan and interest receivables U E I F & - - 685,549 685,549
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash
and short-term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade receivables, loan and interest
receivables and other payables, which arise directly from

its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The Board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these

risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. Most of the Group's revenue and costs were
denominated in Singapore dollars and Hong Kong dollars.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management closely monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the Singapore dollar exchange rate, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit/(loss)
after tax and retained profits (due to changes in the fair

value of monetary assets and liabilities).
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AEBZIEEMIAGREAS REY
TR MESRTIAZIEZBENTIA/R
KELERE AKEAREAEMER
BERBE  PlUnRKE SRR - B
ERRMEREMEMNER REEE
WHEEPESL -

AEESRTAEEY TERBAFK
Ak SERR - EEEAR EDES
RRRBREEERR EESEHIG
BEBEZSARBE BERET -

S [ B

AEBEHRHEIZERRR - ZERRT)
ARREEMABRNGEERAINZE
BETEEMEL - NEB 2 KFH I
ARRATIAF M T R AT REEE
i o ZNEE B AT ESME S PR - A
m-EEEETYERINERR - I #
REZBERZFELHRERSMNERR

TERERNBERARELMERRITT
o MM TERAELRAGERS
ZIERT  AEBEBRBEEN, (BE)
ErBaf (HE¥EERBEATE
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

2021

—E-—F

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens AT
against the Singapore dollar otz (E

If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens fis 7T K,
against the Singapore dollar g T AHE

2020

—E_FF

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens BT R
against the Singapore dollar N T E

If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens W BT H
against the Singapore dollar BN T HE

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2021, the credit risk of the Group was

primarily attributable to trade receivables, loan and

interest receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

SN R B (4B

Increase/
(decrease)

in foreign
currency rate

ShsBE R
2, (OR4)

%

(10)

Increase/
(decrease)

in foreign
currency rate

5185 B
g, O )
%

10

(10)

FEER
MN-_E-_—F=A=1+—H KEEH
FERBREEREEKE SRR - B
EXREFEUARBERREEEY -

36. M EREERERBE (&)

Decrease/
(increase)

in loss

after tax and
increase/
(decrease) in
retained profits
BRBEEEER
WA ()
RRE %S F
i, CRd)
HK$'000
FET

289

(289)

Increase/
(decrease)

in profit

after tax and
retained profits
B 51 18 75 T
FARE % A
#gm/ Cfd)
HK$'000
FHET

2,380

(2,380)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group provides services only to recognised and
creditworthy third parties and related parties. It is the
Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is
not significant.

One of the Group’s main income generating activities is
lending money to customers, and therefore, credit risk is
a principal risk. It is the Group's policy that all new loans
are subject to stringent credit check procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk for each
of its customers before the loan applications are accepted
or rejected. If there is no independent rating, risk control
assesses the credit quality of the customer by taking into
account the financial position, past experience and other
factors of the customer. The Group holds collateral
against certain loan and interest receivables in the form
of first legal mortgages over individual properties located
in Hong Kong which mainly comprised of residential,
commercial, industrial properties and car parking spaces.
The Group approves and grants loans to its customers
pursuant to its pre-approved credit policy with tightened
management measures whenever the adverse condition
in property market occurs. The Group has loan
committees of different levels comprising of directors and
senior management to approve and grant different loan
products with various loan-to-value ratios and loan
amount requirements.

The directors and senior management consider that the
credit risk arising from the loan and interest receivables is
significantly mitigated by the properties held as collateral,
with reference to the market values of the properties
which were valued by independent third party valuers as
at the end of each reporting period.
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FERRE (&)
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AEEZEP-—HEIEELRAEDZ
AEFPRE Bt FERARA—IRE
ERk  AEBEZHREBAAHFERA
BBBRBONEEESER - I Bl
BRRAERDIRISEREEEE -

AEBEENSERZEPNERSRH
ZH - AEEBREAMERFPNEER
% o B I EETTE AT AR RIRIRR
REERF @ZREFHOMBMARR
BECRLAEMAZAFEREEEE
E-AKERERENETREERR
ST A EH an (AR F 7 & 8 5l
MENE XERBOFER) (ERE
HERHFRIREREEDE BXEY
X IXYMENREN - -BEVETS
HIRTAGRR - AEESRIFHALM
EMEERER  ENREREEEGRE
Bz -#HERAMEZEFEHER K
SERETREENERZES (KB
BREFREMRERE) @ AL E KR
HEARNERE[BELERAFNTH
EREBMNERER °

EELRREEERS REBYF=
HEEMRSREARGEENDED
B - BRUREREFMEELNEERARD
RUAASERTEE ERERG) MY
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND  36.

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group's

credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without

undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 March.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for

financial assets.

As at 31 March 2021
R-ZE-_—F=H=+—H

BHREREEBRRRBER (&)

EERE (&)
REEBRARRFEBER D
TRETR=ZA=+T—HREXEEDN
FEBRREENEEERAESEER
B AT ENARERRER BRIEH
B EABN AL EORALE N E]
AER - AIERIGR) - AR F R HRE

RN -

AN ERAEREENREAR -

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
TZEAEH
ERBX EEGEDNABERAX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  approach Total
F-RR ZE-RKR FZER @StrE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR
Trade receivables U E 5 R = = = 43,413 43,413
Loan and interest receivables ~ EMEFH LIS 579,087 28,393 54,381 - 661,861
Financial assets included in BEEENTE  Re
prepayments, deposits and R E e M AR 3
other receivables MemEE
— Normal* —FE* 4,799 - - - 4,799
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREZED
~ Not yet past due - KB H 454,297 - - - 454297
1,038,183 28393 54,381 43,413 1,164,370
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND  36.

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(continued)

As at 31 March 2020
RZE-EF=A=+—H

BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

BEREEBEREE (&)
FERR (8)

REEBRARRFEBERDHE
(&)

Lifetime ECLs

REGENEBEREXR

Simplified
Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F_BR S=BR @HtrE ch

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT TR THT

= = 116,538 116,538
27,082 100,633 = 690,433

= = = 3,923

= = = 438,811

12-month
ECLs
A AR
fEREX
Stage 1
F-BE
HK$'000
FEL
Trade receivables FEW B SR =
Loan and interest receivables FEKEFRFIE 562,718
Financial assets included in BRERMNTE &
prepayments, deposits and T A FE MR 3
other receivables MEREE
- Normal* = et 3,923
Cash and cash equivalents BekAeEEY
— Not yet past due -KBH 438,811
1,005,452

27,082 100,633 116,538 1,249,705

*  The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is

considered to be “doubtful”.

O BREERMNFOR B KM E KK
RArsRMEEERNABHEYEER
XPSREENEERR B MHKER
BREKBEL EEEEZERE
RIEF]-BH - eRMEENEEES
REWER[FER] -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36. B AR EEEER KE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERR (&)

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/ EEERRBNIBREE/R5HA K

counterparty, by geographical region and by industry
sector. There is no significant credit risk as the tenants
and charterer have paid security deposits as collateral to
the Group for the leases of investment properties and
cruise ships, respectively. Also, the Group's loan and

interest receivables are widely dispersed.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from other receivables, loan
and interest receivables and trade receivables are
disclosed in notes 16, 17 and 18 to the financial

statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows

from operations.

EHERITERAETER -BREP

EBHEMADNECHEERENER
BmRmAEEXNRESERERSR -
WMAEEY BEREERR LI &
SENEKEREMNETIEBZE TR
BBA e

AEBREEMEWIERZD  EBUREZ KL
FBUNEKRE SRR EZERR ZF
HHBEHERATERERMFI617R
18 °

REBE < E R
AEENERABDFSTAEREES
RRER - ZTEEESRMTANRDRE
BE W : BEE KRR MEHDH
ARBAREXRBCRAERE

A
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

36. W EREERHERBE (&)

REBE S @R (&)

RIBETHRFTRER

AT H I ARE

ERmEHRzERAEIHA

2021
—E--&%
3to
On  Less than less than 1to5
demand 3 months 12 months years Total
=f8R
EEX SR EOR
®E =f8A T=f8R —-Z1fF At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT
Amount due to the intermediate  JEfF R IR A A
holding company A 40,000 - - - 40,000
Loan advanced from a REEMHBERAZ
non-controlling shareholder FERBR
of the Group's subsidiary A ZER 71,823 = - - 71,823
Accruals JEt500R - 1,831 - - 1,831
Other payables and H B A BR N R
deposits received Bl E 323 26,470 1,039 3,094 30,926
Lease liabilities BEAR - 49 130 144 323
112,146 28,350 1,169 3,238 144,903
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as

at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

(continued)

Amount due to the intermediate

holding company

Loan advanced from a

non-controlling shareholder

of the Group's subsidiary

Accruals
Other payables and

deposits received

Financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss

Lease liabilities

ENPREZRAR
HA
AREMBRRZ
FFERBR
BRZEH
JEAT5UR
H A B R
Bl e
BAFEERARS
MERMAR
HERRE

HHELEEEEERLA

36. W EREERHERBE (&)

RBEEEE (&)
RIS ATHARFTRER

AT #FIARE

BREEHRceMAEIHA - (B

2020
ZTCITF
3to
On Less than less than 1t05

demand 3 months 12 months years Total

=f@AR

EEX 20 EPR
B =R +Zf@A —ERF ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FEL FET FET TET
40,000 = S S 40,000
71,823 = S S 71,823
= 2,054 = = 2,054
21 9,365 4,998 3,386 17,770
= = 391 = 391
= 51 103 84 238
111,844 11,470 5,492 3,470 132,276
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual securities. The
Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
individual equity investments classified as equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss (note 20)
as at 31 March 2021. The Group's equity investments
are listed on the stock exchange of Hong Kong and are
valued at quoted market prices at the end of the

reporting period.

The market equity index for the following stock exchange,
at the close of business of the nearest trading day in the
year to the end of the reporting period, and its respective

highest and lowest points during the year were as
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36. W EREERHERBE (&)

iR 1B 4% L B

P 4 B 48 B\ i 52 4 RO 5 BROK 7 R M
ESEEESMERNESESF R FE
ETHHNER R_F_-—F=H
=+—H - AEEFMEEOBREERR
BIRE D BEREAFEEFABRAMRK
RIRE N AR E (f15E20) - RN&E
BB ERERNTBBRMED - XN
HEHRETIGARERTE -

RBERRNFORI BEERMER
K- TIEARRSGANTISRERE
UERAFEEE BN RS xRN
T

follows:
31 March
2021
—EBE--F
=RA=t-H
Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index & — 184 5 & 28,378

High/low 31 March High/low
2021 2020 2020
B/ Z—Z=TF &/ &

—®--f ZH=t-B -%T-%%

31,183/ 23,603 30,280/
22,520 21,139
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk (continued)
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to every
10% change in the fair values of the equity investments
of the Group, with all other variables held constant, based
on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting

period.

2021
—E-—F

Equity investments listed REE LT
in Hong Kong PR &

2020

—E_BF

Equity investments listed REE LT
in Hong Kong R E

HHELEEEEERLA

36. W EREERHERBE (&)

B A (B 4% L B (4
TREREMAEMEBRBETET

BERERENBERRCRE S -
HAEBEREREZATBEESEE
10% % 8) 2 GUKE o

Carrying
amount

of equity
investments

RERE
WEREZHE
HK$'000
THET

96,537

Carrying
amount

of equity
investments

BERE
HERE £ 8

HK$'000
THT

14,119

Increase/
(decrease)
in fair value

AVEE
B/ (82)

%

10
(10)

Increase/
(decrease)
in fair value

AFEE
0/ (6)

%

10
(10)

Decrease/
(increase)

in loss

after tax and
increase/
(decrease)

in retained
profits
w2/ ()
kR
i,/ CAD)
HK$'000
TER

8,061
(8,061)

Increase/
(decrease)

in profit

after tax and
retained profits
BR 0 18 0 A

R AR B 5 A
#m,/ Cr )
HK$'000
FHET
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.
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BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

36. W EREERHERBE (&)

EXERE
AEEEAER T EZERBRARRALE
BARNEFBEELEBZRAUNEER
BFRREALERUAFEERIIRS
BEREE-

AEERBEEGEZECERERE
BAMNAE REFIAERELRNS
B AKETHBHRRZIKE - AR
RIRMEARL BT - AEBAZIN
MERZEMERNRERS - BE—F
——FR-FE_FF=-HA=1T—HLF
B BHEEEANBR BERIORE
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total indebtedness divided by equity attributable to
owners of the Company. The Group's policy is to
maintain the gearing ratio below 50%. Total
indebtedness represents a loan advanced from a non-
controlling shareholder of the Group’s subsidiary, an
amount due to the intermediate holding company and
lease liabilities. The gearing ratios as at 31 March 2021

and 31 March 2020 were as follows:

Loan advanced from a AEEMBERRZ
non-controlling shareholder FEERR AR 3R
of the Group's subsidiary B2 BN

Amount due to the intermediate & {~ /7 Rl #22 A%
holding company N EIFIE

Lease liabilities HEAE

Equity attributable to owners RRABHEE ARG
of the Company T

Gearing ratio BAREAEHXR

\\\\\\

36. W EREERHERBE (&)

EXEE (&)

AEBAMAEAEABELXRERE
K BEXREABHERABBEEBRIARD
AHE AELEE  AEEZERAEE
BAREE B REREB500% © LET
BAREEIB AR ZEERBRRARMN
BN BRATEERARDFEUNRES
BE-RZZBE-_—F=A=+—HBRZ

E_EF-A=+—HZELRHEAEL
KM

2021 2020

—E-—&F —E-EF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH& T FET

71,823 71,823

40,000 40,000

312 221

112,135 112,044

1,582,541 1,617,227

7% 7%




37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY
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Information about the statement of financial position of

the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries
Equity investment designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Lease liabilities

Other payables and accruals

Due to subsidiaries

Total current liabilities

ERBEE

ME - BEREE
RMBRRZRE
BERBAFEETA
H 2 HE 4z
B E

RBEE
e 5 B8R 3K
BAZFIE - BER
H Al F& Y AR IR
mAFEERA
B RERE
RelBHeFEY

mBEEREE

REBRE

BAFEERA
BaEmMERan

HERE

H Al &SRR K S B At R

e P /B8 2 RS IA

mEREARE

BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

37. A2 BB B AR OR &

BRAARAR®EHROT BRI KE

2021 2020
—E_—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
349 2,779
1,099,751 1,096,269
3,457 1,513
1,103,557 1,100,561
24,505 56,593
1,065 1,215
48,417 7,250
124,310 136,730
198,297 201,788
= 195

81 2,395

1,748 1,859
574,600 574,261
576,429 578,710
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37. KR AT WEI B AR R R (8])
COMPANY (continued)
Information about the statement of financial position of BREAN B AR E H R A B IS AR R R Y
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as BRI - (&)
follows: (continued)
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFE (378,132) (376,922)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRE
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R 725,425 723,639
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBRE - 81
Net assets BEFRE 725,425 723,558
EQUITY Ew
Issued capital BBITRA 14,451 14,451
Reserves (Note) R (M) 710,974 709,107

Total equity Emiase 725,425 723,558




New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt K S EEF B E R 2 7 259
Annual Report 2021 F3k

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥R R MR

31 March 2021
—E-—F=ZA=+—H

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37. X AR WM B AR R K (&)
COMPANY (continued)
Note: Mzt -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RARREERENAT :
Share Share
premium option  Contributed Fair value Retained
account reserve surplus reserve profits Total
37} BRE X AVER RE
HER 513 B& e bl Gl

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FAET THET TET TET TET

At 1 April 2019 RZE-NEWA—A 354,993 23,015 162,587 772 204,359 745,726
Final 2019 dividend BERZ-E-NE

declared REARE - - - - (17,341) (17,341)
Total comprehensive loss AEEEE

for the year BEAaE - - - (39) (19,239) (19,278)
At 31 March 2020 and R-ZZE-_ZF=H

at 1 April 2020 =+-BRR

“Z-TFMA—H 354993 23,015 162,587 733 167,779 709,107

Total comprehensive income/  AEE2E N,/

(loss) for the year (BB @BE - - - 1,944 (77) 1,867

Transfer of share option reserve 7B R 5 23k I8 i B
upon the lapse or expiry of BEBRERE
share options (note 26) (P #26) - (17,153) -

17,153 =

At 31 March 2021 RZE-_—F=f
== 354,993 5,862 162,587 2,677 184,855 710,974
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37.

38.

39.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Note: (continued)
The contributed surplus of the Company arose from:

(i) the reorganisation mentioned in note 27(i), representing
the excess of the nominal value of the Company's shares
issued under the Group's reorganisation and the then
consolidated net assets value of the acquired subsidiaries;

and

(i) a transfer from the share premium account pursuant to the

capital restructuring on 2 June 1999.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to
shareholders in certain circumstances prescribed by section 54

thereof.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments in
note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either be
transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should

the related options lapse or expire.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Cruise Ship Disposal, which was completed on 25
May 2021, is expected to result in a total gain on
disposal before tax of approximately US$92,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$714,000) and the
Group's share of relevant aggregate revaluation surplus of
HK$4,730,000 included in the asset revaluation reserve

is expected to be transferred to retained profits.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised

for issue by the board of directors on 28 June 2021.

37.

38.

39

RAF B R R (&)

fsE - ()
RRBZEHBBRKE

() ME27(O)zER/RBARAREARN
SESAEMBETRMIEEBRBRKSE
MBARERZGAEEFEIND
K

(i) BEBE-NAANFRA-RETZRA
BT ARDEERFPEL -

BRIEARECIBIFREE) (KER) &
ZOEBIESMEFTMZ BEFTB/RT  XARZ
BHAEGA DK TFRE -

BREREBREERD  BFTEZBRE
ZRFEE FBERYBRRME24UK
MRERNNRZ T RRE-—SHEE-Z
BRBEERTEN FHEKEEBES
Bt AR - S B B R R s T s
AFHASHESBREREEN -

WEHMEEE

HREHEETEER _ZE=-—F1 A
“t+hBEK EHEEREEEIEDN
B B AT U 25 48 38 4992,000% 7T (FHE R
#714,00087T)  r MBEEEESM
REANESERENEBAEHRNERE
4,730,000 T TEEIK S ARBE R -

B ISR 2 HE

MBBRRER-ZZE=_—F A=+ N\H
BEEZaH/EMRETE -
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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the published audited financial

statements, is set out below.

Annual Report 2021 F3k

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFURBME

AEEBEREMKFRAREC FENE
ELMBBRRNORERE EE ABMFE
ZRESBENT

RESULTS E§
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+-HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
“BE--F ZEZ-TF ZZ-NF ZE-N\F ZT—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TET THET THET FTHET
(Restated)
(&)
(Note)
(PRt 3E)
REVENUE 'O 100,360 145,364 173,006 202,055 182,616
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ~ AEEHRA,/ (&#E) (79,935) 48,635 88,583 196,512 105,367
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE EARERA
YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EEREE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY wH (BR) (56,712) 15,461 47,492 148,611 76,482
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFURBHHRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- NEBEBERBEMBEEESFAE FREK
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial BZMBEHRERMNLEEEE E= BEMIE
years, as extracted from the published audited financial ZREZMOBEU0T - (&)

statements, is set out below. (continued)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EE -BELIFEERES
INTERESTS
At 31 March
R=B=+—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

B —T-TF ZE-NEF ZZT-N\F ZT—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FEL FEL AL FEL

(Restated)

(E5)

(Note)

(Pi#3E)
TOTAL ASSETS BEAE 2,130,282 2,168,656 2,880,876 1,935,125 1,733,983
TOTAL LIABILITIES =Lg:t (164,390)  (152,196)  (376,759)  (230,556)  (241,715)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS ~ JEi#Z MR % (383,351)  (399,233)  (370,930) (67,899) (17,775)

1,582,541 1,617,227 2,133,187 1,636,670 1,474,493

Note: BftaE -

The financial information for the year ended 31 March 2019 has been HE_T-NWF=ZA=+—HILFENHBKER
restated to reflect the effect of adoption of merger accounting for BEEY URBRRBE-_TE_ZTF=A=+—
common control acquisition during the year ended 31 March 2020. HiIEFERAERESKERAGHGHENTE -
The financial information for the two years ended 31 March 2018 and HE-_T - N\FERZZT—tF=A=+—HIEW
2017 has not been adjusted. 18 58 5 69 B 765 & R S A (T A 2E o



INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Description

R

Shop No. 23A,

Ground Floor (Level 2),
Kwai Chung Plaza,

7-11 Kwai Foo Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong
BRMALBEERT- 115

ERES T (B2E) 23A% 4

Ground Floor including its cockloft,

Chi Fu Building,

No. 301 Portland Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

EENETE AIEEE30158
EEBHT (BFEEEE)

Shop 5, Ground Floor,

Dundas Square,

No. 43H Dundas Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BANEEABET THAZHRE
B+ Eim it ot

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt K S EEF B E R 2 7
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
MEFS

31 March 2021

—_E-_—%®=ZRF=+—H

REWE

Percentage

Use Nature of interest

2R+ =R EEEIH

Commercial Medium-term 100
[EHES leasehold
REIFRE

Commercial Medium-term 100
[EES leasehold
FHEE

Commercial Medium-term 100
[ leasehold
FREIE
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MEFIS

31 March 2021

—E-—F=ZAF=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Description

B

Shop 3, Ground Floor,

Dundas Square,

No. 43H Dundas Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BENEEE AT T H43H%
BT TESH T35

762/764/766/768

North Bridge Road,
Singapore 198730/198732/
198734/198736

15th Floor, Katherine House,

Nos. 53-55 Chatham Road South,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BEENERDHERMBRASIESSH
FERPOI5E

REWE(E)

Use Nature

A& i
Commercial Medium-term
[EES leasehold
FREIEE

Commercial Freehold
EE3 KA ERE
Commercial Medium-term
(EES leasehold
FREIEE

Percentage

of interest

EZBo

100

100

60
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